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China Development Bank (the Bank or CDB), as China’s development finance institution, is
dedicated to strengthening China’s competitiveness and improving people’s livelihood, and
focuses on leveraging its advantages as a development finance institution, particularly in key
industries and underdeveloped sectors and during critical periods, to promote the sustainable and
robust development of the national economy and society.

It aligns its business focus with China’s major medium- and long-term national economic
development strategies and allocates its financing resources to:

* support major national projects in infrastructure, basic industries, pillar industries, and strategic
emerging sectors;

* help promote economic structural adjustments, new urbanization, coordinated regional
development and industrial upgrade and transformation;

* promote inclusive financing, and support projects that improve the living conditions of the
people, including urban renewal and poverty alleviation; and

» facilitate international cooperation and investments, support the implementation of China’s “One
Belt, One Road” and “Go Global” initiatives.

CDB strives to become a world-class development finance institution by leveraging its unrivalled
position as an industry leader in medium- and long-term investment and financing, further
improving the business model of development finance, and continuously enhancing its own
competitiveness and relevance, presence and influence, as well as its risk tolerance and
management.
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The Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Directors, Supervisors and Executive Management of CDB
confirm that the information presented in this Annual Report contains no false or misleading statement or
material omission; they and each of them assume joint and several liability as to the authenticity, accuracy and
completeness of this report.

The Board of Directors of CDB reviewed and approved the 2015 Annual Report in its fifth meeting of 2016 financial
year (the calendar year as adopted by the Bank) on August 29, 2016.

The Bank’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 are prepared in accordance with Chinese
Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) respectively. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP (DTT) has audited these financial statements in accordance with
Chinese and international standards of auditing, and has issued an unqualified auditor's report with respect
thereto.
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China Development Bank was established in 1994. On 11 December 2008, as approved by the State Council
of the People’s Republic of China (the State Council), China Development Bank was incorporated as China
Development Bank Corporation.

Registered Name in English: CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK CORPORATION

(Shortened to CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK or abbreviated as CDB)

Legal Representative: Hu Huaibang

Registered Capital: RMB421,248 Million

Registered Address: No. 18 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
Post Code: 100031

Telephone: 86-10-6830 6789

Facsimile: 86-10-6830 6699

Website Address: www.cdb.com.cn
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THE CDB REFORM PLAN
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On 20 March 2015, the State Council approved the CDB Reform Plan for the Bank to deepen its on-going reform.
The CDB Reform Plan aims to adapt the Bank to state’s developmental and economic reform needs, to align
its development with the state’s strategy for the medium- and long-term economic development of China, to
strengthen its capabilities as a development finance institution which operates on market principles and is able
to effectively manage its risks, deliver quality services and maintain performing assets and adequate capital, with
proper checks and balances, healthy corporate governance, strict and effective internal controls in place, so as
to better enable development finance to play its key role in key industries and underdeveloped sectors and during
critical periods; and effectively facilitate the sustainable and robust development of the national economy.

The main contents of the CDB Reform Plan are:

* to further clarify the functional positioning of the Bank as a development finance institution;
* to re-confirm the focus of the Bank, namely development-oriented activities;

* to further streamline its organizational and governance structures;

* to obtain policy assurance for the state’s commitment for its funding sources;

to further enhance its capital adequacy, including the state's additional capital injection to replenish the Bank’s
capital;

to establish the system of capital management;

to strengthen internal control and external supervision;

to effectively assess the performance of the Bank especially in terms of its support to the state’s strategies, risk
control and profitability; and

to revise and improve the Bank's Articles of Association. In due course, the formulation of “Regulations on
China Development Bank” will be considered.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

s e

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(B4, ART101ZTE B4 Lt Billion RMB or %)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
BRE
12,619.7 10,317.0 8,197.2 7,534.9 6,252.3
Total Assets
REARRE : 9,206.9 7,941.6 7,148.3 6,417.6 5,525.9
Loans Outstanding, Gross
NER
FRIEHE _ , 0.81% 0.65% 0.48% 0.30% 0.40%
Non-performing Loan Ratio
RepBEE 3.71% 3.43% 3.05% 2.82% 2.22%
Allowance for Loan Losses to Total Loans
Bk
N 11,549.4 9,636.2 7,627.8 7,025.1 5,807.0
Total Liabilities
Ziﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁ ) 7,301.4 6,353.6 5,840.6 5,302.2 4,476.4
Debt Securities Outstanding
ok ) 1,070.3 680.8 569.4 509.9 445.3
Total Shareholders’ Equity
ﬁ$,3EE$ ) 10.81% 11.88% 11.28% 10.92% 10.78%
Capital Adequacy Ratio
P F
48 , 102.8 97.7 80.0 63.1 45.6
Net Profit
| &%
B2 158.4 178.7 1715 154.4 116.5
Net Interest Income
7 147 % —V-Z%\z
TR 0.90% 1.06% 1.02% 0.92% 0.80%
Return on Average Assets
R 25 |l 25 )
FHBRRE 11.74% 15.63% 14.82% 13.21% 10.76%

Return on Average Equity

ET RFERE (RERN AV SEEREGETRERITENRS . BREIRAN, ARTEMBETASIGH AR,
MAR MR,

2. ERPOISFEAARERERBURS(HURTAAEERNZ (7T VEHEIMENHE, 2015FUANFERATEXR
BRAKS(HURTALEZRERME)EEXNETHE. REINREAS AFEREMBAATEREX BRI S
BFAE.

Note 1: All financial data and indicators in this Annual Report, other than the Appendices, have been prepared in accordance with the
Chinese Accounting Standards and, unless otherwise specified, are consolidated amounts of the Bank and its subsidiaries and are
denominated in Chinese yuan.

Note 2: The Bank's capital adequacy ratio for year 2015 as shown in the above table has been calculated in accordance with the Capital Rules
for Commercial Banks (Provisional) issued by the China Banking Regulatory Commission (the CBRC) and other relevant requirements,
while prior-year capital adequacy ratios were calculated in accordance with the Rules for Regulating the Capital Adequacy
Requirement of Commercial Banks and other relevant requirements. All figures relating to capital adequacy ratios as included in this
Annual Report are presented on a consolidated basis unless otherwise specified.



8 / WHH®E / FINANCIAL SUMMARY

REF EITRHF R
Total Assets Debt Securities Outstanding
B, ARM10{ZT Bilion RMB &, ARM10{Z7T  Bilion RMB
12,619.7
12,000.0 8,000.0
10,317.0 7,301.4
10,000.0 —_— 6,353.6
6,000.0 58406 — o
75349 81972 53022
8,000.0 e —
6,252.3 4,476.4
6,0000 — E— e — — 40000 — — — — — —
4,0000 — R B E— E—
20000 — — — — — =
2,0000 — e e e e
00 —— 00 —
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
N S5 HiE
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
BRRBEETILSHE
Outstanding Loan Balance: Breakdown by Industry
BAL B %
B 2% Railways 8.10%
B /AB& Public Highways 17.53%
8 77 Electric Power 8.80%
N ERIZ M Public Infrastructure 13.40%
A8 1L Petroleum and Petrochemical 6.63%
[ #/ X #iE Urban Renewal 14.68%

% B& M 7 3¢ 2=\l Strategic Emerging Industries 8.94%
HAth Others 21.92%
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BRETHX ShE 20158 RITARMIRHEM
Outstanding Net Loan Balance: Breakdown by Geography Renminbi Bonds Issued in 2015
B EBDE % B ARM10ZTs AL Billion RMB or %

s

B EHHX Eastern 39.09% B SR (—FHUT, &—F) 155.0 13.64%
Short-term Bonds (under 1 year, inclusive)
[0 FEph X Central 19.79% L Rk (—FHERFH 28F) 442.7 38.97%
Medium-term Bonds (1 to 5 years, inclusive)
[ X Western 26.93% L KE(AFEHE+FH &a+F) 5279 46.47%
Long-term Bonds (5 to 10 years, inclusive)
K BE ISR Outside Mainland China 14.19% B (+FEIME) 105  0.92%

Super Long-term Bonds (over 10 years)

2015 E TR
2015 Credit Ratings

n

BEATE Aa3 TPRRE . RE Aa3 TRRE . BT
Moody's Outlook: Stable Outlook: Stable
FRAEL RAE] AA- TFRRE . RBRE AA- TRRE. BE
Standard & Poor’s Outlook: Stable Outlook: Stable

7. 201638 BEAS AL RASNERHFEINEATRRER " RE BEA OE" ATTRAREBZH RE

Note:  In March 2016, Moody's and Standard & Poor’s adjusted the outlook of China’s sovereign credit rating from stable to negative, and
the outlook for the Bank was reset from stable to negative accordingly.
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B 53 BEIRSH AL TR A MK,

A LSRR, R E S L R

20154 3H  ESRMEFRBITRUNET R BHALXRTHTRMEERYVIMEMMBRBER . fIES
L REARBRTEREESBRSEREFERNTKPLRARE #—PREFLNERAEET I, EBHD.
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REREXRRNX, Bl FRRTEXRUNEADZTERGRBER. KEREREHH, ERINCHE48012%
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IEREAEREREENEIR, RELZRRMH TR

FHTEATGE, EESANKELBARER B2 MBERRREE SRAEEEFAARSGHELE. |
—SREIRIRE, BT ABDTHURE, BUL DT, —MEF. —ERS B BASTRINERRE
BN MBS ESRFERERKBAYMNBESE, €EATR =1 LEEARANES . cEZTHERER,
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EUTE USRS EFHIARREERNANLE.
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2015 will be remembered as a milestone year for China Development Bank and it was a defining year for our comprehensive reform. Faced with
a challenging environment both at home and abroad, the Bank continued to support national strategy, remained focused on China’s pursuit
for steady growth, adapted to the economic new normal, and played its role as a development finance institution. By facilitating China’s stable
economic growth, structural optimization and transformation, and improvement of the people’s livelihood, CDB made important contributions to
the development of the Chinese economy and society as a whole.

Tangible Achievements in Supporting China’s Strategy

To align ourselves with macroeconomic policy and national strategic priorities, and to play the countercyclical role of development finance,
we streamlined credit delivery and introduced innovative mechanisms to meet the funding needs of major national projects. In 2015, we lent
RMB750.9 billion to urban renewal projects, which not only meant that the country’s annual target to build 5.8 million new homes was met
ahead of schedule, but also that follow-on projects were safeguarded. We funded major railways and water projects, as well as initiatives
to advance new urbanization and coordinated regional development. Poverty alleviation is a key national strategic priority and, in 2015, we
marked our commitment to this area with RMB212.2 billion in loans to China’s 727 most-deprived regions and counties. Likewise, we lent our
support to China’s “One Belt, One Road” initiative with financing pooled for a number of key projects. We also offered favorable pricing and
intermediary service fee exemptions in certain priority sectors, thus significantly lowering financing costs in the real economy.

A Clear Mandate Established through Reform

In March 2015, the State Council approved the CDB Reform Plan, our positioning and regulatory planning roadmap. This plan clearly defines
CDB as a development finance institution and reminds us to keep our business activities closely aligned with China’s key medium- and
long-term economic goals, and to become more effective at delivering development financing to key industries and underdeveloped sectors
and during critical periods. The CDB Reform Plan supports not only our own sustainable development, but also overall economic development
in China. We are proud to have made concrete progress in its implementation. With our long-term credit rating re-affirmed, and with USD48
billion capital injection from the State Administration of Foreign Exchange in place, we are in the process of making necessary revisions to our
Articles of Association, optimizing business divisions, and implementing differentiated regulatory assessment.

Building Corporate Governance Capabilities for Higher Efficiency

By strengthening corporate governance, we better enabled our Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors in their respective strategic
decision-making and oversight roles. The Executive Management team scaled new heights while ensuring compliant operations. To foster
greater synergy between CDB and its subsidiaries, and to encourage more meaningful practice of our philosophy to “Operate As One CDB,
Deliver Customer Experience As One CDB and Deliver Services As One CDB", we further streamlined our internal processes and launched
a market-oriented reform across our subsidiaries. As well as helping to formulate and promote key national strategies and policies, we also
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devoted considerable resources to business planning for the 13th Five-Year Plan Period. To support our expanding operations, we continued to
diversify and optimize our financing capabilities, and made particular progress in the domestic and foreign issuance of Renminbi and foreign
currency denominated bonds. We explored using integrated and diversified financial services to bring public and private funds on board for
key sectors.

Tenacious Risk Management for Sustainable Growth

We bolstered Bank-wide risk management and control systems and refined our lending practices. We targeted risk in key areas by running
stress tests and applying Group-wide risk examinations, and tackled non-performing assets with innovative recovery methods and risk
mitigation. We also promoted risk management accountability and raised risk awareness among our staff. We ended the year with an NPL ratio
of 0.81% — a record under 1% we sustained for 43 consecutive quarters.

Tightened Discipline and Compliance-Based Management

We boosted compliance awareness and practice across the Bank, so as to ensure regulatory and legal compliance. We refined our mechanism
for promoting compliant and democratic decision-making, and further strengthened our internal auditing procedures to safeguard this vital
oversight function. We also optimized our incentive and performance appraisal systems to tap into the Bank’s potential for better management.

Stronger Competitiveness Boosted by Historically High Results

The total assets in 2015 amounted to RMB12 trillion, a new record high as the Bank continued to uphold the leading role in China’s medium-
and long-term financing and investment markets, as well as in China’s efforts to grow its overseas financing and investments.

2015 marked the successful end of the 12th Five-Year Plan Period for CDB. These five years have been an extraordinary period in our
twenty-plus-year history and we are proud of the social and economic progress made by development finance service. During these five years we:

Continued in our mission as a development finance institution. We strove to become a global leader in development finance by deepening
reforms, streamlining internal processes, enhancing our group management structure, and building a strong foundation for our future
development.

Made determined efforts to support national strategy. We made huge contributions to promoting China’s stable economic growth, structural
optimization and transformation, and improvement of the people’s livelihood. We consolidated CDB's role as a backbone financial institution in
China’s economic and social development.

Leveraged China’s position in the global market. As a staunch supporter of China’s “Go Global” and “One Belt, One Road” initiatives, we further
established CDB as a major player in the global financial market.

Enhanced our leading role as a bond issuer and underwriter. We introduced innovative bond offerings and issuing methods in the interbank
market. With a bond balance of over RMB7.3 trillion, we positioned CDB as China’s most innovative bond issuer, as well as the issuer with the
largest and most diversified portfolio.

Upheld the concept of scientific development and maintained sustainable growth. We sought to strike a balance between the strategic
importance, financial feasibility of different projects, and the sustainable development of our institution, with our total assets growing from
RMBS trillion to RMB12 trillion (an average of RMB1 billion per capita) and our NPL ratio remaining below 1%.

None of these achievements would be possible without the support of China’s central and local governments, governmental agencies,
shareholders, clients, countless individuals, and organizations — and of course the hard work of our CDB people. | express my utmost
gratitude to you all.

2016 marks the first year of China’s 13th Five-Year Plan and these will be five decisive years in China’s push to transform the nation into a
“moderately prosperous society in all aspects”. It is essential for us to take stock of China’s current juncture on its path of economic and
social development, and to understand what is expected of this current stage. We must consolidate our position as a development finance
institution, pursue a path of development that is innovative, coordinated, green, open, and shared by all, and strongly support China’s supply-
side structural reform. We must remain attuned to national strategic priorities and keep our efforts sustained and targeted. As we continue on
our journey to becoming a world-class development finance institution, we must give our utmost to China’s long-term economic and social
development, both now and in the future.

*
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20154 TAE[E
BATEHLEZF, BURBRRE, TMAESTE SRR, £ AXEE =
REAKEERIKF IEIME , XSS RE1,216{27T. KF TRH7971Z Total Assets RMB12.62 Trillion

T EN R BB R i R A T L 558k 2,53012 7T . 5 B3R
R 9191Z7T, BIFHR AT RGNS KRR MO,623127. B AK 12 62mzj_E
R4 RIRMARUBRGIZT, BRI I, BB LRK187Z .

SRR EREERIN100%, M2 RKZLT, XHISPETIR
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‘E‘Ki’[ﬁzﬂﬁﬁﬂo ?%%i?‘!%’b%%ﬁ]‘ﬁﬁ@?ﬁ*ﬁi ﬁﬂj(i‘fﬁ‘}l?éfﬁ%qﬂlbiﬁkﬂi Loan Balance RMB9.21 Trillion
EREXFNE, IERK. HELELEERBR.

SnEREARRS, SRR RAs s nnEs, sanrxae O 2 | s

FKBIL7,500127T, B EFM.84F. RKIERBE N RUSEFMH S &R
BRI ENLE], MSR 5 R RBUFDRE , MiF ST P K eUE i JI X # . Nk
NEREXMAXLEZFNE, PEBNREEXETREAALEEER
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ShE., Cumulative Recovery Rate
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Net Profit RMB102.788 Billion
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VeI A RMERTR, INFTHFHARER, KAOHNERSEERME  MF " —H 8 SRS,

— RUGERE. REFABETHEZTURAMRS I 8R. GR AREAFHEEX REL TSR
5 HHHIMEALESIHIRELFRR.

— RBUFTHGEEE ARSI AEARE BUUMSMELE, MRAMBENERE, REMHEPE L F L
R RIGZEWEKF.

— FERRREE., FERBEAQX, IEEXE T RAME, RPEHNETEANELE, FERASRERKE.

ERESZH HMESH. N —F ARETEERATHETEL EHED, NEREBERFHNEE LS, X
RS +=L"FAHREHFT. ATEERNRESEHTTTEN

In 2015, China Development Bank worked hard to support national policies to help sustain China’s stable economic growth, structural
optimization and transformation, and improvement of the people’s livelihood. As well, intensive implementation of the CDB Reform Plan
bolstered our management and operations and raised our performance in all areas. At the end of 2015, we had total assets of RMB12.62
trillion, a balance of loans of RMB9.21 trillion, and a cumulative recovery rate of 98.78% that continued to lead the industry for the sixteenth
consecutive year. We also further enhanced our sustainability and risk management, delivering a net profit of RMB102,788 million, ROA of
0.90%, ROE of 11.74%, and capital adequacy of 10.81%.

2015 REVIEW

Supporting the real economy. In 2015, we upped our provision of credit in a number of key areas through improved resource planning and
allocation. For example, we enabled key national infrastructure projects with RMB121.6 billion in railway loans and RMB79.7 billion for water
projects. We promoted medium- and high-end industrial upgrading with RMB253 billion of loans made to strategic emerging industries and
RMB191.9 billion to energy saving and environmental protection initiatives. We applied development finance to poverty alleviation with a
balance of loans of RMB962.3 billion, and bettered countless livelihoods by issuing RMB32.6 billion in loans for agricultural modernization,
RMB18.7 billion in education loans (covering all higher education institutions in China), and emergency loans of RMB9.4 billion for disaster
relief efforts across 15 provinces and municipalities.

Promoting balanced regional development. We pooled resources to support the “development of western regions”, the new round of
“industrial revitalization of northeast China”, and the “rise of central regions”; devised new solutions for the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region;
delivered increased urban infrastructure funding to the Yangtze River Economic Zone; and adopted preferential credit policies for development
in Tibet and Xinjiang.

Financing urban renewal. We continued to support urban renewal programs — a strategic priority for CDB — with more than RMB750
billion in urban renewal loans, 1.84 times more than that in 2014. By cooperating more closely with the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Construction and local governments, we worked to develop synergies with government agencies and to better align our lending activities with
local renewal plans. We also increased our funding in disadvantaged regions, with 62% of loans bound for central and western regions, and
northeast China. We helped reduce real estate inventory through monetized relocation solutions, and promoted innovative financing methods,
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including those for government procurement services. We also stepped up our efforts to incorporate public and private funding via combined
bonds and loans, as well as through syndication loans and other channels.

Deepening international cooperation. In 2015, we grew CDB’s global exposure by bolstering international partnerships on strategic planning
and financing. For example, we devoted extensive resources to a series of high-profile projects along the “One Belt, One Road” route, including
the overseas high-speed railway and nuclear power projects sponsored by Chinese technologies or investments. We also carried out numerous
international exchanges and expanded our cooperation within both bilateral and multilateral frameworks, such as BRICS Interbank Cooperation
Mechanism and Shanghai Cooperation Organization Interbank Association. Our global presence was further boosted by management reforms
in our overseas operations and the opening of our London Representative Office.

Enhancing bond issuance and financing practices. We promoted CDB bonds in the primary and secondary markets by building a complete
product portfolio with benchmark, floating rate, and extra long-term bonds, and by securing issuance channels across the interbank market,
bank counters, and exchanges. Meanwhile, the listing of USD1 billion USD-denominated bonds and EUR500 million Euro-denominated bonds
on the London Stock Exchange was a breakthrough moment for CDB in terms of multi-currency funding.

Reinforcing integrated financing capabilities. We fostered greater synergies between CDB and its subsidiaries, delivering diversified services
to key sectors and projects. We scaled up our offerings of securitized products, issuing 11 such products worth RMB101.3 billion, and we
maintained our leading position in the bond underwriting market with a cumulative of RMB759.65 billion for the year. By offering bonds at an
average interest rate 23 basis points lower than the market average, we helped lower financing costs in the real economy.

Leveraging the role of strategic planning. We were actively involved in formulating national strategies and policies, including China’s 13th
Five-Year Plan, the “One Belt, One Road” initiative, the coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, and the Yangtze River
Economic Zone. To better position ourselves for future growth, we designed our business plan for the 13th Five-Year Plan Period and strove to
align planning across our group, specific initiatives, branches and subsidiaries.

Strengthening risk management across the Bank. We stepped up our efforts to build review capability and optimize approval processes,
and tightened risk control for key clients and business areas. We also resolved non-performing assets by flexible use of variety means, and
introduced a multi-tiered NPL resolution mechanism. We fine-tuned our internal audit system, so as to optimize internal oversight and support
CDB’s future development.

Enhancing operations and management. We strengthened asset and liability management, enhanced our foreign currency funding and
liquidity management, and refined our comprehensive pricing mechanisms. We also improved financial and capital discipline with refined
management. Last but not least, to strengthen operational safety and improve operational efficiency, we upgraded key business IT systems
and computerized operations.

2016 PROSPECTS

In the coming year, CDB will continue in its mission to strengthening China’s competitiveness and improving people’s livelihood. We will also
remain committed to development finance so as to support economic and social development in China.

Supporting supply-side structural reform. We will prioritize financing for major national infrastructure projects, including urban renewal,
railways, and water projects. We will promote industrial innovation, transformation and upgrades, aid poverty alleviation, and will promote
international cooperation by delivering financial services to China’s “One Belt, One Road” initiative.

Synergizing business management and operations. By leveraging our cross-market and diversified financing capabilities, we will develop
synergies between investments and loans, bonds and loans, and leasing and lending activities. We will empower the real economy by offering
more varied financial services, channeling public and private funds, and encouraging resource pooling with peer financial institutions.

Boosting asset and liability management. We will raise CDB’s overall profitability by diversifying financing channels, bolstering our budgeting
and financial planning, improving internal and external pricing practices, and promoting intermediary services.

Upholding risk management and internal control. We will apply strict criteria to project development; enhance risk-based research,
monitoring, forecasting, and early warning systems; promote greater accountability; and maintain our asset quality threshold.

The way forward has been mapped out and now is the time to chart our course towards bigger success. | am confident that the entire CDB
family will take ownership of the challenges that lie ahead of us and, by striving for better results, will pledge our concrete support to China’s
new 13th Five-Year Plan and its goal for building a “moderately prosperous society in all aspects”.

2
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XigE BKEK
Liu Meisheng
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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MESSAGE FROM THE SUPERVISORY CHAIRMAN

20156, FRMBITHESBNZRBMEHNENASREERR IEETEMEERRT.
VIR AR RIOTARUAETREFLBAFMARXRESIE RESEFES. R ETEE
MRRIRA® . B EE).,

Nl B

ERKEEES oA EEERHARRSEREE, REENEE DMREFTXRTHNERRTREREERE
S FERERNN . RAFRM S AR EE, OFTBMSEREL. ExTUENRER. AL EETES
ROMNEREITEERNELFER RAMSETIRIFE. NEEREEEN. AEGIRRH#E—FPxE. B
HELXRMAEEREER/DDAREY, RHBERMBIN, EFhRELEER. BN, TEMNRNESESE
B,RUCMERERESFERESHTH, IRERMLESHNFS BABRREENTIVEN, BFthRiBASIEE
JE ¥ B9ER R .

In 2015, the Board of Supervisors remained committed to building a balanced corporate governance system and carrying out its supervisory
responsibilities as defined by the applicable rules and laws. It monitored the implementation of the CDB Reform Plan and coordinated related
initiatives, working closely with the Board of Directors and Executive Management team.

The Board of Supervisors shadowed and delivered impartial assessments on the work of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management
team, and their individual members, to ensure their focus on supporting national priorities, enhancing legal and regulatory compliance, and
tackling challenges relating to CDB's internal reform and development.

The Board of Supervisors also exercised vigorous oversight over CDB's financial performance, risk management, and internal controls. To
safeguard stable financial operations, effective risk management, and the continued improvement of internal controls, we monitored key
financial indicators, risk management in key areas, accountability, and responses to audit and regulatory opinions.

As part of our oversight duties, we conducted in-depth research into critical challenges in CDB’s reform, development, and routine operations,
enabling us to provide pertinent recommendations and fine-tune our oversight function.

Meanwhile, to further enable the Board of Supervisors in its role, we built on our existing capabilities by carrying out in-depth studies of the
economic and financial landscape in China and overseas, familiarizing ourselves with new areas of finance, and enhancing our relevant
professional competencies.



20 / #E= LT SREEEMRRMATLER / PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

EF OFE SAEEERRMETER

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

BE
Board of Directors

RE 15 HEEA {EERRT 8]

Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
R EEK NOEF 5 1955%F09H 20134E04 5
Hu Huaibang Chairman, Executive Director M September 1955 April 2013
BzA BESK HITES % 195840578 20124E10H
Zheng Zhijie Vice Chairman, Executive Director M May 1958 October 2012
EE FHTES % 1963114 2008%F12H
Zhang Shude Non-Executive Director M November 1963 December 2008
R4 EHMITES 5 195240718 2012£F09H
Pang Jiying Non-Executive Director M July 1952 September 2012
R4HE FHTEE 5 19574E09H 20124038
Huang Weijia Non-Executive Director M September 1957 March 2012
S FEMTES 3 19734074 20124E03 B
Huang Hao Non-Executive Director M July 1973 March 2012
AR FRTESE 5 19584E03H 20144085
Li Shaogang Non-Executive Director M March 1958 August 2014
MR FEMTES 3 19594127 20154E05 8
Mi Jingping Non-Executive Director M December 1959 May 2015
F 4 FHTEE % 19624 01H 2015%F05H4
Yin Chun Non-Executive Director M January 1962 May 2015
Bz M ERTES % 19494F06 A 20124F09R
Chen Xiaoyun Independent Non-Executive Director F June 1949 September 2012

e
Board of Supervisors

i RE 1 HEEFER {EERRS 18]
Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
X4 BEK 5 19565128 20144E01 8
Liu Meisheng Chairman M December 1956 January 2014
REE BERFES -3 1958407 B 20084127
Leng Xiangyang Shareholder Representative Supervisor M July 1958 December 2008
= 1B BRERRES 3 19594018 20144128
Li  Fu Shareholder Representative Supervisor M January 1959 December 2014
#A/]N B RIRKES %« 1960F 118 20144028
Hu Xiaoming Employee Representative Supervisor F November 1960 February 2014
O % RIRKES % 19614045 20084128
Hu Hongzhuan Employee Representative Supervisor F April 1961 December 2008
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SEREEAR
Executive Management

BR% HEER EERH 8]

Title of Position Date of Birth In Office Since
MWz A (RS % 19584054 2012%F 108
Zheng Zhijie President M May 1958 October 2012
THR4% EIESR:S % 1958401 A4 20114018
Wang Yongsheng Executive Vice President M January 1958 January 2011
BAEE BT 5 19624£09A 20164E08 B
Zhou Qingyu Executive Vice President M September 1962 August 2016
T EE EIESRS x 1965406 A 20155088
Ding Xiangqun Executive Vice President F June 1965 August 2015
KB EIERRS 5 19644108 20134E108
Zhang Xuguang Executive Vice President M October 1964 October 2013
E K EIESRS 3 19684104
Cai Dong Executive Vice President M October 1968
B R EESWB 3 1962407 B 2008 12H
Chen Min Secretary of the Board of Directors M July 1962 December 2008
3l HEEREE 5 19574078 2014401 8
Yang Wengi Chief Risk Officer M July 1957 January 2014

*ERAMEGFRESLE.

The qualification of the new executive vice president is subject to approval by the CBRC.

EX KENSREEETIHER
CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
EXETIHER

Changes in the Board of Directors
ZART015FEF RGN REASTHIBEL FRBESZ
e BMRT . FABERTERTES,

#RE2016F1 BERFEERTERITES.

As discussed and adopted at the first extraordinary meeting of
shareholders in 2015 and approved by the CBRC, Mi Jingping and
Yin Chun were elected as non-executive directors of the Bank.

Luo Mi no longer served as non-executive director effective from
January 2016.

BREEETIHENR

Changes in the Executive Management
ZRAFTERER06FENRASWHFINBIFRRESZ
K, ATREZBIEABENERTEITK.
BATERR0IFEARSTWHNBIFRRES
£, TRBEHEEATEITK.

Hp
=

BATEER016FE LR WHINABY, BREEAT
BT, AREREFRES .
ETREITKEST Y. RO BRFT 03 H20155F128
2016457 . 20156 B R ABIEEATEITK.

ATEREFFEITE R4S EB2016E68 £ A HIBEARTT
BEitE.

As discussed and adopted at the fourth meeting of the Board
of Directors in 2016 and approved by the CBRC, former chief

compliance officer Zhou Qingyu was elected as executive vice
president of the Bank.

As discussed and adopted at the sixth meeting of the Board of
Directors in 2015 and approved by the CBRC, Ding Xiangqun was
elected as executive vice president of the Bank.

As discussed and adopted at the fifth meeting of the Board of
Directors in 2016, Cai Dong was elected as executive vice president
of the Bank. The qualification of the new executive vice president is
subject to approval by the CBRC.

Former executive vice presidents Li Jiping, Yuan Li and Zhao
Xiaoyu no longer served as executive vice presidents effective from
December 2015, May 2016 and June 2015 respectively.

Former chief audit officer Chen Jizhong no longer served as chief
audit officer effective from June 2016.

BRI

Staff

BHZE20155E K, Af7HH R T8,838A, H, 98%H R T
BAREU LR, 63%RTHMAERRERMEZER.

At the end of 2015, the Bank had a workforce of 8,838 people,

of which 98% held a bachelor's degree or higher and 63% held a
master’s degree or higher.
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EF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

HATRFR BEK MES
Hu Huaibang Chairman, Executive Director

Mz BESK NTES
Zheng Zhijie Vice Chairman, Executive Director

= ERTEE
Zhang Shude Non-Executive Director

[ 4k FHRTESE
Pang Jiying Non-Executive Director

wUE FRTEE
Huang Weijia Non-Executive Director




Z AN ERTEE
Li Shaogang Non-Executive Director

MR
Mi Jingping

F o4 emmES
Yin Chun Non-Executive Director

Bz

Chen Xiaoyun

" R FRTES
Huang Hao Non-Executive Director

FHTESE

Non-Executive Director

M ERITES

Independent Non-Executive Director

/
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

X4 BEK

Liu Meisheng Chairman of the Supervisory Board

e Cibes BERFLE
Leng Xiangyang Shareholder Representative Supervisor

F B’ mrEnRk

Li  Fu Shareholder Representative Supervisor

#/)\BA RIfKLE
Hu Xiaoming Employee Representative Supervisor

AR RIREKLS
Hu Hongzhuan Employee Representative Supervisor




EREEAR
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

M2 A 7K
Zheng Zhijie President

ERE CIEERS
Wang Yongsheng Executive Vice President

BiEE K
Zhou Qingyu Executive Vice President

T [ B BTk

Ding Xiangqun Executive Vice President

/
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SREEAR
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Cai Dong

3l
Yang Wenqi

KBS BT

Zhang Xuguang Executive Vice President

CIEERS
Executive Vice President

Br R #HswB
Chen Min Secretary of the Board of Directors

HERKE
Chief Risk Officer
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RATHIEZRFIFRIFR

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDERS

20155 7R, BN EERE HR AL BRMR AL B MITEAS ( U TERERK RS ) X AR{TIEHI80{ZETT,
FH A17114,636,955,9878% , AFTR My 5 EUE R F1306,711,400,395 % 1 fin £ 421,248,365,382f% .
In July 2015, the State Foreign Exchange Reserves made a capital injection of USD48 billion to the Bank through Buttonwood

Investment Holding Company Ltd. (BIH), and acquired 114,536,955,987 shares in the Bank, which increased the total shares of the
Bank from 306,711,409,395 shares to 421,248,365,382 shares.

BEl, RTRARVER. PRCERAFRIEAS (U THHRLEAT) FRANAINEELEREESEES (I
THEHRHRESEES). BE2015FK, BRERFRERIL TR

CDB's shareholders are the Ministry of Finance (MoF), Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Huijin), BIH and the National Council for Social
Security Fund (NCSSF). Their shareholdings as at 31 December 2015 are shown as follows:

R AR BREH () FERREL 51

Shareholders Number of Shares (Shares) % of Total
i

ﬁ'ﬂi Hp : 153,908,000,000 36.54%

Ministry of Finance

L&AE

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. 146,092,000,000 34.68%

AR A i

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. 1l41ElEle Bled S 211050

HRESEBES .

National Council for Social Security Fund BT AL B 1.59%

ait 421,248,365,382 100.00%

Total ,246,369, .

TBER A E SR A R ER] RER T EMBUIL . MRBGREE . MBUEES TENEYIRERT,

LA RRE(HTEARKTERASE)AERH A RIMNEFRA LS, REESREN, MHATARRKKERK
ENERERERMAWTEERANMNMBTEREANS, KUERSRA & REEE.

AR A S ERE(PTEARFKNEASE)AEFINLCEERERRIMNEMRTEAS, TBNEHRINIE . RN, R
N EE BREAURATZALEE. RAEE.

HEEZSHEESESEAHSRBEESHERSZENMN, YESHRERFLEN HESRERNS. FEXESKRIES

B AR TRy IS

The MoF is the macro regulatory arm of the State Council, and is responsible for managing the state's fiscal income and expenditure,
formulating fiscal and tax policies and exercising fiscal supervision, among other things.

Huijin is a wholly state-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China.
As authorized by the State Council, it represents the state’s interests as an investor in key state-owned financial institutions, and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, helps ensure the preservation and appreciation of the state’s financial assets.

BIH is a limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China. It is solely funded by
the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, and mainly engaged in investments in domestic and overseas projects, equity investments, debt
investments, fund investments, loan investments, and asset management and investment.

The NCSSF is the operational arm of the National Social Security Fund, and is also directly under the leadership of the State Council, as well
as under the supervision of the State Council or its authorized agencies.



28 / AFENAEIRE / CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ARREHRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ARIRIESRKY
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

20156, ATTMBRERFR—RAR M SRIMAXREF, ZREIARSHLVHEMNER, NRASAEERENER,
TERFZRENE, ASESREIE ERBARARE AT BEBNH. =2—F &SHR HEEE RERETHENES.
EESNFHEERAR BERSRRLEERST, SATEERMREH, WA TR TRRAR, HEEDRTHELR.

In 2015, as part of its efforts to build a world-class development finance institution and in accordance with the best practices of modern
financial institutions, the Bank continued to improve corporate governance, decision-making and the compliance and efficiency of its
banking operations, so as to establish best practices and processes for its decision-making, execution and supervision. Each and all the
four key components of corporate governance faithfully execute their respective duties and work closely together, as the general meetings of
shareholders provides powerful guidance, the Board of Directors makes prudent and enlightened decisions, the Board of Supervisors performs
vigilant and rigorous supervision and the Executive Management diligently lead the Bank to overcome challenges and deliver solid results; and
they inspire our people to aim higher and collectively drive forward our reform and development.

BEXS

General Meetings of Shareholders

BEERRSRAEBEAL O rEs
Strategy and Investment Commlttee) Board of Directors Board of Supervisors

Pl — SREER

Audit Committee P Executive Management

REEEREAL,
KEBEEBEZERS erformance of Fiduciary Duties
Risk Management Committee Supervision Committee

KEXZHEHNERS _— H5SAMEFEEZERS
Related Party Transactions Committee Finance and Internal Control
J Supervision Committee

AESHFMERS -

Personnel and Remuneration Committee

BREXS

GENERAL MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS

20158 ATHBTREER IR MNRERROR. ERFFX L HIEBET2014EEY S RE. 2015FEEWSME.
ROBANARTEmGSE BRAOISERSITMESF. EE2TIERE. BERTHEREFI12NE. ERNRERS
L HREEEREK A SIARAT. RTERIMING GRS KITRMARTRFFI2IUER, ERSWN BB THEE
ERER. REREFSIFTENAL



The Bank held one annual general meeting and six extraordinary
general meetings of shareholders in 2015. In the annual general
meeting, 12 proposals were deliberated, approved and adopted,
including 2014 financial statements, 2015 financial budgets,
domestic issuance of Renminbi financial bonds, the appointment
of its external auditing firm of 2015, and work reports of the Board
of Directors and Board of Supervisors, among others. In the
extraordinary general meetings, 12 proposals were deliberated,
approved and adopted, including capital injection by BIH, domestic
and overseas issuance of foreign currency-denominated bonds,
and overseas issuance of Renminbi bonds. Each and every meeting
complied with the due process and ensured the proper participation
of shareholders and their exercise of rights.

BES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EESHBRRENZERSRE

Directors and Committees

Bl ATESSHIOBRESHMR. E ., EFKEHPNKRFT
B RESKHRBZABE, TES2R, 815 HIRFD.
MzA EFRTEETE, BF. EWE. BERE B4 E
BR AN MR B4 MUESEIE. R, EES
WE.BR.

EESTREBARSRAEEZAS HIFERAS. Nk
EEZRAR XEXZEFZRS. AFSHFHZRZR. &
ENERENEESOAR LEFZLBN, AEFSRMBET
VRN L W EMHETRE,

The Board of Directors (the Board) consists of ten members,
including Hu Huaibang as the Chairman and Zheng Zhijie as the Vice
Chairman. Among these members, there are two executive directors,
namely Hu Huaibang and Zheng Zhijie; seven non-executive
directors, namely Zhang Shude, Pang Jiying, Huang Weijia, Huang
Hao, Li Shaogang, Mi Jingping and Yin Chun; and one independent
non-executive director, Chen Xiaoyun. The secretary of the Board is
Chen Min.

H

palil

There are five committees under the Board of Directors, namely
the Strategy and Investment Committee, Audit Committee, Risk
Management Committee, Related Party Transactions Committee
and the Personnel and Remuneration Committee. These committees
report directly to the Board and, as authorized by the Board, advise
the Board or make decisions on issues in their respective specialized
areas.

BEESMIRRRIEE

Duties and Operation of the Board of Directors
EFEESRIBEE. TBUEM. ASENATLAIEZENE, M
BRERSRIEIZATERIRN,

The Board performs its duties in compliance with applicable laws,
administrative rules and regulations, provisions of the Bank’s Articles

of Association, and the resolutions and authorization of the general
meetings of shareholders.
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BEESDW
Board Meetings
20156, EFSRBATRADEREHEER, XEHE
SEWI0R, BRI ERM A ARARTT. EREREK
W RFA, 2014FEMFRE. 2015FEMEME. K
FERIAIITES. EA0ISEESITINESF. %
SHEVRMSERGTHEFBINE. BRAEFESET
NZERERWIOK, FIGBISIILE, TS E NG EIE,
WMEIET. EHRE. HEEE. AREITFERLR,
In accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association and other
relevant rules and regulations, the Board held ten meetings in
2015, and deliberated and adopted 43 proposals, including capital
injection by BIH, establishment of London Representative Office,
2014 financial statements, 2015 financial budgets, domestic and
overseas issuance of Renminbi and foreign currency-denominated
bonds, the appointment of the Bank's external auditing firm of 2015,
and the interim financial management measures for CDB Housing
Finance, among others. The Board’s sub-committees held ten
meetings, deliberated and adopted five proposals, and heard reports
on the Bank'’s enterprise-wide risk management, financial operations,

compliance risk, internal controls, and internal audit, among other
things.

EESUBREARASRINITIER
Execution of the Resolutions of the General Meetings of
Shareholders

BEEQINE . £H. FRIBRT T ATERSHABFHK
FARSEWRE AR,
The Board carefully, completely, and rigorously executed the

resolutions adopted by the general meetings of shareholders held
during the reporting period.

EESFETE

Principal Activities and Achievements of the Board

20156, EEREFARROT AL SRIMEMTL R
JiE, B EERE, SARABERME . RENE. 7717
HEANNGE— EREFXABEZFLTARTRUMETR.
EFPHIT R SRV ECLRKIPHRE, TRINOER.
EHEREIT LS. ERCEEERFTIE, REF
KRR ALHNER, RSB EBMBERES  NRE
BRI, ETPABRXHERAEMEATEBR. XFNH
VYRR, fUERRIMIFRTIR, KIMTFRL ST
K, MR SHOREEE, HEHEARIBE, RUEEM S &
R AENTERRSMIEERF, BUELAERE. SEEN
REEEETE 22 ENEERERMEN, EINELR
REEREH Re2RANKREERIR, TELSIEEN
#l. Rt ABEREENEFEATEER LR, 58
BEECRERNER MAENERSAREN, RITHE
BES R EAF BN ELE. BRERUENERN ST
REBIRF RHEEENELE. B TASNE RHT
RETEATGE, BT LA THUEEMEEKE,
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In 2015, the Board of Directors made dedicated efforts in maintaining
its position and focus as a development finance institution, and
making enlightened and prudent business as well as strategic
decisions, to enable the Bank to achieve optimal alignment of the
interests of the state, shareholders and the Bank.

The Board facilitated the implementation of the CDB Reform Plan,
including further clarification of its positioning as a development
finance institution, re-affirmation of its long-term credit rating, and
completion of the capital injection from the State Administration of
Foreign Exchange; and further advanced the revision of its Articles
of Association, optimization of its business divisions, and the
implementation of differentiated regulatory assessment. The Board
led the Bank to leverage unrivalled position as an industry leader in
medium- and long-term investment and financing, support national
strategic priorities and policies, improve efficiency in credit supply,
and focus resources to support key areas and major projects. The
Board approved the Bank’s plan for bond issuance both on-shore
and off-shore and maintained stable growth of its deposit base, thus
promoting the Bank's liability business.

The Board continued to strengthen the Bank's financial budgeting
to help the Bank better control its costs and improve efficiency,
and helped optimize its financial resources; promoted the Bank's
network building at home and abroad, and strengthened its strategic
business unit management; remained highly alert to and made
strong efforts to improve the Bank’s risk management, including
further enhancement of the Bank’s enterprise-wide risk management
system and framework, the implementation of risk management
accountability, and heightening the risk awareness of every member
of the workforce.

The Board further enhanced the Bank’'s corporate governance,
including the improvement of the basic rules and procedures, such
as internal controls, further strengthened its governance capability,
optimized the composition of the sub-committees, and improved
the Bank’s internal audit capability and facilitated the reform and
implementation of the Bank’s internal audit system; organized
extensive and in-depth researches and studies on key areas and key
businesses and products to improve the Bank's compliance; and
deepened the reform of the Banks subsidiaries to help them improve
their corporate governance and improve their sophistication and
ability to more effectively respond to market changes.

BEX

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
BERERRENZERRIRE

Supervisors and Committees

RITHEESHSBEFHEM, Hd, BEKBXNBEEE,
BARRFEEIE, B XiE4E. AriF =6 RIAKR
K=o, GFE. /R AT,

ERTRERRREEZRZNMSSABEFEESR
S BEZASRELEESREDITRIE WEESNR.

pali:

The Board of Supervisors consists of five members, including Liu
Meisheng as Chairman, three shareholder representative supervisors,
namely Liu Meisheng, Leng Xiangyang and Li Fu, and two employee

representative supervisors, namely Hu Xiaoming and Hu Hongzhuan.

There are two committees under the Board of Supervisors, namely
the Performance of Fiduciary Duties Supervision Committee and
the Finance and Internal Control Supervision Committee. Both
committees carry out their respective duties as authorized by and
report to the Board of Supervisors.
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Duties and Operation of the Board of Supervisors
BESREFEZR. TBZER. AEMEATLAIEENE. U
ERERSFRWBEIRRITERN.

The Board of Supervisors performs its duties in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations and provisions of the Bank's Articles

of Association, and within the resolutions and authorizations of the
general meetings of shareholders.
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Meetings of the Board of Supervisors
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In accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association and relevant

rules and regulations, the Board of Supervisors convened five times

and its sub-committees convened eight times in 2015 to deliberate

and adopt 24 proposals, including 2014 performance assessment

of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management and their

members, 2014 financial statements, 2015 financial budgets, and
work report of the Board of Supervisors.
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Principal Activities and Achievements of the Board of
Supervisors
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In 2015, the Board of Supervisors increased its efforts in regular
oversight and made use of a wider array of methods and techniques
to more effectively meet its oversight duties. While focusing on
monitoring the compliance of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Management with relevant laws and regulations as well
as heightening the compliance awareness cross the Bank, the
Board of Supervisors made the shift from process-based oversight
to substance-based oversight. It stayed updated about the key
financial indicators, the mitigation of material risk exposures and
internal control implementation and compliance across the Bank,
completed its assessment of the performance in 2014 of the Board
of Directors, the Executive Management and their members and the
review of 2014 financial statements, and offered its comments and
recommendations where appropriate.

The Board of Supervisors faithfully implemented the requirements of
the State Council and other departments regarding the heightening
of oversight of overseas operations, and completed its on-site
inspection of the overseas network. In addition to its regular
oversight, it also conducted special research projects, namely
internal control and risk mitigation for village banks, risk control and
mitigation of major group clients, risk control over financial vehicle
platforms, economic responsibility audit and the implementation of
risk accountability, and impact analysis of local debt replacement. As
part of its self-improvement, the Board of Supervisors organized two
workshops to heighten their oversight competence so as to better
improve corporate governance and support the robust development
and growth.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
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The Bank’s Executive Management, consisting of the president and
other senior executives, reports directly to the Board of Directors.
The president performs his duties in accordance with applicable
laws, administrative rules and regulations, and the Bank’s Articles
of Association, and as sanctioned by the general meetings of
shareholders and the Board of Directors.
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INTERNATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL
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In order to broaden its international vision and accelerate its
progress towards becoming a world-class bank, the Bank set up
its International Advisory Council (the Council) in 1999. The Council
members are all international leading figures in the political, financial
and academic communities. The Council meets once a year to
discuss hot topics relating to economic and financial developments
in China and around the world and other issues of interest, and share
insights on the Bank’s major operational and development issues,
in order to advise the Bank and provide recommendations on its
development strategies as well as its operations and management.

The Council convened its 16th meeting in October 2015 in Beijing,
and the members engaged in extensive and in-depth discussions
on various topics, including the worldwide economic and financial
landscape, and the role of development finance in the “One Belt,
One Road” initiative, making further contributions to the continued
robust growth of the Bank with practical recommendations on the
implementation of the CDB Reform Plan, improvement of banking
operation and management, and promotion of business development
of the Bank.
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INTERNAL AUDIT
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In 2015, aligning with its corporate governance requirements, the
Bank completed the adjustments and streamlining of its internal audit
system and mechanisms, further enhanced the capability of internal
audit function to discharge its duties and deliver value, and reinforced
the objectivity and independence of internal audit work. Principal
activities and achievements of the internal audit function include:
audited the urban renewal loan portfolio to facilitate the implementation
of the state’s key strategies; completed the audit on the write-off and
disposal of non-performing loans, and review of bond underwriting and
other areas to help enhance risk control across the Bank; conducted
comprehensive audit on the business operation and management of
five subsidiaries in 2014 in an effort to promote the compliance across
subsidiaries; in accordance with regulatory requirements and as part of
the priorities of the Bank, conducted audit on foreign exchange funds,
Hong Kong Branch and IT infrastructure, as well as 2014 internal control
assessment; further enhanced the rules and procedures for auditing the
economic responsibilities of senior executives and managers, handled
whistleblowing complaints and misconduct reporting from the public
in an open and transparent manner, and improved the effectiveness of
social and public oversight, so as to enhance the compliance of the
senior executives and management in their exercise of power and the
practices and rigour of governing the Bank based on an higher level of
compliance; proactively supported the National Audit Office’s efforts to
leverage audits to facilitate the stable growth of the national economy;
and increased researches and studies on audit policies to promote the
building of the Group’s audit system.
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Overview
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In 2015, the Bank rigorously implemented the state’s macro policies, strongly supported the efforts to sustain China’s stable economic growth,
structural optimization and transformation, and improvement of the people’s livelihood, and made concrete progress in implementing its

CDB Reform Plan, and thanks to these solid efforts, the Bank was able to deliver encouraging business indicators and further improved its
sustainability and risk management capability. The Bank reported a ROA of 0.90%, and ROE of 11.74%.

T4
Profit Analysis
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Income and Expenses

ARTEATHESLE
Million RMB or %
b=y N
':'jkﬂflﬂ ) 131,416 128,881 2,535 1.97%
Operating Profit
CF B
Hef ARG 158,357 178,690 (20,333) (11.38%)
Net Interest Income
i'*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ;%&.]\ 12,953 13,938 (985) (7.07%)
Fee and Commission Income, net
L >
RAME 25,428 23,779 1,649 6.93%
Investment Income
NRMEZEH R
Fair Value Gains/(Losses) ez 1 Lees (leEr)
oL 5 i 56,335 (4,837) 61,172 (1,264.67%)
Foreign Exchange Gains/(Losses) ’ ' ' B
B S R KR o
Business Tax and Surcharges Tl Ry (R 7.73%
ﬁ}tﬁﬁh—"g& (72,698) (56,365) (16,333) 28.98%
Impairment Losses on Assets
VEREER o
General and Administrative Expenses 1 (e () 8.13%
Hethdlh 505N
Other Income, net (189) 2,790 (2,979) (106.77%)
. =
EU SR () 3,837 122 3,715 3,045.08%
Net Non-operating Income/(Losses)
FrigRiee A (32,465) (31,320) (1,145) 3.66%
Income Tax Expense
R 9
Net Profit 102,788 97,683 5,105 5.23%
FA9F =
Return on Average Assets 0.90% 1.06% (0.16%) (15.09%)
F BRI R 11.74% 15.63% (3.89%) (24.89%)

Return on Average Equity
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In 2015, the operating income of the Bank continued to grow steadily, enabling the Bank to produce an operating profit of RMB131,416 million,
up 1.97% from the previous year.

As the principal source of income, net interest income of the year was RMB158,357 million, and down 11.38% from the previous year due to
the shrinking of interest margins. The net fee and commission income also decreased by RMB985 million due to the implementation of policies
to reduce service fees. Foreign exchange gains increased by RMB61.17 billion from the previous year following the significant depreciation of
Renminbi against the US dollars.

In the year, the Bank advanced its international presence and cooperation, and employed foreign exchange derivative instruments to hedge
part of its exchange exposures.
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Interest-bearing Assets, Interest-bearing Liabilities and Changes in Average Interest Rates
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Million RMB or % +/()
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Average Interest Average Interest Average Interest
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

ERHE

Interest-bearing Assets
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Balance with Central Bank and 1,271,249 1.78% 1,192,892 3.06% 78,357 (1.28%)
Other Financial Institutions

FHEAE

Due from Other Banks
INBESRA =R HAM
Securities Purchased under Resale 729,280 2.87% 554,532 3.95% 174,748 (1.12%)
Agreements and Other
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Loans and Advances

RABE

Debt Investment

&it

Total
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Interest-bearing Liabilities
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Deposits from Other Financial Institutions
=B H SR (AR

Borrowings from Governments and 447,563 2.67% 457,674 2.70% (10,111) (0.03%)
Other Financial Institutions

R U 3R

Deposits

RiTRE B RR RS

Debt Securities and Subordinated Debts in Issue
Hth

Other

&it

Total
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Net Interest Margin

50,045 2.43% 49,473 3.58% 572 (0.56%)

8,533,679 5.25% 7,585,836 5.84% 947,843 (0.59%)

610,675 1.68% 217,945 2.66% 392,731 (0.98%)

11,194,928 4.50% 9,600,678 5.30% 1,694,250 (0.80%)

1,311,243 3.03% 1,101,753 3.50% 209,490 (0.47%)

1,303,643 0.79% 970,059 1.03% 333,584 (0.24%)

6,693,282 4.16% 6,191,177 4.33% 502,105 (0.17%)

76,144 5.53% 56,600 2.90% 19,544 2.63%

9,831,874 3.51% 8,777,263 3.77% 1,054,611 (0.26%)

1.41% 1.86% 0 (0.44%)
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Financial Position Analysis
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As at 31 December 2015, the Bank's total assets amounted to RMB12,619,675 million, up 22.32% from the previous year. As the core assets
of the Bank, its loans represented 70.25% of the total assets. At the year end, net loans and advances amounted to RMB8,865,360 million,
up 15.59% from the previous year, including a net balance of Renminbi loans of RMB7,190,454 million and a net balance of foreign currency-
denominated loans of RMB1,674,906 million, up 17.74% and 7.22% respectively from the previous year.

As at 31 December 2015, the Bank’s total liabilities amounted to RMB11,549,418 million, up 19.85% from the previous year. As the principal
source of its funding, the balance of its bonds at the year end was RMB7,301,372 million, up 14.92% from the previous year and representing
63.22% of the total liabilities.
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Financial Position

ARTEATHEDL
Million RMB or %
/o
Arait 12,619,675 10,317,030 2,302,645 22.32%
Total Assets
M e R AFMARAT R E W TR
Cash, Balances with the Central Bank and 860,656 1,062,426 (201,770) (18.99%)
Other Financial Institutions
IR B R

BB B LR 8,865,360 7,669,351 1,196,009 15.59%
Loans and Advances
N
IES5 A - 1,212,439 289,129 923,310 319.34%
Investment Securities
Rite 1,681,220 1,296,124 385,096 29.71%
Other
ket
Ay 2y =) o,
Total Liabilities 11,549,418 9,636,190 1,913,228 19.85%
RiTtR%E
Debt Securities Issued 7,301,372 6,353,559 947,813 14.92%
He REHRFH
Subordinated Debt Securities Issued e 96,587 (19,877) (20.58%)
&) B & F EE:N
R BURS F SL A <2 RRATLID 550 o - 355,275 451,373 (96,098) (21.29%)
Borrowings from Governments and Financial Institutions
& F R R & 1F K
Due to Other Banks and Customers el 2,496,188 864,229 34.62%
At 532,354 335,070 197,284 58.88%
Other
RN A .
Total Shareholders’ Equity 1,070,257 680,840 389,417 57.20%
B

) 421,248 306,711 114,537 37.34%
Share Capital
3,# N\ R @1,\/\ ,E{
AAARHBRA 262,600 57,789 204,811 354.41%
Capital Reserve and Surplus Reserve
_ﬁQMB&/%Eﬁ - 147,064 124,740 22,324 17.90%
General Risk Provisions
4 EFIHR LA .
Undistributed Profit and Other Equity Rl 178,369 55,043 80.86%
7| o g
DEBRER S 5,933 13,231 (7,298) (55.16%)

Minority Interests
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Asset Quality
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Given the economic and financial conditions at home and abroad in 2015, there was a general increase in the level of non-performing loans
among domestic banks. Through effective risk control, the Bank maintained a robust level of its asset quality. The cumulative recovery of
principals and interests was 98.78%, and the NPL ratio was 0.81%, 0.16 percentage points higher than that in the beginning of 2015. In the
year, the Bank also made provisions of RMB72,569 million for loan losses, and with an allowance for loan losses ratio of 3.71%, was able to
further improve its risk control and mitigation.
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Quality of Loan Assets
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Million RMB or %

Total Loans and Advances

FRERRE
Non-performing Loan Balance

ERr e
Non-performing Loan (NPL) Ratio
TR EAEE

Allowance for Loan Impairment

9,206,949 7,941,642 1,265,307

74,335 51,561 22,774

0.81% 0.65% 0.16%

341,589 272,291 69,298
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Capital Management and Capital Adequacy Ratios

ATRAEEOREALARERERE EFAAEENKERAEE, ATRAEEMRSERLB. BEALLEER &
FREDLABRRTAAREIRA BIR, TOREREIAN AT S RKBOZE. 5ISTREER.

201578 BxOMNLEHR BT R AT QB RAMA SN AITERI80LET, AITRAINFEIBZME. EINEINEN
RAMRERN, RTEIHAREAEIER, 2EMRSERITER. REMTRABIARANRE. BT LRITRULET
RBR GAFRMSRIWEMNF R, A TH—PRUARARNG, S WRARLEERALKT, FRPRARLK
My CRACERRAUER, RERAERE. 2N ERFTEAMNSISER, RARFSLSEHRNIORE BReRE
fEABERMERKTE, ARTUHERREARERE HRE.

BBRR NS (HUROTRREENA (7)) SEEMEIHE, BME015E K, AR OBAARII2662.98(Z7. B
— BB ARSI — R A BET10,435.82(2 78, AAFRE10.81%, Bb—RAA KR ER—RAKE R E891%, &F7
BRSAAORRARIN2,483.29(27T, b —R AR B —REABET0,285.8927T, RAFTEE10.71%, #Zlr—
BAATREA— R ATREST9%,

RBRESC(HLVRTEAZTEREEBNEVERAMEITE, BE2015F K, ATHROBZTAARER13.44%, i HE
AT REI.88%; AITHASENARRAT BZE13.39%, LA ART EEHI.86%,
The Bank's capital management encompasses capital adequacy ratios management, economic capital management and book capital

management. The Bank manages its capital resources to support national strategic priorities, meet regulatory requirements and deliver value
to the shareholders, and to effectively fund, guide and safeguard the business development and operations.

With the USD48 billion capital injection in July 2015 from the State Administration of Foreign Exchange through BIH, the Bank’s capital base
was significantly strengthened. In addition to capital expansion from external sources, the Bank increased efforts to reduce costs and improve
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efficiency so that its profitability continued to improve and help strengthen its capital base. In accordance with the CDB Reform Plan and
aligning with its positioning and characteristics as a development finance institution, the Bank further enhanced its capital discipline and
limits, heightened the quality and level of detail in its capital management, implemented its medium- and long-term capital strategies and
annual capital plans, and played its guiding role in budgeting, pricing, and performance assessment, so as to promote the optimization and
adjustments of asset and business structures, improve capital utilization and return, and provide a higher level assurance to the sustainable
and robust development of the Bank.

As calculated under the CBRC's Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional) and other relevant rules and as at 31 December 2015, the
Group’s total capital was RMB1,266,298 million, both total Common Equity Tier 1 capital and total Tier 1 capital were RMB1,043,582 million,
capital adequacy ratio was 10.81%, and both Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio and Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio were 8.91%; in
terms of the parent company, the total capital was RMB1,248,329 million, both total Common Equity Tier 1 capital and total Tier 1 capital were
RMB1,028,589 million, capital adequacy ratio was 10.71%, and both Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio and Tier 1 capital adequacy
ratio were 8.79%.

As calculated under the CBRC's Rules for Regulating the Capital Adequacy Requirement of Commercial Banks and other relevant rules and at
the end of 2015, the Group’s capital adequacy ratio was 13.44% and core capital adequacy ratio was 9.88%; in terms of the parent company,
capital adequacy ratio was 13.39% and core capital adequacy ratio was 9.86%.
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PLANNING OPERATIONS
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In 2015, remaining focused on strategic planning, the Bank closely followed and were extensively involved in the formulating of the state’s 13th
Five-Year Plan, completed the Bank’s business development plan (outline) for the 13th Five-Year Plan Period, and devoted significant time and
resources in formulating the business development plans for special initiative, branches and subsidiaries. In planning its future course, the
Bank focused on delivering its commitments to deepening cooperation with relevant government agencies and aligning with the state’s policies
regarding major strategies, including “One Belt, One Road”, coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, and Yangtze River
Economic Zone. The Bank completed the new urbanization financing plans for 30 projects, teamed up with the National Development and
Reform Commission to issue joint statements in support of the robust development of national-level new districts. The Bank started planning
for financing poverty alleviation projects in target regions, including the former revolutionary base in Dabie Mountains. The Bank also took
charge of the planning and researches for implementing the “One Belt, One Road” initiative along the China-Pakistan Economic Corridor,
planning for and promoting China-Argentina cooperation on major projects, cooperation between China and South Africa on ocean economy,
and cooperation between China and Tasmania of Australia, among others. The Bank also engaged in 27 industry planning initiatives, including
researches and studies on the transformation and upgrade of the energy industry in the 13th Five-Year Plan Period, and furthered the planning
for 23 key strategic clients, including Commercial Aircraft Corporation of China.

5 s
LENDING BUSINESS

20156, RATINERMERZNBSR, AR N FHERN THREFKPRBALBHBESER, RIRRSRIEK A
Z#1 BRE RHALSFHIFERELAR. BE2015FER, KTRARI.2171Z5T.

In 2015, the Bank diligently implemented the state’s macro policies, and made continuous and focused efforts to promote the countercyclical
role of medium- and long-term financing, and extensively engaged in initiatives to facilitate China’s stable economic growth, structural
optimization and transformation, and improvement of the people’s livelihood, so as to help maintain the sustainable and robust development of
the economy and society. At the end of 2015, the balance of Renminbi and foreign currency loans of the Bank amounted to RMB9.21 trillion.
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On 17 April 2015, following the inspection of CDB, Li Kegiang, a member of the Standing Committee of the Political Bureau, CPC Central
Committee and the Premier of China, encouraged CDB to leverage development finance to increase its support to the state’s strategic and
key projects, and make greater contributions to help sustain China’s stable economic growth and structural optimization and transformation.
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In his inspection of CDB, Premier Li Kegiang stressed emphatically that “It’s imperative to go to those run-down
areas in person more than strictly necessary, and only there, in the thick of things and meeting the residents
face to face, can we feel what they feel and understand the heavy burdens on our shoulders. We need to step
up efforts in the renewal of subsided areas in Northeast China, and we can’t let our people sleep on the edge
of pending disasters. I'd like to see CDB align its efforts with the state’s urban renewal initiatives, increase
its support to urban renewal as well as the construction of infrastructures and auxiliary facilities, and deliver
excellent work in carrying out the state’s plans.”
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Support major projects of the state and leverage medium- and long-term financing to promote the real economy
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In 2015, the Bank further optimized its resource allocation to increase support to medium- and long-term financing and investment projects
and enable development finance to make solid contributions in boosting the supply of public goods. With new loans of RMB889.2 billion, the
Bank helped ensure that the funding needs were comfortably met for major projects and key areas in infrastructure, basic and pillar industries,
including railways, public highways, electric power, water resources, petroleum and petrochemical, and public infrastructure.
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In 2015, with a total lending of RMB121.6 billion, CDB enhanced its overall cooperation with China Railway Corporation to support the structural
reform for financing and investments in the domestic railway industry, and provided a wider variety of financial products and offerings. The
Bank strongly supported the railway construction and its related land requisitions and residents relocation. These projects covered passenger
lines, intercity railways, urban railways, railways for resource exploration and development, and mixed-ownership railways. The Bank explored
new method of High-Speed Railway “Go Global” through innovative financing. The Bank remained the top lender to the railway industry with a
balance of outstanding loans of RMB720.9 billion at the end of 2015.

BIRERMKEZEZELTB

Hefei-Fuzhou Passenger Line
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As a major component of the Jing-Fu (Beijing to Fuzhou) High-Speed Railway, Hefei-Fuzhou Line is a high-capacity passenger route that

connects Central China and Southern China, and became operational on 28 June 2015. The Bank's cumulative drawdowns amounted to
RMB8,615 million at the end of 2015.



ke d

MTE NKBEEELHE

Nanning-Guangzhou Passenger Line
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24012 7T,

As a backbone line that facilitates transportation between Guangxi, Yunnan and coastal areas in Southern China, it will effectively drive the
economic development in nearby regions. The Bank's cumulative drawdowns amounted to RMB4 billion at the end of 2015.
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In 2015, the Bank continued to help promote the construction of public highways across the country, and provide strong funding to facilitate the
major constructions of the state’s highway network, road constructions in disadvantaged regions, and high-grade road constructions in remote

areas, including the Shenzhen-Zhongshan Overpass Route and the Nyingchi-Lhasa Road in Tibet. Total lending in the year was RMB273 billion
and the balance of loans to public highway sector was RMB1.56 trillion at the year end.
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PR E R BT H
Nyingchi-Lhasa Road, Tibet

ZIMEBEREE B E S MRBEEM, B
mEAFHaER LR, TH BIRE329(2
JT, RITARIERFR26012 7T,

The completion of this road construction will significantly
improve the transportation in nearby regions, and
make substantial contributions to the leapfrogging of
the Tibetan economy and society. The project required
a total investment of RMB32.9 billion, with a loan
commitment from the Bank of RMB26 billion.
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TR eEREABEE
Baise Highway, Guangxi

ZMBERT I AERRNER. B BR=ZEFBESEAKNDE SHETE-REEFRABERFEREM.
ATEKERRAI00ZT. i, RITHEE1{ZTT, BE015FREEMBEM.

This project ended the history of no access to highways for Jingxi, Napo and Debao counties of Baise, Guangxi, and is a key link in the China-
ASEAN international thoroughfare. As the lead bank, CDB organized a RMB10 billion syndication loan, including RMB6.1 billion from the Bank
which was drawn down at the end of 2015.

20154, ATTRMRESEREREHNHE, AEHABERRRLR. RERFEMRIMABERR. KBTIV TRBAF
REASRE. KAHEHKE NE AARLE URABEFHRBENTFELBENERZR ESXF EE—S5"FX
BEMRFDZERARELIE, KEIRIA. €T L ERKBE HEAREREMEFRELBHTE, X
BRFBAKAXEHAREZE L. Pr2mFg ERBEEEERRMNE . EFELMEK 3712, BE2015F K, Kf7
BATURRRH7,8311Z7T.

In 2015, the Bank made strong efforts to support the state’s initiatives to optimize its energy structures, and provided funding to facilitate the
development of clean energy, construction of large energy bases and transmission channels, and energy-saving and emission-reduction projects in
coal-fired power industry. The funding priorities included new energy and renewable energy projects that take advantage of water power, wind power,
photovoltaic power, and waste-to-energy solutions. The projects financed by the Bank include exemplary nuclear power projects that utilize China’s
proprietary nuclear power technologies, such as “Hualong One” Reactors; large electric power projects, such as Shuangjiangkou Hydro-power Plant
on Dadu River, Suwalong Hydro-power Plant on Jinsha River, and Zhundong Coal-Fired Power Base in Xinjiang; Longyangxia Gorge Hydro- and
Photovoltaic Power Generation Project (Phase Il); and Rudong Offshore Wind-power Project of China General Nuclear Power Group. Total lending
during the year was RMB137.1 billion, and the balance of loans to the electric power industry was RMB783.1 billion at the end of 2015.
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No. 5 and No. 6 “Hualong One” Units Construction at Fuging Nuclear Power Plant, Fujian
ZUEXBEEREAZE2MIRFRMN EE—S" ZRZENA B & —S £XREHETEIRE, MASKRA
386.601Z7T, AfT&IERMKART280.94{27T. %7T4.64{2Z7CT.

The No. 5 and 6 units are equipped with the third-generation “Hualong One” reactors designed and built with proprietary Chinese technologies,
and represent the world’s first Hualong One-powered nuclear project and an exemplary project for “Hualong One” deployment. The project
required a total investment of RMB38.66 billion, including a loan commitment of RMB28,094 million and USD464 million from the Bank.
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In 2015, the Bank played an active role in supporting water resources projects which are national priorities and can benefit the community. Through
increased cooperation with the Ministry of Water Resources, the Bank provided substantial funding support to the state’s key projects, including Guangxi
Datengxia Gorge Hydropower Hub, Xinjiang Altas Hydropower Hub and Gansu Taohe River Diversion and Water Supply Project (Phase Il), as well as
water resources constructions that are critical in enhancing the living conditions of local people, such as Huangshui River North Waterway Project (Phase
) designed to improve local irrigation and promote poverty alleviation efforts in nearby regions in Qinghai. Total lending in the year was RMB79.7 billion.
The Bank established itself as a leader in funding water projects, and at the end of 2015, the Bank had funded nearly 3,600 water projects, with a year-
end balance of loans to the water resources sector of RMB311.2 billion.

ZEERKRIRREIRIB
Key Water Supply and Irrigation Projects, Yunnan

ZUMBBERRI7TANER/RKRLEE, UJHiE. EEREIR30A E, BR4307 N RKRE B, RITKIE TR
100{Z7T. BE2015F R, AT RIFRMETKE1.26127T.
Upon completion, the 174 key water supply and irrigation projects in Yunnan will increase and improve 3,500,000 mu (approximately 576,579

acres) of irrigated arable land, and provide safe drinking water to 4.3 million people. The Bank committed RMB10 billion to these projects, and
at the end of 2015, cumulative drawdowns amounted to RMB5,126 million.
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In 2015, the Bank increased its support to the petroleum and petrochemical industries, worked closely with clients to achieve synergic
alignment with their development plans, and entered into development finance cooperation agreements with China National Offshore Oil
Corporation and Sinochem, among others. Total lending during the year was RMB278.9 billion, and at the year end, the balance of loans to the
petroleum and petrochemical industries was RMB590 billion.

izlﬁﬁiﬁifﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁl M. X
EASHER BHEBAORLRR
EEEX E&i2015¢31€ AT RI
RIMGTFRT 5T,

This project will play a critical role in
Ningxia’'s optimization of its energy
structure, improving ecosystem in Ningxia,
and create numerous employment
opportunities in surrounding areas. The
Bank’s cumulative drawdowns amounted to
RMB750 million at the end of 2015.

20154, RTRMEFAXEMRBEER HANBFAHSEAEE (PPP), BUNM LRSS/ BB CIH. 5
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27T, BE2015F K, K7L BRI S ?Tlli‘ff?’xéé i1.19F125T.

In 2015, the Bank made strong efforts to support the public infrastructure constructions, and facilitate innovative financial options, including
public-private partnerships (PPPs) and government procurement of public services. The Bank committed RMB27.1 billion of loans to fund utility
tunnel and sponge city constructions, and entered into cooperation agreements for utility tunnel construction with Jilin and Ningxia governments;
it also helped promote urban rail transport constructions as it funded the Shenzhen Subway PPP Project, Foshan Subway BOT Project, and Xi'an
Subway's government procurement project; and it also extended funding support to civil airport constructions, and provided loans to airline
infrastructure construction in Yangtze River Economic Zone and along the “One Belt, One Road” routes. Total lending was RMB160.6 billion, and
at the end of 2015, the Bank’s balance of loans to the public infrastructure industry was RMB1.19 trillion.



EFEHEREZE IR E
Beijing Rail Transport Construction

AZRELERAHZTBEMEG ATBFRIETNRAIFIERNERBER, £REIF1657 L. HE2015F K,
AOTXFIERNETBRRERRI277.927T,

In order to improve Beijing’s public transport network, the Bank sets aside special loans to support Beijing’s rail transport constructions, and
has funded the construction of 16 subway lines in Beijing. At the end of 2015, the Bank supported Beijing’s rail transport constructions with a
loan balance of RMB27.79 billion.

20156 ATTUEREATE, XFFREWRUNE, REPREVERCER. BIAPREVESHFHAEAFT
RNREERFN EERTUMXBAUHLEETIER. EFERLMTKE6,9492T. BE2015F R, AT REVFRK
2111w,

In 2015, the Bank aligned its priorities with the national strategies to effectively support the deepening of reform of enterprises directly under
the central government (central enterprises) and assist their international development and operations. The Bank provided strong funding that
enabled the central enterprises to heighten their competitiveness and play a major role in key industries and sectors. Total lending of the year was
RMB694.9 billion, and at the end of 2015, the balance of loans to central enterprises was RMB2.11 trillion.
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ChemChina’s Successful Acquisition of Pirelli

ARITE K LE 8RR IT K £R B 3 45 o B 10 T AR I O T 7 K )
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The Bank led a Chinese syndication of EUR800 million and funded ChemChina’s
successful acquisition of Pirelli, a leading Italian tire manufacturer, in the largest
overseas acquisition transaction in China's manufacturing industry. This acquisition
is expected to help raise the overall competence of the Chinese tire industry to a

new level, as it poses to trigger a series of industrial transformations and upgrades.
At the end of 2015, the cumulative drawdowns amounted to EUR340 million.

MAMAXYEZFNE, RIEFREEMETIER

Leverage Development Finance to Provide Greater Support to Urban Renewal Projects
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In 2015, the Bank continued to increase its funding support to urban renewal initiatives, and with a total lending of RMB750.9 billion which was
not only a historical high but 1.84 times the amount of 2014, the Bank made tremendous contribution to build 5.8 million new homes ahead of
schedule and ensure follow-up projects are adequately funded. At the same time, the Bank strengthened credit management of urban renewal
projects, and increased monitoring and control over the funds to safeguard the loans and ensure the loans are applied in a compliant manner.

At the end of 2015, the balance of urban renewal loans was RMB1.31 trillion.

P X BUEEY R R I R R AR5

The Origination and Year-end Balance of Urban Renewal Loans

BA. ARM10/Z7t  Bilion RMB
KRELM  New Originations

2015

2014

2013

2012

W 3 &E  Year-end Balance

1,305.8
750.9
408.6
106.0
77.8
300 600 900 1,200 1,500
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Urban Renewal of Subsided Mining Cities, Heilongjiang
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Greater support to renewal projects in difficult regions.
The loans to central and western regions and northeast China
represented 62% of the total renewal lending in the year as the
Bank stepped up its support to tackle the most difficult cases,
including the prioritized support for the renewal of subsided mining
regions in northeast China, and enabled the 100% commencement
of renewal projects in Hegang, Jixi, Qitaihe and Shuangyashan,
four major mining cities in Heilongjiang.

Monetized relocation for urban renewal projects. With the
removal of proportionate limits on monetized relocations, the Bank
offered RMB258.8 billion monetized relocation loans, and these
loans, representing 34.5% of total renewal lending in the year,
effectively helped reduce the real estate inventory.

Support for government procurements. The Bank carried out pilot
programs in more than 20 provinces and municipalities to study
policies and methods and explore options in support of government
procurements, so as to improve its readiness in this market.

Increased engagement of public and private funding. The Bank
was the first bank in China to issue RMB10 billion of securities
backed by urban renewal loans, and by combining bonds and
lending and through loan syndication, engaged RMB254.9 billion of
public and private funding to support urban renewal projects.

RTSHHBAFHREEL, T E IRF R A 248 #241 81127, RITRBERFKI150{ZTT.

The Bank joined forces with the local governments and worked together to help secure funding for these projects. The renewal projects had a
total investment of RMB24,181 million, including a loan commitment of RMB15 billion from the Bank.
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Urban Renewal of Jilin City, Jilin

ZIE X E S P RRARELEREREFRRE N, T 2R HK122.64127T, RITRERRSIZT,

The project holds great promise to the local low-income families. The Bank has committed RMB9.8 billion of loans to the budgeted total
investment of RMB12,264 million of this project.
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Urban Renewal of Kaifeng, Henan

ATEDEEMAXEE  —2Z3 8N, AEBTEAIMAXBEREESG, #EDFEBREBEMER HKBEEZEA
B X EBRIPEFEENESEEE. TUH RIRRS6{ZTT ., A{TKIERKI3ZTT.

The Bank endeavors to maximize the ripple effect of urban renewal projects. While improving the living conditions of run-down areas in
Kaifeng, Henan, the Bank aims to promote the comprehensive amelioration in various sectors, including new urbanization, environmental
improvement, and sustainable cultural heritage preservation. The project required a total investment of RMB5.6 billion, with a loan commitment
from the Bank of RMB4.3 billion.

HRZBEKAFRAAMAXSED B
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Employee Housing Renewal Project (Phase I)
of Lanzhou LS Group

ROTRBARRELMBEARER, bl
RIMEEFE&ME. TESREAMIT, K17
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The Bank diligently and continuously explores new
options for funding state-owned enterprises in their
renewal efforts, and to better support the employee
housing renewal project. Of the total investment of
RMB990 million, the Bank committed RMB790 million.
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Support New Urbanization to Promote Coordinated Regional Development and Industrial Upgrades
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BAR. KIZFHEEAKREE, MARMAIFNE.
In 2015, the Bank aligned its focus with state’s development strategies and increased its funding supports to national development priorities,

including new urbanization, urban-rural integration, Made in China 2025, Internet+, coordinated development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, and
Yangtze River Economic Zone.
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In 2015, the Bank spared no efforts in supporting the people-centered new urbanization initiatives, and established itself as a lead bank in the

new urbanization causes, as it continued to explore diversified and sustainable funding sources and make substantial contributions to sponsor
key projects in transportation upgrade, industrial park construction, and urban-rural integration.

L e EEEIRTE

Ancient Towns in Suzhou, Jiangsu

RITWUAEXURIF S ERA T, HANETERPAFEO/NIERR, EEXHANER. DE REEFHE
XBETME . BE2015F K, AT RITRMER29.53{ZTT.
In its commitment to helping preserve cultural heritages, and promote distinct and unique small towns, the Bank sponsored a number of

ancient town preservation projects in Suzhou, including Zhenze, Shaxi and Tongli, among other historical and cultural towns. At the end of
2015, cumulative lending amounted to RMB2,953 million.
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Sci-Tech City of Donghu National Innovation Park, Hubei
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Donghu National Innovation Park is the second national park designed to promote innovations and the development of proprietary
technologies. Through supporting the construction of the park, the Bank is actively involved in promoting technological innovation,
industrial upgrades and new urbanization in Hubei. At the end of 2015, the Bank was the top lender to various enterprises in the park
with a cumulative lending of RMB45 billion.
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In 2015, the Bank increased its funding support to facilitate the accelerated development of central and western China and a new round of
economic revival of old industrial bases in northeast China, including new loans of RMB549.4 billion to central and western China and RMB77.4
billion to old industrial bases in northeast China. High priorities were also assigned to promoting the coordinated development of Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei Region, Yangtze River Economic Zone and national new districts. In a seminar organized to discuss the role of development
finance in supporting the coordinated development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, the Bank committed a total lending of RMB2.1 trillion to
fund relevant initiatives from 2015 to 2017. New progress was also made in aiding the development in Xinjiang and Tibet, with new loans of
RMB22.8 billion to Xinjiang and RMB16 billion channeled to Tibet and Tibetan regions in four provinces.
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Zhangjiakou-Chengde Highway, Hebei

BELFESESIEXINE 2B E
Island Ring Road for Pingtan Comprehensive Experiment Area, Fujian
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As a major component in transport integration in
the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, this highway will
greatly alleviate the pressures for cross-Beijing
traffic and boost the local economic development
along the highway. The Bank committed RMB15.56
billion to the total investment of RMB34.0 billion,
and at the end of 2015, cumulative drawdowns
amounted to RMB6,768 million.

FERBLABEVYEGEXIRXEAMBRIEEEAT YREXRXESEAREFLRAFEER N, TIE 2R #53

27T, RITRERKIGIZTT,

The Pingtan Island Ring Road is of critical importance to the infrastructure construction for Pingtan Comprehensive Experiment Area in
Fujian, and shall be decisive in ensuring the comprehensive and rapid development of the area. The Bank committed RMB3.6 billion

to the total investment of RMB5.3 billion.
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In 2015, the Bank made strong efforts to support industrial restructuring and upgrade initiatives and strategic emerging industries, and assisted
enterprises in their bid to become higher-end competitors in selected sectors, including integrated circuit, flat panel display, and new energies
and materials. As part of its commitment to help promote the development of under-developed sectors, the Bank worked closely with the Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology, the National Development and Reform Commission and other government agencies, and participated
in policy research in integrated circuit industries. The Bank funded a series of key projects to improve China’s manufacturing competitiveness,
including the BOE's production line based on new generation display technologies. The Bank also provided funding support to the polymeric
membrane material project of Kangde Xin and the polyurethane project of Wanhua Group, among other projects, to enable them to improve the
added value of their products. In the year, total lending to strategic emerging industries amounted to RMB253 billion, and at the end of 2015, the
balance of these loans was RMB795.7 billion.

R ELF R RERT R E TR
PLC Optical Integrated Chip Production of Shijia Photons
Technology
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Shijia Photons Technology, the top integrated circuit manufacturer
in China’s fiber-optic communications industry. Its products
have enabled China to be independent in this area. The Bank’s
cumulative funding for the project amounted to RMB130 million at
the end of 2015.

TEAFENRNKLBEE
Hongsibu Photovoltaic Power Generation
Plant, Ningxia
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With a total installed capacity of 50 megawatts, this
photovoltaic power generation plant, once operational,
will significantly increase the portion of renewable
energy in Ningxia. Total investment of the project is
RMB1,196 million. The Bank’s cumulative drawdowns
amounted to RMB950 million at the end of 2015.
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In 2015, the Bank made solid contributions to promote its green services and projects aimed to protect and improve the environment, with
priorities on pollution prevention and remediation, soil restoration, cyclic economies, and the development and application of clean and renewable
resources. And these loans had helped reduce energy consumption equivalent to 71.88 million tons of standard coal, reduce carbon dioxide
emission by 181.05 million tones, reduce sulfur dioxide emission by 2.04 million tons, reduce nitrogen oxide by 1.17 million tons, reduce ammonia
by 130,000 tons, save 502.07 million tons of water, and reduce chemical oxygen demand by 1.13 million tons. At the end of 2015, the balance of
the Bank’s green loans was RMB1.57 trillion.

mMNERETTESSERLIEm B
Nanming River Waterway Remediation and
Restoration, Guizhou
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This is one of the first batch of exemplary PPP
projects sponsored by the MoF in which public and
private funding is encouraged to participate in and
contribute to pollution remediation. Total investment
is RMB870 million, and the Bank has committed
RMB609 million.

R4 =T - Hittdhk TETE
Niulanjiang River-Dianchi Lake Water
Replenishment Project, Yunnan
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As a linchpin project in the comprehensive
water environment improvement of Dianchi
Lake, it will, upon completion, divert 566
million cubic meters of fresh water to Dianchi
Lake to help maintain adequate water level
and overall environment of the lake. The
Bank's cumulative drawdowns amounted to
RMB700 million at the end of 2015.
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Zhangjiakou Onshore Wind Farm, Hebei
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Zhangjiakou is home to one of the major onshore wind farms in China. Total investment of the project is RMB3,574 million. At the end of 2015,

the Bank's cumulative drawdowns amounted to RMB2,637 million, which effectively supported Zhangjiakou's pursuit to become a unique

Low-Carbon Olympic Region.
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Support Poverty Alleviation and Contribute to Bettering People’s Livelihood

THERTE, WARBEMNERE J

20155, AFTRMEERAXRBIBTBFEE. QIFMARR, SISHENEXHRIFHHRATL. RUMFRHNER.
el BEFREFELR.

In 2015, the Bank actively engaged and worked with government agencies and local governments, adopted innovative financing options, and
guided private efforts to pool resources in promoting development initiatives aiming at poverty alleviation, agricultural upgrade and new village
building, small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), and education, among other livelihood improvement causes.

20155, RITMIKRBR AR A EN R, CIFHHRRFREHNG, KNEEEARR RIITERSREFT =S RURBEE,
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In 2015, as part of its commitment to apply development finance to advance poverty alleviation causes, the Bank established relevant rules and
procedures to enable development finance to better support poverty alleviation, explored new methods and options to enable more accurate
efforts in poverty alleviation, and made earnest efforts to deliver remarkable results in improving people’s living conditions. The Bank deepened
its cooperation with government agencies, maintained close working relationships with the State Council Leading Group Office of Poverty
Alleviation and Development, the Central Office of Rural Affairs, the National Development and Reform Commission, and the Ministry of Transport,
and increased its efforts in providing much-needed access to expertise and information. The Bank also explored how balanced urban-rural
development initiatives could be leveraged to benefit poverty alleviation efforts, and actively promoted poverty alleviation through relocations,
rural infrastructure constructions, education and healthcare, and development of unique industries. In the year, the Bank provided RMB212.2
billion loans to most-deprived regions and counties, and raised donations of RMB11.4 million for four designated aid-receiving counties and one
county for which the Bank assumed major poverty-alleviation responsibility. At the end of 2015, the balance of poverty alleviation loans of the Bank
amounted to RMB962.3 billion.

HAHKRA XA BRI k£ TETH
Rural Drinking Water Projects in Pilot Aid-
Recipient Counties, Gansu
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REK T2, BAl/EH @R Y #92.337
ABRK R L@, BE2015FEXR, ATR
TR GEER9.2{Z 7T,

This initiative aims to build 311 centralized water supply
facilities and 4 dispersed water supply facilities (299
water cellars), and repair and upgrade 12 centralized
water supply facilities in seven aid-recipient counties,
including Lintan and Linxia, Gansu, which will deliver
safe drinking water to 923,300 people in these regions.
The Bank's cumulative drawdowns amounted to
RMB920 million at the end of 2015.
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Enshi Highways, Hubei
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Wulingshan is one of the most deprived regions in China, and Enshi is one of the six central cities in the Wulingshan Region. Enshi highways
are designed to serve as a thoroughfare between Hubei, Chongging, Guizhou and Hunan and overcome traffic bottlenecks in the Wulingshan
Region. The construction of the highways requires a total investment of RMB47.5 billion, of which, RMB12.4 billion had been drawn down by
the end of 2015.

FREFEIMBFHRR

Poverty Alleviation through Education
2015¢ FTALARRUAXFETEAFRBX BEREAFAE ATESRKAENNAXZENIMIZEE
TEAZ) BARETHLEEEREZUBKNEN. EXANKRUAXRARRATR " €EIRE £

EMDL\ RIE RACHAESRTFRIIARABRENE . I " BEXARRTREXNE " KERKAE Y
HNHH3504 .,

In 2015, the Bank invited 434 grassroot-level cadres from Wulingshan Region, the Bank’s designated aid-receiving counties and
the county for which the Bank assumes major poverty-alleviation responsibility, highly poverty-stricken regions and national poverty-
stricken counties, and organized special training programs for them to improve their understanding of the state’s macro policies. Also
for the first time, the Bank launched its Jinhui Programs to share financial knowledge and promote awareness among poverty-stricken
households in Wulingshan Region, aiming to empower them to apply financial means to lift themselves out of poverty. The Bank
created CDB Care Award Fund to award 350 village teachers in designated aid-receiving counties.
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Poverty Alleviation through Tourism

ATRBRIIFIALERFERAERR, XRRFE
REEL, AFR, ATXFHERALERNANFR
RBRTENHEEUFRT BE015FK,
RFTRMERB,000H T, £E, RfTXFHM
RIT0RA L B EGIHIFXRACKE, B ZE
20155 K, RITRM BT .25{Z7T.

The Bank has offered strong funding to Jiangxi to help it take
advantage of its unique cultural and natural resources and
promote tourism. One of the major projects is to preserve
the world’s largest and most intact collection of ancient kilns
in Ji'an. At the end of 2015, the Bank disbursed RMB80
million in loans. In Ruijin, the Bank supported the local
efforts in promoting revolution-themed tourism to more than
20 historical revolutionary sites, and had provided RMB125
million of loans at the end of 2015.
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In 2015, the Bank adopted new financing methods and increased medium- and long-term funding to support agricultural and rural
development. It joined force with the State Office of Agriculture Comprehensive Development to develop and implement a new solution that
pools fiscal and credit funding to support high-grade farmland, explore options for securing loans with rural land management rights, and
promote international agricultural cooperation. Total agricultural lending disbursed in 2015 amounted to RMB32.6 billion, and the balance
of agricultural loans was RMB65.4 billion at the year end. The Bank also provided RMB262.5 billion of rural development loans to support
infrastructure constructions in new rural communities and at county level, leading agricultural enterprises, rural healthcare initiatives, and rural
education, among other areas, and the year-end balance was RMB855.7 billion.

RETIERRITEXBESRESRERBTE
Drought- and Waterlogging-Tolerant High-Grade Farmland in Zhaodong, Heilongjiang

ZIM B AT RN SIER BRZRNMIEER, 2R VEMERE " BARZ AAE AAR NRT=E.
BE2015F K, KITRITAMEARI LT,
This project represents a highlight in the Bank’s efforts to promote the development of high-grade farmlands, and provides a striking example

of good practices where agricultural infrastructures are properly built, properly managed and put to good use. The Bank's cumulative
drawdowns amounted to RMB310 million at the end of 2015.
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Coordinated Upgrade of Zhonghe Group

AT FFBERAET T HRRBR A TREREN,
REREFVHARKY, BISISHERSZIFLE
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KRR, BE2015FE R, KITRITRIMITFR15.39Z7T.

The Bank made a remarkable success in funding the construction
of a modern agricultural base. By helping Zhonghe Group build its
healthy food bases from acquired lands and develop its modern
end-to-end agricultural supply chain, and engaging public and
private funding to support constructions and upgrades in local cities
and townships, the Bank enabled the aligned and coordinated
development in industrialization, agricultural modernization, and
local new urbanization. At the end of 2015, cumulative lending to
this Henan enterprise amounted to RMB1,539 million.

ITASEN R EIR L IEESIET R

Renewal of Run-Down Rural Earthen Buildings in Ganzhou, Jiangxi

ZMBERBEEARRNLASRETRE, BEREMIBNE (. K)56AFARR., BE2015FER, KTRITRB R

M7.7127T,

This is the top-priority project for improving people’s living conditions in the revival of old revolutionary bases in southern Jiangxi, and it aims
to help 56,000 farming households in 18 counties under Ganzhou. The Bank's cumulative drawdowns amounted to RMB770 million at the end

of 2015.
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In 2015, the Bank focused on supporting the development of SMEs as part of its obligations to poverty alleviation and promoting innovations

and start-up businesses. At the end of 2015, the balance of its SME loans was RMB2.82 frillion, including RMB1.12 trillion to small and micro

enterprises (SmEs).

i [eapy 23T =|
Yuanling Tea Farm, Hunan

%5 B X 51,500 K E 1,200 Mgt TR s, BN/ NEFEH T, W) 350 R E At , RITRIN
270 7T, SRPAIIEI, 6005 7T,
The Bank provided loans to help build a 1,500 mu (247 acres) tea farm and a 1,200 mu (198 acres) tree farm as well as a small tea

processing factory, which created employment for all 350 poverty-stricken households. The Bank's RMB2.7 million lending enabled them to
earn additional income of more than RMB1,600 per person.
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In 2015, the Bank further expanded the coverage of its education loans to 70% of the counties across the state and 100% of the higher education
institutions. To facilitate education loans, the Bank increased the variety of its financial services and offerings, provided dual channels for online
and over-the-counter loan repayments, and improved its 95593 Call Center. The Bank provided RMB18.7 billion of education loans to 2.85 million
applications, and met the needs of 90% of economically underprivileged families to fund their children’s education. At the end of 2015, the
balance of education loans was RMB56.2 billion.

REFMHARE R X EM(ARTEATL)
Types of Emergencies Regions Amounts Lent (Million RMB)
HHRE STH. JER. Mm% 5 160

Flood and Waterlogging Jiangsu, Fujian, Sichuan, etc. ’

BRRE WL R RS 5 730
Typhoons Zhejiang, Guangdong, Fujian, etc. '
EAEHRE R 1,000

Major Disastrous Accidents Tianjin ’

$HRRE LT B EEE 209
Geological Disasters Liaoning, Jilin, Qinghai, etc.

FR e 100

Snow Disasters Inner Mongolia

FERE TR B S i -
Droughts Henan, Shaanxi, etc.

SRR E MR 50
Earthquakes Inner Mongolia
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Support the “One Belt, One Road" Initiative and Promote International Cooperation
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In 2015, the Bank made active efforts in deepening the reform of the management system and practices for its international operations and further
strengthening its overseas network, with the addition of its London Representative Office. As part of its firm commitment to the “One Belt, One Road”
initiative, the Bank extended USD14.9 billion of related loans. In its efforts to promote international cooperation in production capacity and in equipment
manufacturing, the Bank supported the overseas high-speed railway and nuclear power projects sponsored by Chinese technologies or investments.
The Bank continued to further solid multilateral and bilateral financial cooperation with member banks of Shanghai Cooperation Organization Interbank
Association, China-ASEAN Interbank Association, and BRICS Interbank Cooperation Mechanism. Through supporting the Chinese enterprises in their “Go
Global” efforts and Renminbi’s internationalization, the Bank was able to quickly expand its overseas Renminbi operations. The Bank steadily enhanced
the capability of serving international operations, and entered into agency relationship with 747 banks in 104 countries and regions. At the end of 2015,
the balance of the Bank's foreign currency-denominated loans amounted to USD276 billion, and the balance of cross-border Renminbi loans amounted
to RMB69 billion, as the Bank continued to maintain its leading role in funding China’s foreign investment and financing.



In expanding its international cooperation, the Bank also made diligent efforts to share expertise with and help improve the capabilities of
partnering countries so as to develop together. In 2015, the Bank focused on countries along the “One Belt, One Road” route and organized 37
bilateral exchange seminars which attracted 799 participants from these countries. The CDB Scholarship assisted 119 foreign students in their
studies in China, in an effort to cultivate cross-cultural economic and financial talents for developing countries.
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Colombo South Container Terminal Upgrade, Sri Lanka

ZW B HEANREREAA, F&BK1,200K, FHH 582 MBLE, 20155, %11 B LI AL E156 7 R AR H LI
B, BE2015FR, RTRITRMEKIIZETT.

The project is designed to build four new container berths for the port with a quay length of 1,200 meters and a land space of 58 hectares. In

2015, the project delivered an annual capacity of 1.56 million TEUs and began to generate profit. At the end of 2015, the Bank’s cumulative
drawdowns amounted to USD330 million.

FEIMABIERAE N T & R M5 B

Cotton Farming, Processing and Procurement, Africa

e = - e
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R L0 F R A, BE2015FER, KTEHATRITER
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The Bank funded the Company+Farmers solution for cotton
farming in five countries in Africa, enabling nearly 200,000 cotton
farmers to increase their income. At the end of 2015, the Bank had
a cumulative lending of USD206 million, while the subsidiary China-
Africa Development Fund invested USD31.08 million.
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Rolling Stock Procurement of Transnet, South Africa

ZIN B # R M E K ESNH 2EREREEE
FOEMNERORAITE, SHBEREIE =M—
1" EEEBEREX., KTREBERIHR25{ZETT,

The procurement of 591 China-made locomotives is so far the
largest order in China’s export of railway equipment to African
countries, and will play a critical role in promoting China’s
cooperation with African countries in building their high-speed
railway, highway and regional airline networks and in promoting
industrialization. The Bank committed loans of USD2.5 billion for
this project.
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800,000 Ton/Year Refinery Construction in Kyrgyzstan for Central Asia Energy

ZMERHEREFHIENEETIVNE ERERBASEHLYHEFTRR, WRESBMN VBB, HELbzt A
RIRR X . TE R R43MZET, BE2015FEKR, ATRITRMEFR3ZET.

This refinery is a major industrial undertaking for Kyrgyzstan, and will play a key role in promoting local economic development, increasing

fiscal income to the government, and improving local employment. The construction has a total investment of USD431 million and the Bank
had disbursed USD300 million in loans by the end of 2015.
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In 2015, the Bank continued to improve the mechanisms for issuance of its bonds in the primary markets, maintained its firm footing in the interbank
bond market, and made strong efforts to explore opportunities on the exchanges and over commercial bank counters. The cumulative annual issuance of
Renminbi bonds amounted to RMB1,136.1 billion, and increased its all-time bond issuance to RMB11.8 trillion. In 2015, the Bank further consolidated its
leading position in bond issuance with a total issuance of RMB1,115.4 billion of benchmark bonds. Through commercial bank counters, the Bank issued
RMB6.1 billion of financial bonds and further expanded its personal and non-financial institutional investor base. At the same time, in order to promote
Chinese bond market and Renminbi's internationalization, the Bank worked diligently to promote the primary and secondary markets as it continued to
provide diversified and highly liquid financial bonds with good credit rating, and made active efforts in expanding the base of global investors.

20155 10R 208, I B EFTKAERKILSFR BT EFBAITRH MM iz EHUR, KRG EH 2R ARG
FrETHRSFAERE LM ARAERAN—E.

On 20 October 2015, Chairman Hu Huaibang attended the ceremony for the listing of CDB’s USD- and Euro-denominated bonds at London
Stock Exchange, marking the largest listing in London by a Chinese bank.
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In 2015, the Bank made strong efforts to explore and expand market-oriented foreign exchange financing channels. Ten years after its previous
overseas bond issuance, the Bank issued USD1 billion USD-denominated bonds and EUR500 million Euro-denominated bonds, which were
traded on the London Stock Exchange, and further heightened the Bank’s position in the international capital markets. In the interbank market,
the Bank successfully issued two tranches of USD-denominated bonds for a total of USD2 billion in China, and increased its cumulative
domestic issuance of USD bonds to USD12.4 billion.

In 2015, the Bank continued to promote SHIBOR and help strengthen the benchmark status of SHIBOR in the market. The annual volume
of bond transactions amounted to RMB88 trillion, up 138% from the previous year, as the Bank maintained its top spot among the Top 100
Institutions in the Interbank Renminbi Market for six consecutive years, and won the 2015 Award for Greatest Market Influence in the Chinese
interbank Renminbi market. As a leading market maker in the bond market, the Bank diligently performed its market making obligations and
provided complete yield curves upon which transactions could be based and completed. The Bank also actively engaged in market making for
and transactions in interest rate swaps, with transactions among the top players in the Chinese interbank Renminbi market. As a major market
maker also in the foreign exchange markets, the Bank completed foreign exchange transactions totaling USD1.63 trillion in the year, and
maintained its leading position in foreign exchange forward swaps and standard foreign exchange swaps, among other business operations.

H ] ke 55
INTERMEDIARY BUSINESS

20154, AfTHh AV SRE LR SHBENLESERA121ZTT, IRANEMEBIA . XTI SHERE~ZFIESEHIT,013
278, RTHE ABRESEMEERNRTLEL. REEIH /R, EREATMAXBEEI > RH1001Z27T. FRRNEE I
FERB0{ZTT., W W - E AR, SKIIE L ST ENEIE, KT~ M2,6801Z7T.

20155, ATRHEAFE USRI LR, SERIUTRFEMFIBIR, KF L 87,5065 7T, £F FRHE M BUFF56,821.31Z
T, REMTTBUFRH1,537.7212 7T, BELINERI00Z L&, TREENER "REAG RESTHER, KEKT
EREHMEFRRERIEENZRTHER. RESSSEBN. BITRT (F8) SRERFLT KaTERMERS
WA, BT IHISINTRL.

20155 AITIEEEXNEEFRRRE, RIFEEXN  THRE MEEGFR-—RESXNEEGR . 2EXNERER
WA1861Z7T, HPLEETLRANISLZT, KEFUSERRGRIE BE2015FR, RITAERESEEM TAS I
X 532,084, £H667 9427t REIAKRI 5335535, £5489.661Z7T. INC A E /K FHFEIRTT ELIFRE RN
CEERINCEMEEEZALRT. BHBESHSVHEER TR L TARTERL, XMEHMERBITFILTRSE
BT

The intermediary business of the Bank grew steadily in 2015 as the Bank generated RMB12.1 billion from this area and further optimized
its income structure. The Bank issued 11 credit asset-back securities totaling RMB101.3 billion and continued to lead the domestic banking
industry in terms of the number and size of Asset-Backed Securitization (ABS) issuance. The Bank also continued to offer innovative products
to the market, and was the first bank to issue RMB10 billion of securities backed by urban renewal loans and RMBS5 billion of securities backed
by Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei coordinated development loans. The Bank set up the Asset Management Department to take charge of the asset
management portfolio, and issued RMB268 billion of wealth management products.

Bond underwriting also maintained its steady growth in 2015 as the Bank underwrote 431 bonds for RMB759.65 billion. The Bank acted as the
lead underwriter for RMB682.13 billion of local government bonds, and invested RMB153,772 million in local government bonds. The Bank led
the successful follow-up issuance of RMB30 billion Huijin bonds, and was the lead underwriter for the first medium-term affordable housing notes
in China based on a combination of bonds and loans, and issued the first batch of floating-rate medium-term notes benchmarked against the
CDB yields. The Bank was actively involved in the Panda Bond issuance by the Korean government and Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong),
supported the improvement of market mechanisms for Panda Bond issuance, and promoted the opening up of the domestic bond market.

In 2015, the Bank continued to strengthen and upgrade its payment and settlement system against international best practices, and delivered
a zero-loss record in its operational payments and settlements. In the year, the Bank generated RMB1.36 billion of international settlement
income, including RMB195 million from foreign exchange transactions. The key account cash management system continued to expand its
reaches, as it completed 32,084 drawdown transactions for RMB66,794 million as part of its cash management operations, and completed
33,553 cash aggregation transactions for RMB48,966 million. The Bank steadily improved its capabilities to sustain compliance in its foreign
exchange activities, and for three consecutive years, the Bank received the A rating from the State Administration of Foreign Exchange in the
latter's assessment of domestic banks with respect to their compliance practices. The Bank also supported the “Go Global” efforts of China’s
financial industry chain and Renminbi’s internationalization, and assisted the successful roll-out of Laos National Bank Card Payment System.
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FINANCIAL COOPERATION AND INNOVATION
20154, RITHNSRN S HENE, MRS ERSRETAREE.

In 2015, the Bank improved its business planning and coordination, and actively engaged large financial institutions in business cooperation.

S5BBRT. PEHRT. EBRT. AR, $§%E"%5§é'Iﬁﬂ%ﬂ‘%ﬂﬁﬁﬂk%&ﬁﬁ%é\
EEEDN, SIEFRTEZ(2015-2017F 4 P K BUE T WA EH LD, FELARRE TR
204% , 5F£%06,6401Z7T, HIRF ERTUNS2016F ERA KR " RELFR" “"HEE
n R A BRELFRE . 0K BITRLHTIERFEE.
%E{Tnﬂf : The Bank renewed its comprehensive cooperation agreements with five national joint-stock
Cooperation with ; commercial banks, namely China Merchants Bank, CITIC Bank, Hua Xia Bank, China Guangfa
banking institutions 3 Bank, and Ping An Bank, and entered into 2015-2017 Urban Renewal Cooperation Agreement with
Bank of Beijing. As the lead bank, the Bank organized 204 syndication loans for a total contractual
amount of RMB664 billion, and for its efforts in this area, received 2015 Best Performance Award,
Best Management Award and Best Transaction Award from the China Banking Association. The Bank
rated and granted credit lines to 20 banks. /
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Cooperation with The Bank entered into cooperation agreements with PICC P&C and China Taiping, and engaged in agency
insurance companies f services with 10 property insurance companies, including Ping An P&C and PICC P&C. The Bank rated and
granted credit lines to eight insurance companies.
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S5RFEEAT ESFSANEARADER~EE . £RBERZTLSWEEE, WORIESH LA
Hitt&1E : . ARFFEEQSHITIHREE.
Cooperation with other : The Bank engaged asset management companies, securities companies and leasing companies in cooperation
financial institutions ; in asset management and financial leasing, among other areas. It rated and granted credit lines to six securities
companies and four asset management companies.
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SUBSIDIARIES
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In 2015, as part of its faithful implementation of its banking philosophy to “Operate As One CDB, Deliver Customer Experience As One CDB and

Deliver Services As One CDB”", the Bank continued to push its subsidiaries to heighten their level of specialization and market-oriented practices,
enhance their corporate governance, improve their growth potentials and profitability, and increase their overall contribution to the Bank.
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O EFE&mMERFELH
CDB Capital Co., Ltd.
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd. (CDB Capital) was established on 24 August 2009 with a registered capital of RMB51,516 million. In 2015, in line
with its vision to build a national leading investment platform and a top asset management company, CDB Capital made solid efforts to
promote new urbanization, industrial investments, overseas investments and fund management, among other sectors, and made more
than RMB50 billion investments. It led the efforts in setting up four multilateral cooperation funds, namely UAE-China Joint Investment
Fund, Sino-Latin American Production Capacity Cooperation Investment Fund, Sino-French Innovation Fund, and China-ASEAN Investment
Fund (Phase Ill). In its support of the state’s new urbanization strategy, CDB Capital set up five new urbanization funds, and provided
additional funding of RMB10.9 billion to support urban renewal, resettlement housing, and industrial parks, among other initiatives. CDB
Capital increased its industrial investments in and investment planning and implementation for strategic emerging industries, and provided
more than RMB30 billion for high-end manufacturing, new energies, energy saving and environmental protection, Internet-based financing,
and reform of state-owned enterprises. As the end of 2015, CDB Capital's total assets amounted to RMB119.6 billion, while it managed
more than RMB160 billion of assets.

O EFEHFEREELAT
CDB Securities Co., Ltd.

EFIUEHFRTEL T T2010FE8H258 , sF M FE A73.727T. 20155, A T K HE K L HRF139R, A& W
1,063.421Z7¢, Hep, &AW HR211.16127T, EEAFERFRAVE —. BEV SR BT EMREE27.41%, BidEKE
Eor R, AEgESM4E1,370.2312 7T, [ K270%., 5 AR 5 I & £5169.961270, B L1 468.09%.
ZEVEIRA LR, FEERBELEWAN2.581ZTT, FELIEK141.12%, AR = L HIFERENE611.70{27T, (L EF
WaETH, FriE St EENRS A M AN HERSNE EIEESAHTNEREIESEASIDKERT,
HELBEMIIAAL, HIF A0 E SR WEHE EEREHESTMALESLT "FERERFVSIESEAS.
B E20158 K, RE=457127T,

CDB Securities Co., Ltd. (CDB Securities) was set up on 25 August 2010, with a registered capital of RMB7.37 billion. In 2015, CDB Securities
retained its position as the top underwriter of the industry for four consecutive years as it underwrote a variety of 139 bonds for RMB106,342 million,
including corporate bonds of RMB21,116 million. The annualized return on its proprietary investments was 27.41%, outperforming all other similar
funds products. The size of its asset management portfolio was RMB137,023 million, more than doubled by 270% from the previous year. The
balance of credit transactions was RMB6,996 million, up 68.09% from the previous year. Taking advantage of the favorable market environment, the
brokerage business generated a net commission income of RMB258 million, up by 141.12% from the previous year. The size of its ABS underwriting
amounted to RMB61.17 billion, one of the largest among competitors. CDB Securities set up its five-in-one coordinated service network with 11
new branches added in Hubei and Xinjiang, among others. In the annual classification and assessment of securities companies by China Securities
Regulatory Commission, CDB Securities retained its AA rating for the third consecutive year, and was named Most Socially Responsible Securities
Company of the Year and Best Performing Securities Company of the Year in the 2015 ranking of Chinese financial institutions. At the end of 2015,

its total assets amounted to RMB45.7 billion.
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O ERLMBERHBERAT
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.
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CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. (CDB Leasing) has a registered capital of RMB9.5 billion, and became a joint-stock company on 28 September 2015
following its restructuring. In 2015, CDB Leasing actively engaged in aircraft and infrastructure leasing, and maintained its leading position in
the industry with net profit of RMB1,053 million. It was named Most Innovative Leasing Company of the Year by Financial News and the Institute

of Finance and Banking of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, and received the Industrial Contribution Award from the China Air Finance
Development Summit. At the end of 2015, its total assets amounted to RMB155.7 billion.

QO PIERXRREEHRLA

China-Africa Development Fund
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China-Africa Development Fund (CAD Fund), established on 26 June 2007, is the first Chinese equity investment fund dedicated to
investments in Africa. In November 2015, the State Council officially approved the additional capital expansion of USD2 billion to enable
CAD Fund to reach the designed capital size of USD5 billion. In December 2015, China announced in the Johannesburg Summit of Forum
on China-Africa Cooperation to add USD5 billion of funding to the CAD Fund to increase the size of the fund to USD10 billion, which
further enhanced the Bank’s capabilities in promoting China-Africa financial cooperation. In 2015, CAD Fund championed the Chinese
investment efforts in Africa, increased investment and cooperation in building their high-speed railway, highway and regional airline
networks and in promoting industrialization, regional connectivity, industrial capacity, and equipment export in Africa, and set up a USD500
million infrastructure investment and development platform to help address development bottlenecks in Africa’s infrastructure construction.
At the end of 2015, CAD Fund had provided a cumulative total of USD3.17 billion in investments to 84 projects in 36 African countries, and
helped attract USD16 billion investments to Africa.

O FHERIT
Village Banks
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Village banks are one of the major channels through which the Bank supports rural development, SmEs and development activities designed
to help poverty alleviation. At the end of 2015, the Bank had 13 subsidiary village banks and held stakes in 2 village banks.

AN RBEEIEFNA LR

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
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Human Resources
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In 2015, the Bank continued to firmly follow the best practice approach in screening and making the best use of people, improving its
rules and procedures and practices for cultivating and promoting managerial talents, optimizing people’s career paths, and managing and
overseeing the managerial people. The Bank further improved its distinct performance assessment practices to leverage remunerations as
effective incentives, and in addition, improved its employee benefit and security assurance regime, including the adoption of innovative annuity
management methods to safeguard the investment return on its annuity scheme. The Bank also adopted innovative methods in recruiting and
cultivating people as part of its continued efforts in team building, and 526 new recruits in various fields joined the Bank in the year.

HAYH

Organizational Structure
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In 2015, the Bank made continued and substantial efforts to streamline its management processes and improve its organizational structure,
promote the in-depth reform of its practices in managing its international operations and branches. The Bank also strengthened its branch
network with the opening of Kashgar Branch and the London Representative Office. At the end of 2015, the Bank’s network included 37 tier-
one branches and 3 tier-two branches in China, 1 branch and 5 representative offices overseas, and five subsidiaries.

BT
Staff Training
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In 2015, the Bank employed a wide variety of means and methods to organize differentiated training programs for its people. It partnered with
MIT, University of Michigan, University of Manchester, Frankfurt University and Barclays Bank to offer training programs on financial group
management, urbanization financing system, industrial upgrade and financial innovation, management accounting and capital management,
and comprehensive operation system, among other topics, and also selected young talents to work and study at Barclays Bank where they
could learn the best practices and expand their international perspective and vision. The Bank also designed special training programs to
improve their professional capabilities to its banking activities, including urban renewal, international operations, industrial development,
comprehensive finance and risk management. In the year, face-to-face training programs attracted 49,717 participations.

ITRIEBESEELER
IT GOVERNANCE AND ENHANCEMENT

20155 AfTHIE " +=1" FRARRALN. rhEiNAERRRARTEEERTE. TRYERFRLSAE. LA
BRI E MARREETMYFFERNFITZH, KMIORNMERR G LS, TEATV SRR, FREEREEEND,
EREECENEF REWE, SUWEBIIMNUEEANE. RBITHE . BEMIIME =K FH, B:3ISO200004rAEINE, ZMITE
BERGITHER, LHITRE TR, TRMERLEBRZENRERLY), B1ISO27001INIE, FEERMESRKNKEEIE,

In 2015, the Bank formulated its IT system development plan for the 13th Five-Year Plan Period, and provided clear guidance for its future IT
development in the new age. The Bank provided effective IT support to its major priorities, including strategic adjustment for its international
operations, China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone, and urban renewal, rolled out more than ten key systems, and ensured that its IT systems
could heighten its capability to support business development. For data management, the Bank tightened data management so that stricter
criteria could be applied at an earlier stage in data collection and processing, established effective disaster recovery mechanisms for its data
warehouses, and embedded overseas operation data in the systems. The Bank also developed three manuals for IT development, maintenance
and outsourcing, obtained the 1ISO20000 certification, and built the main framework for its information system management system. For the
purpose of on-going strengthening of its IT technological risk management, the Bank deployed disaster recovery solutions for its e-banking
with multi-active system and real-time switchover, and launched the 1ISO27001 certification in line with the requirements that the systems should
be maintained safe and risks properly and effectively managed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

20154 AT E X EIE FEHHENKE XHER, MRESTY . B2 BRHXRE SR, BSHHESS BN EIE
EEH ARSIV BEIF ARG ERKE, B E2015F K, ATHFRBRER743.3527T, TR EEHZK0.81%, ELL43
NEERBFEI%UA,

In 2015, the Bank increased its enterprise-wide risk management, and continued to promote risk management culture and awareness. It focused
on industry-specific, client-specific and country-specific risks, continued to further the implementation of risk management accountability, and
continuously improved the risk control and mitigation capabilities of its subsidiaries and branches. At the end of 2015, the Bank’s NPLs amounted
to RMB74.3 billion, and its NPL ratio of 0.81% had been maintain under 1% for 43 consecutive quarters.

1= F R
CREDIT RISK

ERXKERESBIR
Credit Risk Management and Policy
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As one dedicated to businesses that are medium- and long-term in nature, the Bank builds its internal rating-based systems and credit review
methods in line with the medium- and long-term characteristics of its business activities. In 2015, the Bank further improved its credit management
rules and procedures in line with its business development. In light of the internal and external changes and its asset structure and risk profile, the
Bank increased attention to the safety and environmental protection considerations in its credit review. As part of its on-going efforts to improve
the internal rating-based system, the Bank revised its CDB Credit Rating Manual to further standardize and refine the procedures and ensure
compliance in its rating practices. Other major work included: strengthened asset quality classification and management; developed dynamic
management framework for adjustment and analysis of its asset portfolios, improved the scheme for pre-lending calculation of economic capital,
and optimized its stress testing management system; strengthened dynamic monitoring of its credit risks, improved the early warning system
for client’s credit risks, and strengthened the two-pronged early warning management system that is triggered not only by risk indicators but
also by changes of high-risk clients; expanded the coverage of group clients to improve its capability to prevent and mitigate risk contagions;
strengthened risk analysis and assessment of key clients and projects, key partner countries, hot events, and key industries; conducted risk
inventory-taking and detection in key areas and improve the forward-looking capability and proactive response in risk management.
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Credit Risk Classification and Measurement
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As an effort to further improve the quality and level of detail in its credit risk management and pursuant to the CBRC guidance on capital
management, the Bank established a credit rating system that encompasses rating methodologies, policies, processes and supporting IT
systems, and developed a two-dimensional framework that captures both credit rating and facility rating and covers all the corporate loan
portfolio of the Bank. In addition, the Bank conducted credit ratings on countries, sovereignties, local governments, industries and geographical
regions.

In 2015, in light of the prevailing risk profiles of delinquent borrowers and in accordance with the CBRC'’s Capital Rules for Commercial Banks
(Provisional) concerning model verification, the Bank tested the credit ratings models for corporate loans and project finance loans.
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MARKET RISK
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In 2015, the Bank further improved its market risk management systems and practices, optimized its methodologies for market risk identification,
measurement, monitoring and control, enhanced stress testing methodology, strengthened the risk management and control system for treasury
transactions, and expanded the coverage of treasury transactions and products. The Bank also set out the trading book limits for functions
exposed to market risks, established the market risk management system for the trading book that incorporated various quantitative ratios,
including sensitivity, size, stop loss limits, duration and risk value. It monitored the market risk positions on a daily basis, and took prompt
measures where appropriate.
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OPERATIONAL RISK
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In 2015, the Bank further enhanced its operational risk management and governance, deepened the incorporation of operational risk
management in business management and monitoring activities, organized evaluations of its operational risk management capability and
self-assessments of its fraud prevention efforts, and addressed each and every identified weaknesses to improve its management system
and mechanisms.

The Bank also heightened its competence in managing its legal risks, including developing sample agreements for PPP and financial
innovation projects to provide legal assurance to support and drive business development; completing the assessment of legal risks of
151 countries and regions; drafting the first full set of documentations for the framework governing international syndication loans to further
enhance its capability to manage and mitigate legal risk in international operations; and adopting approaches to improve risk analysis, risk
screening and risk early warning by including legal risk screening procedures in loan reviews and approval, and by conducting anticipatory
planning for major projects.
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In 2015, the Bank made active efforts to promote the compliance culture and awareness, further improve its compliance risk management
system, and strengthen compliance risk identification and management. It supported the CBRC's off-site monitoring, completed scheduled on-
site inspections, regulatory interviews and researches, and derived remarkable results in its follow-up and remediation of issues identified in
regulatory findings. The Bank also increased its review of compliance with rules and regulations and risk assessment of new products in order
to effectively heighten compliance management. In the implementation of risk management accountability, the Bank further improved relevant
rules and regulations to emphasize the requirements to run the Bank by rules and by discipline, which helped the CDB people to significantly
heighten their risk awareness and initiative to meet compliance requirements.
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INTERNAL CONTROL
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In 2015, the Bank continued to strengthen its internal controls, improve its internal control systems, and refine related rules and procedures.
In accordance with the CBRC's requirements, the Bank supported the CBRC's special inspection to “strengthen internal controls and external
supervision, and to curb malpractices and illegal activities”. The Bank engaged in thorough self-assessment and corrections, and increased
efforts to build mechanisms that promote effective and sustainable internal controls. The overall internal controls of the Bank is effective. At
the same time, the Bank implemented the risk-based anti-money laundering principles, and increased the screening and analysis of high-risk
clients and high-risk transactions by checking against the blacklists and exercising close oversight over transactions, particularly with respect
to exposure to money laundering in international operations and terrorism financing. With respect to related-party transactions, the Bank also
improved the relevance and level of detail of relevant rules and procedures, further enhanced the adequacy and compliance of its management
practices, and effectively elevated the overall competence in this area across the Bank.
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The Bank diligently fulfills its corporate social responsibilities and tries to maximally align its own values with the sustainable development of
the national economy, society and environment, as it endeavors to deliver values as a development finance institution dedicated to the mission
of strengthening China’s competitiveness and improving people’s livelihood. The Bank upholds its core values that encompass responsibility,
innovation, green commitment, prudence and win-win solutions, that incorporates best practices and sustainability in its development
strategies and day-to-day business operations and management.

In 2015, the Bank actively supported the development of the real economy, promoted the environmentally-friendly development solutions,
and funded efforts dedicated to enhancing social equality and harmony as well as addressing climate challenges. The Bank maintains on-
going dialogues with international organizations, including United Nations Global Compact, United Nations Environment Programme and
World Wildlife Fund, and stays abreast with the latest trends in relation to sustainable development in order to further empower itself and the
stakeholders to improve sustainability.

The Bank will release China Development Bank 2015 Sustainability Report, in which it will provide more information regarding its philosophy
and practices in fulfilling its social responsibilities and promoting sustainable development.
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BRI EHE T AESA RN T UK. I &R EFIAR
AR, EAEASHRARMRENRIAABR B MK
BT R~ RERKE, R T IMUHKE.

ERINE D BERABMEERFSRE, PHCHRNR R
9 T TE 718 70 5 At SE T _E A AR X 3K R T B 4 3R R A9 K AR
SRICETHR, IS, AKEA XN HIRE B A RE KBRS
KM XS MR AR XS I A6, tASHR
RBE. R E LA BRI, AEAE KRS
FHRIARFINN SR BHE  REFHANKED ZH.

(4) KEIRIUR T E

AEFAAELRBEKARDIR AN FHKENES SERIEMN
MEOZEM TN LIRS, RANEERENKARDURA .
LEROFRENMRX ARG EZEN . RRANGEZZE
MAAEMBEARERAESRRABNERLER/XA™
2 R AE B A E R TR TR FHR LB R L R
WIR AT RrF R . B g a s A E 2 B XS B A
BFENALHMPINGTEENG, SR HIE RN SR,

. BIE#

BER"EARERS HHESIZLEEENSEN, £85FW
BE—IRUTERNERAS TRBREEERY . DR
& E@iRE. VTREMERIE.

B AR ARTIGITE, FRERENRRITTIRRM
EEEENAFIIT. SEEABRNEEIEL MRS
ZEEAFARMEFNARTERANEEMAE TR
& W ANEER &R, FEIEFIAEE R D KE 0
B RSN EMES XM AR ENITT A SRS,

Bl E 7 MR BITIUE o 3 LIRS BOR B . R A RF 9%
EEAGFwATTRITE. FXEER~OHOTHEMAER. Wit
HFREERMERT BRI FWT

20-35% 0%-5% 2.71%-5%
3-10F 0%-5% 9.5%-33%
4-64F 0%-5% 16%-25%
15-20%F 3%-15% 4.25%-6.33%



AEATFEEFRANEER~HOIHERER. IUHR%KE
FMFBETERATER, MEERTUEISITHETT T EAE,
BERSHE . i REIRROLBE RN NG EIKENME
AR ABHEFTOT AL ERE.

EREIEAAREIGRAHE, EFREEHEAENETT
BXHMERHEMBXEAST ARIETTRTE, £A5M
B EARSEEEAEER™.

10.EFE R =

TRA = BRI EN KRG, L EANEEMERE ™.

KRR ZEARTYEITE. RS ARNLHEET A
JHEANE, WEREREZETRNBRELESERITSHE
HIiH s AR AR A B L& 0 I 195 5E.

R EAEFHEROLTEASNERERNMEETT EH
TEZ, HERFTHEE.

11.78%

KR LEBT SRS AANARNEBREFIRM AR X
MRS MAEELUMNIEMETAZEERR.

(1) MEBEE

AEAFEALEA, EEEHFRE FREFHARKER
WS Min B R A ME DR BRAAKNE, TN &R
MERMER" BMICRRERRE,: HEBATERRE. ¥
WEBLARRIERAEZMSHENEZ BNETHIA LR
SHpE RS, AKHARARSEEETHAZN BB AK
PRAZEHTHE, IA L R A RRRAN . FEHRS T KR
REMIT NG R,

(2) #EME

AERAEAFBA AEHAEREHRNZELEITASH
iz,

AERAEARAA, BENBFDIENRERAR KRR, HE
BANERFIRRIZE L A RIASERE.

12.F &R~ m{E

AEATE-ITAFMRERAREKERNKRA. BER
FERETHENLTRASUREMAA T EFAETRE
ERENER. MIRZEFRAFFERETR, WETHETK
Bl &8, hit 7/~ AT E S8 IX B TH > R, N RE
A% BT 7 9 BT MR B A AT (T RS U A% B 7 P B Y
RAFEAAEMBEARA AN TRE SR, MRA AT E
EHMTHEHBKENE FEZHUHRATSBREES. FITA

BELREEFERELR, AEAZPSFENHHATRE
IR RENIR . BE R KE N E D E TS &89
HWEREPZENATARATEAS NEEIEATE
MEFESI A AESNTRESFTRTEIKENEN, 5
INVERARERE. BERLXSHEAMBEDHEZAR A
FAFABEHFENRKENE BREA-ERA~AE
APREEMSMIEMEMA S OKANERSLLE. &L
BIHER H A & TR~ K E ME.

13.

14.

mEiRENE / 85

ERFFRERKE—EHIN, EEFHERTER,

R T i

AERERTAHERBARSHS TG, BXFRENEH
FEBIAL AR, A SEMB SRR A A, AEFAL
EMRIERN R EXRRENRELFRLZETTA S LR
HREXAS WA RTEFFAFEEDHENN, ZRAR
METE,

(1) #H=REER

AEARRAESMEBAVNMEINRIMEREFR, &
HBEAFEZRR. BTRE. EFARER A S RES
B ERIAERHRSHSITHE SRETENRSGTS
TRIAA L6, IR A S SR,

(2) F&itxl

BRERFEZRRIN, EWBEPHUER A N FIRMH 2 RIEED
R ATRANMERTRESIMIBMARRA TS MEERTR
SHESTY. ATRRE-—FRATIIAN—ELpmE
SR BRXFREMIT NGRS,

(3) MWEMRF

NBMBRFENENREAYNERMERARER 2XATEERR
A |EREBE TERMAIFERIXA89&TET 2
A.ATERIARRFRZATRZALEZAFERLESER
REE L mEZABEALHNERNNMER TG ABE
Fiafl.

THRENGKRE, ABEFRNSRBMPRREMN B AEH
THRE . AR RI SR B HUZ 518 7 AR E A B 6
Beas R, MIAA R, BT RERENRAUERE~EN
EIESEEab SAWNEE k-

(4) HFEBRAKEFI

ATE2201MFI12B3NHEMATERK. RSMESITHHE

WM R TS TERAET, BRMEFESMHTEST
@A,

TR AGKE, PR ERKIEF XS ERRBRIARRIEF A
EBATREE, TR R IL% & 8% 548 F f STHABR A (0L Ay
EfaE R ARG, B TRERENEUSTRES
ENFBIMETT AR MBEARE.

it st
HEFHFURXNN S EAREARENAXNS ., AR
RXERUESHEFNARE BRXSHETEBTE
HitE AEBEBEBIN DT AR,

TARFAGRRE, AEAZEESHEEMEXONE . FHE
MMETHEMESFER ZRETHEXANXSHEIH
B RAE ST BT A RETITTE. MR ETHEMER W
EX, UMTT A RA SR U TR ST EREBITE

5 5 BRAER XA R RRERCOZ 5T H L RAH
Z2RNEERERNAMNTE TSRS,
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15. 7 B FA3Z H
RN 2 FBAR S SR P I B SRR AR
FSRIRFISR S, A SR

SRFFRERER. FIRRNRRITERERKAREIN
ERMIFI R EHIA.

16. FEHRAEIWN

FHEBHRASBNEE ERAEX RS N AR TR £ 5 FEN
i,

17.Fi3#
PRS2 FA 095 24 ST 19 B A28 TE ARG L.

(1) HBFREHR

A RGERE, T L EM BT E AL A S E TS K
FOHRE>) BRBEENETEOTHR A (FRE) B FT
BREIOTE,

(2) BEATEH

AEAMFELER ™ NHETENKENES Lt BEM 2 5
FZH. MERIEDAZ MOURFINERRBB AN E T IUH
EHEITHREM AT B B KENME ST TR 2 8 928~ &
MENMER XAASNHERESERNBERERAS
RBEMSHAE.

—RIERTAE SN M ERYWINEXABERER. BX
THRMENMER, AER IR T REBUS A kN T L0
ENMERNNATRMSTNR, BINEXNBEREHRA
oo ERENMRFIAMEXH UMESHEAELYEIH.
REMNBARZ M ITFAMEHTASHR (HTHNSHR)
MZZTFENATLAENEFH NG RNETNMEER.
FYHINERHEEMEHR AR RME.

AEABINSFAE . BELWREE SV IR TR
BENMERTENBERSHAR. RERKHAEBES
INMEREZONNE, MEZENEERETRLARRK
RUEFASELD, HTE5TRE KELYRAESWRANR
ROTHMNEHMZR AALENUERETRRHRE
RUEEDE, BRKBRUEISARMMNTMINGHMEER
R RN IS AT, AR E A WHINBEPIGRA.

THRFNHEERD, N TEBEERFRASMBEMSHR AR, R
ERENE , 2RI 48 5 7 7~ 0B RA8 X TR A 18 B
BEABEITE. RSERETAEBGARAIRENENR
SHMBIMAXN LY ERMBEMEBITAEBE SRS
FRAENE , AR H 7 4 7938 TP 5B B i F A IK
EMESS HRLHMESRMBEREHREAIKEITAY
LEEE

TARAFNGRERE AKRBANBERSRASHNKENELTE
%, MRARKR T RETE KGR B A R AT P 15-80UH DUk N i
EFAERASHN G, WRICSEEMSHRA~NKENE, &
ROUERBEBHEABAEHN, RICHSATINED,

(3) FREBLHIIRSH

WA ATEENEENT, ARESFEESLIE R
B BEARRNETH, ASASHRERES R L HME
Tt 515 UK 58 )5 B B HR

HEAEMAMEE LM ERAT REHRER AR EE
A, BEBERERA~RBERERARE S5 E—HBAE
BRI E—HREEMERAMERAXIEZ S REHH
BEBEX BERKE-—AFERTUNBERSHASR
MEREEREE R, P RAAE AR E DS REE LA
BRAFMAFRERANRER BFREAGRHN, KREABE
BiSBL B = R 18 S A5 Bt 0 6% LUK SE /3 903 G 9R

18. &2 &3

(1) E—E=fHTrELEH
AEAEIEFAXMANEIFRNNEREOREIF T SH
HRKENETE. AFTRENEASKENES LN
AFNNKENENZM, AEARAR (BRAGEN) AR
AR BRASHRN) TR ORI, BERSBRFE.

AEAABTEVEHFRENEERATRENITALH

ik 8

(2) FER—EHITHRLEHF
FEFAENMITG G FHABUSHEBI T SFIAFMT
MEFANE ™ NEERIARRAEBIENAANETE. &
FRERTEIFFMBORMETT THIANEE 2 ANES
MOZH, EA A RIANAFEIRR AR TYGETE.
BIFMANTEHPRENBEUITTHIHINEA A RMNE
WA, EENBSHEBI G EMTIAL = ARESHE
NEHAAMENRSFREANITEETERZ EXERH
AN NT &I PBUS IR T T HA R R~ 2 RN ER
T I NG E k-

FEABIZ ARG DI RAER—EFHTHLLEIFH,
EHEAABIAXFHNNEMERZHEELFTHHRN
IHHRRERIEN A ANEZ.

ATV EHRENERAXTARAMAXEERAT
REMIT AL HRE.

19. &

MR —ZH TRV EHF TUXEEHBEAKTEIFF
RSB ETTIHINE R~ A ANENTNZIHILA
BE. BERRMAMNBRREAEENFEST.

AFHM SRR T E

AHFMESMERNEIER G BT UHE, E5 215
BRADAAERNERATHORN, BESE5RRATHOERE
HMEFTLER, HFERENZANBRETHN 0
HORSHM. —BERXEXNEANT LSRR LR ZHEX
BROBXBEREET BU, KERABHTERTME.

MBEFASHEFEFINZAE, AEAFBELIANE
HEE: MEZREFINZBRELENANEGITEE ., W TE
—EHTRVEHRENTAS, BHSATRZHRLER



TEHZBRMANKTEHEE EERENEEH TN
FEFRAEFHTEFN ZAENEERRNASRECEY
BEFESHIBERNEFASRERD. I TER—=H
THEUYEHBENTAS HEWMIALENEERRENS
REELEUWBREESFFMERTEHALRERD. K
SREBRAMTEESNEBTASANGIEE.

FLBAD RN AREBEERLT WRE T2 EHN
B, FRBRIUZRAEERAEHNNBNAANERTERT
B QRERTNERSHNNSHRRNAANEZM, KERE
BRI ENZARFASAMXB FRFEITERN SR
FHROFZENER T AR EFINEHRR RS AN
HREE, SRATFARRMRARRNHEBE SRS Ek
KA 0 SR B UK

BHEFRRTNOINGSWER, TR EENMTERTR
ARSI BERISTHHRB A -8B, ZRATHSITBURS
SITHEN T AU SRERHTHERNFE,

SHARERFH. X5 B ARKIAEE S H Y 5 W& R 6
FREE. TARMNBRENER IS RETTETAED
B MBI D AEA D BRARER P BERFRAEERIT
4 55 2 o AR AR AN 28 RS ADE I T ARSI

. SRASITEERPABHEZA NS TG

TR AR R BRI ATBE B R
AEHAAESAMEINAHEANSTBRRIES B TEER
HAENTHEN, ARAFTEN T EERITENREZTE
BN I {E AT FI BT (AR . XL H T AT ATRIR R
ETERRIENAELER FAEZBHEMBXERNEM
EEEH SERNERTESAREANEITEEESR,

REFAXN TR AW AT MRRERELENRM EiTE
HERZ [EITHEEREMEE L, AEmEEERE
LHEIT BN ME WA E LA EmAKS B, HZmik
RS L EARLAR SR 8] F DUBR A

AFENFRE. AREAFTXNYESRERE SPBITHE. (4
THRENEZFHNT

- KRR B RRE

B Xt B 2R B B R B PR B IR AT R E R R TR SN, R E
TE BN BN A & B RUE IR R B B ATIT AL . T f BT
TREAASRAR DO RRERNTRES, KEAXN TiZ
RREGREFEIIT AR ST LR ETRETH
B DHERESHRRITRARARELESE. ETRRARMUEAR
REBLNATEHEMRAERINDLER, FEANFER
EXRNTRARMEBERT. KRR ZHTEX KK
SR ST BH T AERNTETNRE, UERE
HRREXGERESHEITREZEHER.

2. ATt EERMT T RIZMRBA T ENRFRE

REFABREC(LVSIHAENE22S - SR TARINITE)
HMERARORERERBERGRE. REREERARE
EL@ETEEEAN, AHMRARSRERENIES,

= ok

MEIRENTE / 87

REFATIFHIZIUE B2 R NMERTF AR TEEMFF L
B REDMTEMASRE (HIN: FARMREBEES)
MEHR AN KA SRR FEHW SRE (Fl4 . 71k
EERTR) SRR AHAMRERSREN FUZEN, &
SRFBHEZMRANNEREZTN LRESHINTRER
REREMNFIEX (Pl REANEATRERSE).

. EMIANRNME

WRERBRZSG TN ERMIA ASAEAGERARTE
HARME. SEGERABREREHAFHTHIHINE.
TREBHEO SR TAME, FANKEEENFARS
REDTT. MEREBEANTHENRE, KREAMLTERE
frem T RAARMENHERREERTARNTHEE B
X — L4, MAREFR T 5N FHERRE . T M
BEXMSERFBRE, WEEEEENHHETHIT, XEHEXR
BHRUSNERTANARNETER 0,

. FEEIBRE

AEABHAFANERER TREERSHMEEEHH
BEASATRHBREMNENFEZEMNETESHAS A
KAFBEEZIHRA. HORMAXRTER SRR FIMT.
ERITHARNSED AERASHEBEIZERAZEHA
R B NG, R E BRI (BlmEREEIHA
MEESHAERNRE) MRAKAREFXLEREFE
ZEXHE WIBERZERAETNLETHREESRA,

. FriE

EERNEERST REXHUFMHNRERSLELT
ERFEN. AT EMESHEAN, AEAFTEEHERH
W, MRRERESEMMNRLNELERSHRVARNESOE
HEEF ZEFEXNEH DRRLINEH B SR E AN
BIEPTRRASH- £,

. EERIM
. AV FTE R

RFE(FEARKMELWPREREY, KITRADZNER
TEFRSHMEWEAED, KITHFEH25%.
REFTIMI 532 R L H R K Gah i W AT B R,
WFRERCEBYN TIMIMAERRRSRRAREE
FEDBEETETRE—HEAEHR.

A PrSRLAI B AT BRI B 3 RE R XA EHIT.

. BB R IR {ER

RE(XTFELEARTBEH VL ANFOARRS LE LR
BALBER IR SRR BUR A B AN (M5 [2013]375 ), K&KH
BANMRENEERETRS RE AT MSMNIEER 18
ERHE H6%-17%.

B RIBEREBRSEIN KEAFANGENHE L HLL
WMEWE, EUBBEA%, BV LTHIBHMNNIE, &
BRI LR S AR R IRAAE L.
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3. WMHEPEIEH
RSB AR E LB RIS ER 1% 7% R T A SRR

4. HEHEH M
7R B 5 PR LA T M B 03% - 5% AU 2 M .

. ERFAREEHEE
BABHERNATEETADTNEAERIIFET .

EF¢mERTEAS EPN HiERNURHE AR 51,516 100%H EH5H
EALRESERAT b B R AR 50000  100%EEHE
ERemEERGERAT o E K b i AR 9,500 88.95%HEHH
TERRESHRAT EbN EeRARER AR 20,335 100% (8 & 5H
EFIESBRRFELT EbN E# AR 7,370 100% H EH5H
ERERAFRAT HEEE BRI S E 1,584 100%H #H5H

F2015F 128318, RTEERE 7T 13RFNERITF L3 (2014F K . 13K,

N, MEHREREETEME
1. RERFRHRRITR

ZEH AT
EFIE 33 54 1 1
FHRRBITEAEFEREES 872 1,081 = -
FRHPRBITEMFSREA 263,027 56,265 261,324 55,978
&it 263,932 57,400 261,325 55,979

2. FFHIELERT

ZEH 4T
FRENE MR 414,923 892,976 381,587 881,919
HFRIR AR TSR 1,078 454 1,078 454
FREINELMhERTT 180,718 111,596 173,954 100,272
FRESNMERITS RN 5 - = -
A1t 596,724 1,005,026 556,619 982,645

F20155F12831H0 , AKBFHE LT AR M FRAART19.801Z5T (20145128310 ARM14.901Z7T), FEAHFHR
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3. F&E
R EEH F:X6)
o [osERANIE 0wS1ANA | 201SEIRASIE  20EiANIE
P N H R 1T 91,524 14,922 90,424 14,622
IR R IR TSR 14,000 1,528 14,000 1,328
FRURSN B RTT 5,452 3,045 5,452 3,045
&it 110,976 19,495 109,876 18,995

4. RAnMETERREHIT AL BRRAERE™
ES i *T

Z oM ERA

BT RO BUR LA 6 55 9,870 6,489 9,622 6,489
SR B 3,795 - - -
A B 65,153 27,915 53,421 18,772
Hith i 200 296 - -
RERESRE 1,767 3,832 = -
ERZE3=] 446 146 446 -
NI 81,231 38,678 63,489 25,261
BEAUDANETEBEEDITA
LER RS RA
e 501,103 45,806 424,350 -
REEETR 93,670 8,295 92,111 8,295
PR 7= 5 K E At 5,156 3,016 = -
INF 599,929 57,117 516,461 8,295
&it 681,160 95,795 579,950 33,556

5. iTEEMB~ RAf
FARFOUERE, AEAFENTESRTANBXEFRARAANEI TN T. TELRTANBXETTUAE >~ A ERA
WIANA SR AR A ANEREEREY, EHF—ERRZIANARINESRER LI AANE, B R —EERMRARERFT
mRNEARESITHRRE. TELRTIANAANERESEEAXKBEXNTHAERMMNOCRETENRNTEL, BK
WAEABHHRSHAMNNAGR, ZHAANENRETEERRDHEDERREE.
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KEH 20154 12831H 2014412831H

i

CELTETR

BMEHR (BFEIXEHHAEER) 944,844 4,968 (9,971) 974,569 10,298 (2,190)

HEMCERLTETR 183,444 92 (57) 201,046 432 (172)
N 1,128,288 5,060 (10,028) 1,175,615 10,730 (2,362)
FIELTETR

FIE 5 # 602,870 8,750 (7,270) 542,000 7,814 (6,735)

FIEHAN 11,882 370 (370) 12,042 421 (421)
N 614,752 9,120 (7,640) 554,042 8,235 (7,156)
&it 1,743,040 14,180 (17,668) 1,729,657 18,965 (9,518)
4T 2015412831H 2014412H31H

CERETETA
RHE# (BFETXEHFEER) 942,441 4,968 (9,866) 974,569 10,298 (2,190)
HMCELTETR 183,444 92 (57) 199,806 432 (169)
N 1,125,885 5,060 (9,923) 1,174,375 10,730 (2,359)
FELTETR
FIZE 5 # 605,325 9,035 (7,227) 545,401 8,161 (6,697)
Fil ZEHARL 11,882 370 (370) 12,042 421 (421)
NIt 617,207 9,405 (7,597) 557,443 8,582 (7,118)
&it 1,743,092 14,465 (17,520) 1,731,818 19,312 (9,477)
EfLit

FARAFUFERD, LATESRMIATEENEH IR TMOT.

&R 2015412A31H 2014412831H

ARNMEEHIA

FIZEE # 24,943 1,033 (87) 18,110 928 (151)
NeREEHTAR

F) 2 5,401 1 (44) 6,476 10 (41)

HMTEHFETR 2,403 - (106) - - -
&it 32,747 1,034 (237) 24,586 938 (192)
&IT 2015412A31H 2014%12H31H

PAMEEHRTR

F 2 F 24,943 1,033 (87) 18,110 928 (151)

&it 24,943 1,033 (87) 18,110 928 (151)
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NRMEEH
AEAFI AN EERERNFIXENSENAANERNHTERRE, REHARBAAEARTHAFTEILEHRFE,
BEEHIAMNAANEZANRERNE REHRE LR SRS RROEREDNE I THT .

ARMEER RS (RX)

EHTR 113 1,085
EHRE X A ELTE 139 (983)
&it 252 102

REAAARNERSNREFHINNEATRES D ~ERBEFEK.

NeEREEH
FEAFAHNXEREGRNMNERH SENALRERNHTERRE WEPUE AXEAFRBRW S fE H BTN
&R,

T2015F12A31H . ARAC KT AR MGERENASRBER TR AANMELRHN ZERNREAART149ZT . F KA
2016 E20244F (8] FH B ANFIH R,

6. INREERE™
AEH &1T
% 1,334,917 1,084,318 1,328,622 1,079,845
7. B FE
&R &1T
RGBT S 20,873 20,849 20,777 20,842
FRE R B 3,402 3,895 3,364 3,844
R EREFE (1) 6,710 3,322 5,899 2,691
RERESFE 250 23 250 17
ENBREF S 994 2,256 989 2,218
Hith 819 248 807 248
At 33,048 30,593 32,086 29,860

(1) EBREARMREFNSBEMUAANETEEETMITASMRENSHA> THUEESRA . FHE Z PR ALK
MEBRAIHRATIL.
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8. HMETRIEK
(1) RSB RAHERUT

R EEH T
o [osERANE wwizAnA | 201SEIRACIE  iEizANIE
RIS
- B ERAERN 9,120,754 7,862,880 9,059,217 7,848,967
— RU A G GGR 85,164 78,749 = -
— Hfth 1,031 13 - -
&it 9,206,949 7,941,642 9,059,217 7,848,967
B SRR E
Hep . BImiEL (45,506) (29,299) (43,590) (28,425)
BETFE (296,083) (242,992) (294,220) (241,778)
(341,589) (272,291) (337,810) (270,203)
RIRGEFR TR AT 8,865,360 7,669,351 8,721,407 7,578,764
Her . AECTHY A9 AL AR 5T R YO K R 8T 13,081 12,290 = -
(2) EHMBRFIERFTIRK S
AER 20155 20144
SRR @AW &M wWEE @eRR &b
EMHRR 29,299 242,992 272,291 14,475 203,838 218,313
IR 22,775 49,794 72,569 16,127 39,398 55,525
REHEN 2 5 7 - 12 12
%4 (6,719) (28) (6,747) (759) - (759)
BTN E L FH S 2 E (454) - (454) (280) - (280)
SNRTE ZER 603 3,320 3,923 (264) (256) (520)
FEREM 45,506 296,083 341,589 29,299 242,992 272,291
T 20154 20144
SRR ERRR &M ®WEE @RRR &b
FEHRT 28,425 241,778 270,203 14,264 202,819 217,083
HHRE 21,028 49,126 70,154 15,464 39,211 54,675
=% (5,977) = (5,977) (759) - (759)
R RME LT SE A EED (454) - (454) (280) - (280)
SN ITEZER 568 3,316 3,884 (264) (252) (516)
FREH 43,590 294,220 337,810 28,425 241,778 270,203
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(3) BHAS AR RIMT:
AEH 16IHR

2015%12H31H

(B EN 566 653 668 152 2,039
RIE TR 4,190 6,461 5,128 35 15,814
R R ¥ FE R
— IR 2,095 10,688 7,982 64 20,829
— BB 823 4,363 11,100 102 16,388
&it 7,674 22,165 24,878 353 55,070

2014%12H31H

(e EN 921 109 409 2 1,441
RIEFEFK 1,008 2,142 1,632 909 5,691
HHBIR Y BE R
— ALK 5,755 3,287 3,397 961 13,400
— R 983 9,834 3,825 1,015 15,657
&it 8,667 15,372 9,263 2,887 36,189
AT bk

2015%12H31H

(e 447 611 1,594 152 2,804
RIEGER 4,064 6,382 5,102 35 15,583
HHBIR ¥ FE R
— IR 1,185 7,830 6,934 62 16,011
— R 813 4,363 11,091 102 16,369
&it 6,509 19,186 24,721 351 50,767

2014%12H31H

(e 868 1,295 283 2 2,448
RIETER 968 2,114 1,628 908 5,618
GEELCSYIEE
— ALK 3,922 1,630 2,389 959 8,900
— BB 972 9,827 3,825 1,015 15,639
&it 6,730 14,866 8,125 2,884 32,605

MRFARESHA S @I, WiZ R R ADEATR . X T U IR EE R TRMER, MR D HAMREH, WizwRE
EBAREIIE D K MBI
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9. At EERB ™

A T
| osERASIA | 014F12ANA | 01ERASIA  2014F12A31R

o E

BURF B R BUR LS T35 144,630 98,596 144,324 98,590

SR 6 4,009 3,859 3,783 3,839

AEMRSE 89,397 38,385 80,869 29,461

Htbfmss 169 102 = -
Nt 238,205 140,942 228,976 131,890
WHETHR 22,347 24,578 = -
BlkzEe 103,248 6,454 103,248 6,454
Ait 363,800 171,974 332,224 138,344

F20155F 128318, AEARATIUHEE LT~ EHROBEEED S AARTI8014ZTEARTO0.17{ZT (20145128
31H: ART186.24(Z TR ARM1.72127T) .

10. HEEIMRRA

SR HRE 399 293
NGk 1,999 1,999
A1t 2,398 2,292

1. R UCRRTIRR F

R EE [ T
o [isRRESiA | 2EiANA | 20ISEIRASIE 2014E12AdE
BN ROEBUR S 655 149,299 - 149,299 -
SRV HES 5,035 4,675 5,035 4,675
A B FRFE 274 1,197 23 933
HAith i 2,831 7,212 5,837 5214
B R R EAM 7,985 6,248 - -
A1t 165,424 19,332 160,194 10,822
R R BGRITER T AR S (343) (264) (239) (73)

R YR 95 2 K TE N E 165,081 19,068 160,171 10,749
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12, KEARAUR

AER 4T
FiE ) - - 91,216 87,504
BEMEESLIFE ) 1,680 1,650 115 113
&1t 1,680 1,650 91,331 87,617
B KRS R B EEE = - (18,953) (18,953)
KEARAPUIE R 25 1,680 1,650 72,378 68,664
(1) F2=A
FAT 91,216 87,504
B KHARAS R B EEE (18,953) (18,953)
FATIR BT 72,263 68,551

() ZTEETASELES . BEAMEL,
(i) RETTRRRARMERLMAT

FMRT 68,551 68,372
i 3,712 179
EREH 72,263 68,551

(2) ZEMGERLRHE

AER i
BREMEESWITE 1,680 1,650 115 113
B KERRE AR R A - - _ _
BEMEELWIRE ST 1,680 1,650 115 113

() ZEATEHEMGECYERERIRNT.

REESHBAALRFRATE T E K THEREREHAL ARM 3,000  20%EEEE 20%
EAFEZRARRBRIALE FE KX BREEREN ART 1,250  40%[aiEEE 40%
EFRERURBRLF FE KR B TSR ES 34 25%AEEE 25%

S o = FHBXHES 6B 5HE . .
FEEREREEFRLE FE KX EERER AR® 200  35%[EEEE 35%
RINERERAERTERTREL S R E A B RIT AR 200  35%EEEF 35%

ERRREEARFTIEAST R E A BREEREN AR 120 45%EEEE 45%
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(i) AEARATHKENSELURAZHERNOT

A EEH AT
[ eotsk® . 2onem | 2016F 2014
FMRA 1,650 1,597 113 101
20 43 53 6 12
W (13) - () -
EREM 1,680 1,650 115 113
13. EEH™
R EEH
S [ mEEED rows | EGRE wies | ERIE &b
R
201541 B1H 19,625 2,420 315 41,409 2,765 66,534
RN 188 373 839 7,939 1,779 11,118
KREABTIREN (FH) 116 - = - (116) -
RERDH (783) (128) (18) (554) (5) (1,488)
20154128318 19,146 2,665 1,136 48,794 4,423 76,164
KR
201541810 (2,271) (1,066) (192) (6,057) = (9,586)
AEITHREN (800) (374) (73) (2,291) = (3,538)
RER D 160 78 14 23 = 275
20154128318 (2,911) (1,362) (251) (8,325) = (12,849)
ke 201
201541 B1H 17,354 1,354 123 35,352 2,765 56,948
20154128318 16,235 1,303 885 40,469 4,423 63,315
T
o emRWR R ENRE GRIR &
R
201518 1H 18,735 1,503 270 2,581 23,089
AR 120 330 3 1,616 2,069
REERTIREN (HU) 115 - = (115) -
REF D E (765) (47) (15) (4) (831)
20154128318 18,205 1,786 258 4,078 24,327
it IE
201541 B1H 2,111) (887) (165) - (3,163)
RETTRM (730) (279) (60) - (1,069)
RER D 148 39 13 - 200
20154128318 (2,693) (1,127) (212) - (4,032)
B
2015418 1H 16,624 616 105 2,581 19,926
20154128318 15,512 659 46 4,078 20,295

F20156E12H31HF20145E12831H,

FEARATEERFPAFEEANARBIAABNNEELR .
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14. TRAF=

AER
FiE
20151 81H 781 2,371 119 3,271
AEIEIN 156 9 7 172
RERF D = (144) = (144)
20154128 31H 937 2,236 126 3,299
Rt
201551 B1H (281) (237) (22) (540)
AEITRE (98) (54) 2 (154)
AERDE = 20 = 20
20154128318 (379) (271) (24) (674)
BE
201541 810 500 2,134 97 2,731
20154128318 558 1,965 102 2,625
FIRREHER (F) 1-9 30-45 1-9
AT
BE
20151818 696 1,851 111 2,658
AEHEN 122 9 7 138
AER DM = (144) = (144)
2015412831H 818 1,716 118 2,652
Rt
20151 81H (247) (184) (21) (452)
AEITRH (79) (44) (1) (124)
AER D = 20 = 20
20154128318 (326) (208) (22) (556)
EER
20151818 449 1,667 90 2,206
20154128318 492 1,508 96 2,096
FIRPEHER (F) 1-9 30-45 1-9

15. @&
&R
HHUEFIESHFRAS 629 629
HHUERSHMEERBERLD 560 560
Hfth 61 57
&3t 1,250 1,246

20155 K, ARARET AN R KA SR FERT T RENK, RRAFTEFERELTR.
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AR AT
R 65,503 48,095 65,586 48,539
TSR R (4,469) (4,297) - -
<271 61,034 43,798 65,586 48,539
(1) BEAEHROTIEROT:
ZEH 4T
FH R 43,798 38,579 48,539 41,122
DNEL i EE 17,453 6,494 17,750 7,483
TR # (217) (1,984) (703) (775)
Hith = 709 = 709
ERED 61,034 43,798 65,586 48,539
(2) BEMEREFRAGHEAKRTIBSRNOT:
ZEH 2015412H31H 2014%£12H31H
BEFTERERS
BB EEE 241,699 60,425 181,474 45,368
ot ESRA S RERES 16,652 4,163 16,796 4,199
UARMEITEBREEFITA
HRRA ML BA A RN E XD LIS or8 (8:473) (2118)
ot i i 3,064 766 2,954 738
Hb B mEEE 1,810 452 1,443 361
Hith 862 215 780 206
TEHEESRAS L2 ANEES (5,986) (1,496) (2,637) (659)
&it 262,014 65,503 192,337 48,095
BRIEFTEH R
EREESHASARNEES (10,818) (2,704) (13,061) (3,265)
MUARMEITERETHITA
LEIRA N SBAS A RN ETD (B2l (1,570) (6,745) (1,129)
it (1,801) (195) (288) 97
&it (19,204) (4,469) (19,094) (4,297)
)T 2015412831H 2014412H31H

BAFE AT 1SR 5
RO EE & 238,991 59,747 180,358 45,090
KERBIR R BEA & 18,953 4,738 18,953 4,738
it R 3,064 766 2,954 738
Hth R mEEE 23 6 73 18
I ESMATREEE 16 4 160 40
TJHEESMEB~ARNEES (2,675) (668) 141 35

&it 262,343 65,586 194,158 48,539




17. Eftb 3™
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A EEH] AT

o [osERANIE 0wS1ANA | 201SEIRASE  20EiANIE
RS A 21,689 - 21,689 -
AR &K 13,112 14,183 - -
FaAH R SR 7,392 5,650 331 1,366
UESEXHEEENE 1,071 774 — -
23718952 g 558 152 = -
T AR B 5K 167 301 - -
KHEFRE A 152 104 25 29
ERRIUESF LR NE ™ 35 703 25 508
Hits 9,840 11,002 4,242 538
&it 54,016 32,869 26,312 2,441
B E b =R EEE (290) (786) (20) (20)
H B 53,726 32,083 26,292 2,421

18. B REHEE
ER 20154

L eREO RO RERA () TESH SR
RIEFRAE K 272,291 72,569 (7,194) 3,923 341,589
THEESRE 18,624 445 (1,055) = 18,014
R BRI R 264 134 (48) (7) 343
Rz AR 164 2 - 1 167
ENBESRA~ - 28 - - 28
Hth# >~ 786 (480) (24) 8 290
&it 292,129 72,698 (8,321) 3,925 360,431
T 20154

L R KSR RERNGRW)  TES® ERE
R FERK 270,203 70,154 (6,431) 3,884 337,810
KHR AR 7 18,953 - - - 18,953
JHHESRAT 172 - (155) - 17
RN CERIR K 3% 73 5 (48) (7) 23
Hps > 20 - - - 20
&it 289,421 70,159 (6,634) 3,877 356,823
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19. Elk & E & R A BRI

AEH T
[ 01sFIR2A3NA 2014E12A31H | 2015E12A31H  201412A31R
EREAMRT 1,298,330 1,227,447 1,299,460 1,228,554
BEWIERT SR 140,437 115,117 140,493 115,491
BINEABRTT 66,239 65,912 66,239 65,912
&it 1,505,006 1,408,476 1,506,192 1,409,957

20. [a) BT 0 E A & RAMLAG AR

AR T
[ 0sFIZASIE 201F12AYIA | 20IFIZANE 2014E12ASIE
BREMBITRIERTEEIEER 327,548 427,260 219,484 325,892
RIMNHAMRITRIFRT SRV ERK 19,436 14,108 5,004 1,683
BIMRITER — XHER 6,317 7,917 6,317 7,917
SNEBURT R K 1,974 2,088 1,974 2,088
&it 355,275 451,373 232,779 337,580

21. FANEE

ZREEH 4T
BINEMBRITIHRA 54,131 41,115 54,131 41,115
RAEMBTHRA 14,834 34,984 13,334 34,234
A1t 68,965 76,099 67,465 75,349

22. SEHEMERBT =R

AER AT
iE% 17,342 20,611 = 10,019
B 2% FA 5T R UK 5,922 5,512 = -
Bl T S U ER Y 6,220 1,912 = -
it 29,484 28,035 = 10,019

23. MU ER

AER AT
W EERTF R 1,586,188 841,501 1,580,206 836,667
1 E EATFER 118,279 125,510 117,619 124,454
W RIEEFRK 6,976 13,371 6,361 13,056
EHRRTAF UL EHEE 143,968 107,330 143,968 107,330

&It 1,855,411 1,087,712 1,848,154 1,081,507




24. NRHE

MEREME / 101

AER 4T
MR A= 42 642 28,859 41,500 27,998
B B R BN 6,244 7,194 6,147 7,131
Hith 247 290 185 238
&it 49,133 36,343 47 832 35,367
25. MfFFIR
&R &1T
mEF 2 133,816 124,415 133,607 124,298
Bk & H & B F AR IF R 3,773 3,172 3,773 3,172
R F R T A 3,423 3,111 3,367 3,079
ERFE 1,600 2,250 1,118 1,467
WAREFE 179 539 179 538
St B MR AR 65 154 = 3
Hith 716 24 712 17
&it 143,572 133,665 142,756 132,574
26. Fitfafts
AER 4T
&5 BRI T fi 2,619 2,578 3,064 2,954
SR FEFR R IMESIRIE 942 961 942 961
At 3,561 3,539 4,006 3,915
27. NfHEHF
AER 4T
N &ph (1) 7,212,700 6,245,014 7,190,808 6,229,604
N AP RB RS ) 76,710 96,587 76,710 96,587
N ZREARRK (3) 11,962 11,958 11,962 11,958
&it 7,301,372 6,353,559 7,279,480 6,338,149
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(1) FZft&Rufss

2015%12H31H

BARTART &GS 2001-2015 2016-2065 1.83-5.90 6,563,587
BANRT AR T SRR 2012-2014 2017-2032 3.30-4.50 10,716
BRRITING SRS 2013-2015 2018 1.33-1.60 18,569
BINR TN SRS 2014-2015 2016-2020 0.88-2.50 10,953
BRETARTERME 2015 2020-2035 3.05-4.06 586,983
KTRITRFELT 7,190,808
FREARITHETEE 2012-2014 2017-2024 2.15-4.25 13,835
FATDRTHARM RS 2014-2015 2016-2020 3.20-6.05 8,265
B FASRAATRITHRES (208)
RERARTRE S 7,212,700
2014412831

BARTARTERES 2001-2014 2015-2063 2.62-5.90 6,201,462
BINRIT AR T £ 2012-2014 2015-2032 2.95-4.50 14,975
BRLTING ERGES 2013 2018 1.48 5,277
FINEITINT &R 2005-2014 2015-2017 0.51-5.00 7,890
RTRTRFEL 6,229,604
FABRITHETERE 2012-2014 2017-2024 2.50-4.25 13,017
TABRTHART G 2014 2019 6.05 2,487
B FASFAATRITNGRS (94)
REFARTHREF S 6,245,014

Fo015E12A31H, AT HEERNATHNARTERESHEFEEESM AT I ARMT392.00127t (20145FE12831H: AR™
612.001Z7c) M&mES REREMEATESHEACATEHNPRABEFETN BB I EHLEREEIBRAIEE

BEMNER HERRNGESFEHERNETHREIHE.
(2) LR BLRS

AERARAIT 20154 12H31H
BRNETARTRSE 2009-2012 2021-2062 3.15-6.05 76,710
2014%12A31H

BREXTARTGES 2005-2012

2020-2062

3.82-6.05

96,587

ATRTHREEFYMAAFATREIRENER. ANERE AHELATRITERENH, BORFHERENEIARIR

BKE,
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(3) RIff ZRFEAMR

2015%12H31H

BRAXHTART RS 2014 2024 5.3 11,962

2014%12H31H

RBRXTART GRS 2014 2024 5.3 11,958

EFRRTHZRALXGHAAFATRAREN SR, ERSFEME, FAREFIE,

28. Hithfafx

R EEHF] 1T
| sERANA WEIZASIE | 201SFRASIA  04F1ZANIE
ERM B F RN MBS 10,908 8,633 10,908 8,633
HAERIES 5,166 4,722 - -
R FEERAS 2,723 891 2,723 891
REIZIIEHK 2,054 1,471 . _
NAHEERER 1,070 1,478 - -
REEMAS 281 287 281 287
EREFIEH UG LT N\ R 35 703 25 508
Hith 99,415 15,475 4,230 1,935
&it 121,652 33,660 18,167 12,254

‘
=
S

e A BR S B U AR 153,908 153,908
HRCERAFRFEALT 146,092 146,092
BRI RS BRI 114,537 -
LEMSREESESES 6,711 6,711
&it 421,248 306,711

20155 7A15H, BFSMNCHEE B ER AT EBANEKE AT EARITEL I AITIERA80{Z%TT, #5H 417114,536,955,987
B, ARTTRRA S4B R 1306,711,409,395 % & N £ 421,248,365,382f% .

30. HARR

ARE&ER 20154 20144
BAE N 3,355 178,840 = 182,195 3,355 - - 3,355
Hth - 1 - 1 - - - -

At 3,355 178,841 = 182,196 3,355 - - 3,355
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AT 20154 20144
BEA I 3,355 178,840 = 182,195 3,355 - - 3,355

31. BRAR

RFEROBXEEINE, ATTRBEUSTHENTARFERBI0BEAEERRAR. URTEERRAREBITTARST
BRARIS0% X LR, T IXAERR. ZRAASHE, FTRINZZERRARTATRIATHSRAEFLBRTRAE. #FiEkK
KE, FBENEEREARABOFRAN25%. BN, ATEBRFASHARRIZERRAR,

AN m AR

32. —HRIXBE &

AR T
_ 2014412H31H _ 20144128315
N5 (1) 144,256 122,119 144,256 122,119
FAT] 2 2,808 2,621 - -
Ait 147,064 124,740 144,256 122,119

(1) AITEVBEIBCEREVASESITHEEEE)(M£[2012]205 ) (NE, ARBASKEASHEME R —RARES
FLRGRAMRITEARIRBIAY 5 KBS 7 =18 XA B TT BB 4R Ok . R b — AR RUBS o R AR T RS 3 = AR R EA91.5% ., T A9
FERIfL, BN ERSBESE,

Q) HEXKENE, AEAFLARNERPRIETRER—ESTEA —RRE AR,

33. REFIE

AR T
CmmE mus | mee | aus

FEXRT 168,302 106,790 149,871 95,934
hn . AR AT 102,077 97,579 96,012 88,440
W IREBRATR (25,970) (8,844) (25,970) (8,844)

R — RN & (22,324) (27,219) (22,137) (25,659)

R F 4 B2 (20) (4) = -
FERKRR 222,065 168,302 197,776 149,871

(1) 20155 75 B

AFTU2016FE E4FHART60. 12T AEE, RBCGAERBALREART6.0MMZT., REBECEEBALARERF. 2015FF
ANRARHFREASIAE,

(2) 2013%20144F EFI S ER
2015 12H 10, REKRSHAEARTT2013. 2014EEFEFENEITRNT .

() WARTF014EESFHARTE84.401Z T HEE REVEER A ATRE ARM88.44125t, F2014E128318 , IREUAE
EBREARECIHABREAR,

(i) RBERBAAREARM163.691Z7T.
(i) IR —MRRBE A& ART221.3712 T,

(3) L£ix2015F 12 A3 HARSEFIATE S FARERNFHAITEENARARRAIT ART12.39/Z5T (20145F12A31H: A
rRMm12.311Z5T).
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34. FIRBIEAN

R EEH] T

L msE | owE | 2016R 2014
EISU 9N

R GER AR 448,153 443,131 438,187 434,681

HEASRINRESRA™ 22,059 23,661 21,737 23,502

B RBFTRAFHE AR 22,687 36,551 22,170 35,919

AR 1) 10,277 5,796 9,536 5,599

Hith 110 29 - -
NF 503,286 509,168 491,630 499,701
FEZH

RITBH (278,728) (267,905) (278,010) (267,544)

B BUR A1 H fth & R AL A9 53K (11,948) (12,373) (5,946) (6,015)

&k R Hfth 4 BR AL A9 17 IR T (39,680) (38,598) (39,890) (38,602)

R 73R (10,363) (9,963) (10,287) (9,883)

Hits (4,210) (1,639) (1,164) (897)
NF (344,929) (330,478) (335,297) (322,941)
EIPSRES N 158,357 178,690 156,333 176,760
RN R ELE.

ERFIBESRE =T R2EA 546 339 458 284

(1) FRNMERAFNSBNERETHEESRA ™. 58 Z2 IR AN BRI IZ R AT SR,
35. FEHRMEFIN

A EEH] T

R o | 20156 20uE
FHHERMAEBN

AR THER 3,601 3,198 3,601 3,199
ZRVEERRS 4,286 3,803 3,938 3,705
fERRERIBRE 4,211 4,338 4,211 4,338
JBR 20 0 5 18 B 359 1,062 270 840
REXLFZIEH W FERAN 250 111 = -
Hith 1,365 2,218 1,053 1,764
NGy 14,072 14,730 13,073 13,846
FHHRASTH

FHHZE (940) (691) (790) (539)
] (179) (101) (170) (141)
Nt (1,119) (792) (960) (680)
FHERRAESEBN 12,953 13,938 12,113 13,166
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36. I m

AR T
L sE . owE 20168 20145
TTHEeRMIA 14,622 15,788 14,603 15,771
UARMETEEETHITALYHRENSHA™ 8,452 5,706 3,237 1,518
T EeRmA~ 2,027 1,587 46 144
KEARRAN % 72 327 698 152 17
&it 25,428 23,779 18,038 17,450

37. AnMEZHHRE

AEEH AT
ST A (12,628) 4,093 (12,756) 4,080
UAANMETEERETHIT AL RRBENESRE > 3,677 3,714 304 125
&1t (8,951) 7,807 (12,452) 4,205

38. iCiim
CHARE BB EB MRS A BN E AR, AERBITHAINCATE SR TEMBAEXNI LS HRK , XEINCHTE
SBMTAEFEMERTRBRALIBRAEDBFIANE  BAWS R ARNEEIRSE .

39. Htlk FUgAN

ZREEH &1
FEIRAN 4,651 4,312 1 3
Hl SN 501 886 185 395
it 5,152 5,198 186 398

40. E B & KM

ZEH 1T
=% 24,847 23,030 24,347 22,692
Wi ERH 1,735 1,613 1,705 1,589
BE KM 1,233 1,147 1,217 1,135
Hth 156 174 145 160

&3t 27,971 25,964 27,414 25,576




41. IEREESH
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&R
RI%A 5,499 5,190 4,651 4,441
TBEESR 1,358 1312 1,184 1,153
T I8 F0 k4 2% A 1,394 1,303 1,227 1,143
FAE 754 748 589 571
W& BEHR 456 443 448 436
ES)iiE 381 378 320 316
LTRSS #H 322 430 153 151
#e 666 352 329 317
Hith 1,018 801 840 704
&it 11,848 10,957 9,741 9,232
42. FFERER K
AR AT

R GERR AR 72,569 70,154 54,675
T ESmE 445 = -
NI IR R 134 5 5
T NIRE SRR = 28 = -
R B 2 = -
Hth g™ (480) _ _
&3t 72,698 70,159 54,680

43. FriSi%EH

3
o
=
|*
1

LERFF SR A 49,918 48,283 36,503
BT EHL 2R A (17,453) (17,750) (7,483)
&t 32,465 30,533 29,020

FEARATAEHREAS ST FENETRAT .

3
i
=
‘*
1

B FlE 135,253 126,545 117,460
HE ERE25%IT H MR %A 33,813 31,636 29,365
FrIRBREBE £ HF 0 (230) - -
BN LABE (1,948) (1,488) (830)
REATIINE B2 FOWBIF 157 = -
AR T AR BN T 673 385 485
S B A 32,465 30,533 29,020
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44, HitgEkaE
HiG AR A ARERER.

MEFREED XHRBNEMBEERE

- B ENRRAEF S RRSEE TS (25) (129) (25) (129)
MERES KRN bR E KR

- R&REEHMRANE RIS (118) (31) = -

- THEESRATAANET DR 1,491 6,200 2,156 2,468

— B BT ARG S E S H AR (933) (263) (46) (144)
INGF 558 5,937 2,110 2,324

— ST SHRERIMEZEM 876 (367) 171 22
Ait 1,291 5,410 2,256 2,217

AEH

RENGERTEBTEASRERNAMG G,

FEENRT 17 (127) 5,270 (507) 4,653

FEBEEHEM (129) 31 5,937 (363) 5,414

REFIRI (112) (158) 11,207 (870) 10,067

REBHTFHEM (25) (113) 558 860 1,280

REERET (137) 271) 11,765 (10) 11,347
K7

AR ) NER k2 o

T EFEYRT 17 (2,439) (37) (2,459)
EFIBBRHEM (129) 2,324 22 2,217
KEENET (112) (115) (15) (242)
REBBTHEH (25) 2,110 171 2,256

REFERFI (137) 1,995 156 2,014
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45. WERERIFEER
(1) BEFEEY AL EDNETE

R EEH AT
o I o I o
HFE 102,788 97,683 96,012 88,440
. FFERmE R K 72,698 56,365 70,159 54,680
IR FHESH 3,402 3,135 1,227 1,143
WEEER T TR~ MEAMKEHE RS 1 (69) 1 (64)
NARMEZTHRE 8,951 (7,807) 12,452 (4,205)
FEREFE LN RR R 267,883 260,314 268,473 261,841
RS (2,404) (2,285) (198) (161)
BRI R R/ SR 09 4 S N AR (17,453) (6,494) (17,750) (7,483)
LB MR T B 0% AT (1,496,934) (760,334) (1,252,391) (731,179)
ZEMR AT E SE NG 998,720 1,457,059 899,558 1,450,300
REFNFENNERE ST (62,348) 1,097,567 77,543 1,113,312
(2) HERAEENWEEFHER
R EEH AT
S EEE o SRR o
NERRNSENWHERKR 2,034,968 1,916,901 1,993,366 1,895,658
W MEeRASENYNENHRD (1,916,901) (546,808) (1,895,658) (524,625)
NERIMSEMYSIE MR 118,067 1,370,093 97,708 1,371,033
@) IR TFRERERTHAERAEENYERE:
R EEH F:X6)
o [ssREsiA | musizAnR | 20IRRANE | e2AvE
EHERE 88 54 1 1
AT XA RRITRR 263,027 56,265 261,324 55,978
BRBIHARBE =AM
- INBRESRE ™ 1,226,162 1,057,196 1,226,162 1,056,722
— TFRUE LRI 436,343 782,592 398,619 762,937
- FdEE 89,976 18,995 88,876 18,995
- BN RS 18,384 1,025 18,384 1,025
ESXPEEENS 1,043 774 = -
&it 2,034,968 1,916,901 1,993,366 1,895,658

46. REFHEMLE KPRV T

AEARRRIFERANSHEMLTE, BRERAEY SR B7IFIES. AFEETUNERRE S NARAERBASE
BRE. BN, KEAFEBLEBMETENE, HIAANAARANETEEETITALHREN ST THEESRAA SR K
ML A ARFRE S RANE IFEBE M SN EARERY S H M FHT,
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FRFEAGRE, AEARBERIARGIFEMUEENE HFEXLEEMETEFHONBELITNT:

AEF 20154£12831H

JEARATRI = o 76,879 = - 742 FHEHKN
B RIS 177,772 3,200 3,200 151 FEBWARFILBAN
7B 144,075 1,559 1,559 150 FHHBA
He 46,144 5,004 5,004 665 FHBRANRZ RIS
Ait 444,870 9,763 9,763 1,708

20144£12831H

FERAEY = SR 91,502 - - 625 FEBBA
=S 111,475 7,581 7,581 115 FEFRNRF BN
HEEEITY 36,997 - - 40 FEHBAN

e 10,144 1,130 1,130 95 FHEBWANRZ AR
it 250,118 8,711 8,711 875

THREMGERA, ARAFERMNELTHEMLEFNNEFLSITNT.

AEEH

UARMETEBETHITASHRENSRE> 97,267 11,191
N BGRIE R R 7,617 6,231
A1t 104,884 17,422

47. ERARTER
AEAEERAFIIENR ST, REERHILERAS PRBORBRAKIRE  RELEHIN BHOREELEFINLESTE
P, B ZE20155E 128310 AL ERES THILAOBENEIART,777.72125 (B E201451283180 . ARF1,114.75
1Z5),

WTEALILEFIANNERAT AREARBESRESNTESSHATNERBANGXERAT . FENRINEROE. BEFA
RAFERBENAFAKEMERRT AEREARENNANSE.

20155%12A31H 20154

FEH

IE L SRR AR 35 35 35 35 35 = 15

2014%12A31H 20145

FEHA

E 4L SR R AN R 703 703 703 703 703 - 14
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FEAFEN. AXKAERASEARMA SIS RRAURFR, AHEARZ M EEA ™. THEESH A~ R BRI
BATIR.

2015%12A31H 20154

AEH
IEHL LA R AN S 3,201 3,180 3,201 = 151

2014%12A31H 20144

AEH
IEHA R E R NS 7,581 7,572 7,581 - 115

A, SEIRE

AEAFTEZUT LS BBFTIIR .

© RiTlF ZAMERBRBASRTLE RORFLERASIS, AIRTLSEBENERARK. FRRS . RERS.
e 55 8RE ALEERS LRMNEERS. RERSRERRSF. KTHRFLSARIRTLSTER
EXE RSV SBEETTHXS SNLHTHRS. GEFETHXS. REMCIRETERGEAT AREE.

O BEHALSE AOBEIEBEBEALS.

© MEYE AAMEFERARRLSREERARLS.

© EFIF AAMEMRIISNELLS BELSRIESKHEILS.

R EEH
o wis REEMLE ENLS LS S¥REE &
20154
ISV ON 494,429 1,896 6,143 511 307 503,286
FEX W (337,479) (1,136) (5,055) (1,063) (196) (344,929)
F BN 5T 156,950 760 1,088 (552) 111 158,357
He. RS F SRS 156,497 1,009 1,403 (552) - 158,357
7338 18 F B N % AR 453 (249) (315) - 111 =
FEHARMAEEBRA 12,118 215 (56) 723 (47) 12,953
He WX ZFEHRMEBEN 12,046 216 (34) 725 - 12,953
DEBEF LR RMEHBWAN 72 (1) (22) &) (47) -
Hel N 61,979 9,530 4,731 1,836 (112) 77,964
Bl H (107,999) (4,568) (4,571) (716) (4) (117,858)
Bl M R 3,727 (4) 106 8 - 3,837
FE A H 126,775 5,933 1,298 1,299 (52) 135,253
IR F0ESH 1,247 62 2,035 58 - 3,402
RAME W 2,386 24 8,938 113 - 11,461
RERERK 70,277 581 2,008 31 (199) 72,698
2015412A31H
BR> 12,367,545 734,962 155,695 45,654 (684,181) 12,619,675

B 11,337,426 61,999 140,702 35,146 (25,855) 11,549,418
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AR - 4

| mTLS RERRLS  ERLS  BRLS SFREE S
20154
JHMAZ F N
HERR 119,355 1,196 1,671 173 - 122,395
e 51 37 407 - - 495
HhE R KX 49,137 (8) (709) = = 48,420
&it 168,543 1,225 1,369 173 = 171,310

2015%12H31H

FERIE =B
hERER 22,905 6,082 4,768 810 - 34,565
& 46 62 - - - 108
HtER&BX - - 38,897 - - 38,897
&it 22,951 6,144 43,665 810 - 73,570
KEARRAUR %
hERER 115 1,500 - 2 - 1,617
i - 63 = = = 63
HthERE X - - - = = =
ait 115 1,563 - 2 - 1,680
SRITU S BRAUIE TR & HELE EFLE AHREE ait
20144
LIV ON 500,275 1,222 7,203 253 215 509,168
F BT (323,100) (806) (6,036) (479) (57) (330,478)
F RN EER 177,175 416 1,167 (226) 158 178,690
HAp ST BN R 177,845 418 653 (226) - 178,690
S ER 1B F BN S A (670) ) 514 - 158 -
FEFRMALEBRN 13,172 283 (78) 693 (132) 13,938
Hp IR GFEARMEFRAN 13,086 283 (130) 699 - 13,938
ERIE TF LR KA AN 86 - 52 (6) (132) -
HABBA 17,259 9,255 4,403 1,059 (29) 31,947
Bl X (90,015) (2,039) (3,172) (572) 104 (95,694)
SRR SR 21 94 32 60 1 (65) 122
FE R 117,685 7,947 2,380 955 36 129,003
HrIRFORE 5 1,164 77 1,860 34 - 3,135
BAM L 2,597 135 6,789 33 - 9,554
AERERE 54,762 848 798 — (43) 56,365
2014412H31H
B 10,104,619 114,026 140,366 28,577 (70,558) 10,317,030
Bk 9,466,468 26,730 126,356 19,300 (2,664) 9,636,190
20144
SSEIN-F N2 ON
hERER 147,271 590 793 473 - 149,127
i 126 184 361 - - 671
HtEREBX 43,534 (73) (631) - - 42,830

&it 190,931 701 523 473 - 192,628
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AEH - &

2014%12H31H

ERHR™ R

FEERER 23,565 5,578 11,700 116 - 40,959
aH 47 59 - - - 106
HtEREZHX - - 25,397 - - 25,397
&it 23,612 5,637 37,097 116 - 66,462
KEARAE &

FEERERN 114 1,531 - - - 1,645
HER X - 5 - - - 5
it 114 1,536 — — — 1,650

X F RN ZIEMNEASMRRAZ 5 FERN, BENPZZF2FRANNESINZ S FEERAEFERA,
FERIASBRETH” LA HEREMA”.

T. XBEAXERXS

1. WHBCER
F20154FE12831H , MBI EBHEH AN 1736.54% I BEH (20144E12831H . 50.18%),

AEASMEBHITHEFLSZXZTECRAAATHBUIELEMBRRTHER. TASNRKE ZEXHHFARERL
ju—FZ

ERER 89,920 40,281
Fil R X 8] (%)
ESRa gy 2.16-4.47 2.38-4.47

Fl BN 1,535 988

FEBRAEBN 52 18

BRI 67 22
2. iC&RT

LCEREETERAFARIEADVNEATAS EMB I PELR IMAXIARTS,282.0925T. ILE A AEEF RN,
HTRURE, FHNEHEMH L HEEED . LA KT EBEFRETENRTHRAMNSE.

F2015%E128310 , L&A T #H5A A F734.68% I AR (20144128310 . 47.63%).

AEHASLCLARNHETHEELERZS . M—RZHNEAENEM REEFLAREST. FTAFAGERE ARAFENLE
NERITRERFOFERBERMT

o ESRE 6,039 7,623
FIE X 8] (%) 3.16-4.2 3.14-4.2

Fl 2N 249 268
FEBRMESEAN 11 -
BRIk 9 _
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@

BN ETERRIELR

BERANRAFAERAELAIRBAFIMILEBRLARIN—ABRIELT, SECEAERNIFAE . B, HR. £S. BHK
B A-ZAEE RAEE.

F2015612A31 B, BAMRATL A ERFEADHERT2719%HBAR (20144128318 . 0%),

o

S5FRRAMNES
AR RERTEFBESTFAINRIIITNOT.

R GER AR 20,911 9,736
R 75K 3,129 2,626
Bk % H At £ R AL 7RI 1,261 1,582
PTEERE > 287 356
KA S 208 94
R WA S 35 54
RATH S 15 12
TR L R IR 31 -
H ™ 3,013 29

ATFERNEFEEESTRASNREFTIROT .

FIEBAN 611 511
FlEXH (53) (38)
FEHERMBEBA 45 121
FEARME XL (62) (28)

ATESTABDNZENZZIZER—BHLETNER L ESREFET REARNPZ PR RFERH S IFU S IREN ISR,

o

S5SBREMREQRNZS
AT SHENSELDZ AN T HRE— R UFRMER WERFLT. FOISER015F12A310, ARASHENSE
AN BREDRZ S RFHTEK,

T—. REFTRKIE
1. REIFR

F20155F 128318, AEBARATHFESE FERIFAEN., EERANAZFERFRAREHRERTSNAEARKXTHM &
RALEERRFTEEATM.

2. FARMKIE
ZREH AT
BEA I A
- B#EREYN 7,602 5,026 = -
- BEAKNT 56,378 54,502 = -
BEERFRA
- BHEREY 3 6 3 6
- EE4KRNT 40,939 44,979 342 392

&1t 104,922 104,513 345 398
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3. fFhekiE

A EEHF] 1T
o oEIASIA | 04F12AGIA | 201SFIZAGIE 2014512A01H
BRI 3,097,207 2,951,784 3,097,207 2,951,784
FFHARE 76,777 78,991 92,667 94,291
RITARICE 31,411 36,816 30,875 36,723
FHERIE 11,752 21,770 11,752 21,770
it 3,217,147 3,089,361 3,232,501 3,104,568

4. FEMEEFKE
EHFQERA L. AEARAGHIMEITOR THENSERESABAMT.

A EEH] 1T
| oISEIASIE 20WE12ASIA | 201SEIRAIIE  2014F12ASE
—FE XA 515 505 400 409
—E_fF 243 289 151 247
—E=f 124 146 64 115
=FEME 305 296 282 283
&it 1,187 1,236 897 1,054

5. MEMEERE
FHREQHRE L PMETORTHENRARESHERMT .

&R
RAHEESREH 1,990 417
6. HREY

(1) 1EABRYAIE
THR&EMRRE, FAEZHEERFYOE = KANENT .

AER

iE % 21,710 22,763
B TR R R 10,487 8,633
Bl A S U 5,449 2,205
&1t 37,646 33,601

F2015F12831 0, AERALZE B ML A THRKENE D AR T294.84127¢ (20144128310 . AR M280.35127¢) ., FrE @
IS I A RS E NI HA,

(2) WEIRIERY
F2015F 12831 HK2014F 123310, AKALEKNE T U E S FREISMUIFNIN S SIESFSHTD.
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+=

. R EE
. SRR B TR R
AEENSEENERSHEBAR, ARAELEYRT
LSRR R EALETHH . RF, LRFRE, K

g SRS OEE, TRV Sh AT R hE RS
BN, Rt AKE N BRI REFRLME R T E, 57
RO D WBe B TS 55 S B R F 0.

AEATBEURTHARPRNEZENRIEHNFIRGEHFEE
AL HBRSLERT WE X" PRPTE TRUKREF
Zz. BN, PEARBTAFHESNERRL SHEEF
R AEAREASASAHEERTRKEARBERNRED
DEMHATFHEATELRTARSMHES, RYERMRK
R ERARUBINFE

ARKEERNEATE, AEARTT — AN EHEHET
£SMTARS . OFEEMIEH. KHAFREHRMFIETR
%, AEFANNE BEBREE T 1E S 0K R E
TR, JFEE TR R #9158 7 Gk B XURS FIBR 2 A
WATIES , FRORAIFI 4TI KRG . A K E #H XS
BERMRS, RNRIERRTS. =ROEWL, F5IARE
LEUAMTENREE. AEAE RN EESRNE KR
BIE. RN . R MRS R T 5.

- ERRE

AEFAMARNERARKEZIEE A HZ SN FHEARER
SR THAERERATRTENBEREONE ., FANKER
AEAVSERNREZRNR BEEERNERANKERE
BEEE, F AN EE TR RN BRI A E
V&, NENHRSMEAMEENRSW S, ROISMTAFN
R E R EMERAE DT EFRNE.

AERAZBRRESATHOABITILERBXLERS] &5
2&%@&5"%@%_?7%}%@%&%%,ﬁl%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ(%~
. B HRERE. TXEHRGE. 2R A ZEEAWT
2&%%’2, MEEmNE A EARRNE A ERATRNTES
FEARRMREENFEREBTR. BN, 37 RIETFR
FERSEE  BHETERTE. EPOPR. AT BFITER.
e RIFR AT WATREFHIARA .

2015 F ARBAGFANKEEEMNBREREREEEAX

(1) FERARKENITE
() BRI GERAER

AEAETRESHEN(RRNE D EESD EERAR
B, ZESRWERZRD RN T IR RE %& E#®. X

TORF. TEMME, KPR RE TRMBMELNT
HPINE AT R,

s ER BRAEBESAR, XERBEARERRAS

ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ‘i@% <
. 9@‘? REBARABRIBRNERLR
RSRES e N A SIS

T RRAR BEEE—L

c RPEHRANERENHIAPERE, TE2REHLE

BEWBATERREERRAR, BIERTIER, GRS
BR—ERK.

e TE.ERALERMELERRAL, BMERTER, ©E
Egl:_rﬁjﬁxjihgio

o WK ERBMAURMNBRSI VL ENEREFZE
REMATERE , 2 R EIRD AR

REE UREE A BERMIFE R~ RE, PETERAROEX.
ERTRARERBERHMRAERSESNEN. DEEEEE
EESEMRAE FEEXVSER. FMFER. TIHBEX
ZRNURBRTAFGEERKEESH~NEKFAZE, KE
HANERATRELRDNSEER, ERRAEER~RE. H
EREERTNERSREETEE HEHREERRE.

(i) MERTEELRTA

REARBERIBITR, FSERAEL RIFREE MM
MITEREERSNEANERE. RATXERSFZ AR

BREEAREBASNEN, RETBORSNMEUBRES
FBRAEABTESRTIANEARRAANNE NS —
RIEEES.

(iil) IR FTHARE . T ERIEFRITRLICE

S5RFNEETE - AKABERAIRS LS EZTA
BITRERREERFKE . FTTHRE . T HERIEMSRTR
FCERERARE.

(2) 15 F KUK BREIEHIFI B REBUR

REANETRANERREHTRAEEME § K=
# BHREANT SN FNER, MUERTLANHBIEX S,

AEACEYHEEMRAEEGR WEMEATANER
BERPRETGEREEE, WL MYZNEFREFH KR
E AMgZERRHR., AEEEHER ERKEEKFERIR
NFER LRI EETRKDAREN.

NEFMENEFHREFEFE-—TAD T RAMEMLS
NE— e FEERNASUERGREXRFEEHIN
PRI TS, R, X T PR & A A SERR 1B S b 1t 47 2

k=,

AERAHEMRTENTREREFHES EEE AR
EERE BINRNEMBERTAREEARNENNERS
N ERNEREHTEE. BN, REUEAY U R ERGHE
RITEAEAERERANKETTR.

Hth B A6 R ERNEERERIIRET .
(i) B

AEAGET —RIGEAREEBRNERTNERE, RALE
KA, hRRERENERIZRERNEHIREIY . KE
AxEEEERFAYN TR M SERNEERREESE
TH#EIES| FEHEAMRBYIRGEER.

MERDEZANM R H ™, Gl Bk~ tib
AR RFIESF . AL HFRURNAMERE,



BRAMBERMBER Z IO EM ST~ NOHEARY. hem
ITEAGHMRARE. BEBEAT. RUERITRAGRME
AEXFHAFZHMESHE USSR TARSN, ik BRMNE
b ERFEREAER.

(il) FEEMERKIE
EREAXKENIZEENERREFEBREMBTNARS.
W 55 fR R B E RERME T RO BSE M RIE, BIAKE R
ERPLTEBOENE=ZTHNRXSHRAZMN, XEH
AESRPERBOEANE. £ —LELT . ARASEIRR
S DR EIZTUR S FRENERRE. RIES S K
BEANERENZRBESIN—EE 2RI, HMER
AWEBURT & P05 AR,
ERBEXRBIEEREEREAMNRR. RITRILE. RE
MEMLES. AEAERNEEEARKR 2SO EEHRME
AEEMRESN. KM, BTEXSEERRENETIROR
TEAEERFBENERSTR AEALFRRIZEE

(4) AEERFURY S M ERBREEHNSRXERANKRE
THREMGRKE ZFAERREMONERNT .

MEREME / 117

FERARESARRTEBREANERERBELLH. A
FRAGRAENERNRBES FTERERKE, KAEH
X E B AR v B BR SL k4T s s

(3) BlERAZEITHRER
FRAFUEERTIROBEEZZUNEFZ. 2010
g RNA T RENXIEMPEN. X0 LMEEERR
ETFHEM. 6@QFMENREREFA(LLSITAEMNE
225 ) PR EEVIESE.

AEFANBRAEELRENTFRERNSTERN SR A~
TEE. HR WMAERKRBR, FRETNEMRE. e
MEFERNAS, BIIEHNRELAERBIENITHEE
RERITMBHEN. WENRBE P RAREFA KRR
YIAR B AT RIL A AT T [ R &4

AEWHEE. (ERLBTEABARRRMOASAE,
R (i) B & 8 ABIRBIN RS, BYEATHREGHF 2
AL ZW AW RS RARTIFE.

e S5 T

FHTH

R REBFTFRIN 263,899 57,346 261,324 55,978
FRE L FRIT 596,724 1,005,026 556,619 982,645
HHRS 110,976 19,495 109,876 18,995
MArAMETEEREENITA LSRRGV ST~ 178,290 46,157 155,600 33,556
LTHESRE > 14,180 18,965 14,465 19,312
PPNt 1,334,917 1,084,318 1,328,622 1,079,845
R GEFR AR 8,865,360 7,669,351 8,721,407 7,578,764
R E SRR~ 341,453 147,396 332,224 138,344
BEEIIRA 2,398 2,292 2,398 2,292
R R I K AR B 165,081 19,068 160,171 10,749
Hithem ¥~ 72,324 54,785 57,175 30,766
RAME AT 11,945,602 10,124,199 11,699,881 9,951,246
FINIE

BERKIE 3,097,207 2,951,784 3,097,207 2,951,784
TR 76,777 78,991 92,667 94,291
RITARICE 31,411 36,816 30,875 36,723
FHEERIE 11,752 21,770 11,752 21,770
RIMNAE AT 3,217,147 3,089,361 3,232,501 3,104,568
it 15,162,749 13,213,560 14,932,382 13,055,814

ERAAFIRT F2015F12A31NAR2014FE12A31H, AEARATEERREE THERAXNKERE AR EZ BT AFRKRIEY
HEMEAEAEENEANRREE. W TA~AERNE, LAEANRREE TR~ AERKEFEITESE.
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(5) ZIEBHMBI
ERBRABRRAE S FAEERRERTRAFHRAT

2015412H31H
ERER 193,853 406,155 1,569,020 2,169,028
RIEGEFR 135,557 230,900 807,523 1,173,980
HEFR G IR 38,686 212,590 992,528 1,243,804
R GE R 50,821 110,171 4,459,145 4,620,137
&it 418,917 959,816 7,828,216 9,206,949
2014412H31H
ERARK 210,355 321,169 1,341,296 1,872,820
RIEGER 141,486 224,607 720,702 1,086,795
EE LA I 31,691 239,168 924,211 1,195,070
TR G 43,329 111,702 3,631,926 3,786,957
&it 426,861 896,646 6,618,135 7,941,642
2015412H31H
EREH 189,434 390,733 1,574,782 2,154,949
RIEGFR 130,539 202,874 795,614 1,149,027
HEHR G IR 16,635 170,256 972,703 1,159,594
TR G R 44,270 99,334 4,452 043 4,595,647
A1t 380,878 883,197 7,795,142 9,059,217
2014412H31H
ERARK 206,486 319,387 1,343,870 1,869,743
RIETE R 137,560 224,265 720,699 1,082,524
R G 14,244 195,158 912,501 1,121,903
EENAE N 40,485 99,916 3,634,396 3,774,797
&it 398,775 838,726 6,611,466 7,848,967

RHRZRMEFZAARBEBERITMOT .

ZREEH] T
| 0sEZASNE 2014F2ASIA | 201SFI2AIIE 204F12ASIE
B SR8 #th R ORUE (i) 9,130,722 7,887,096 8,987,355 7,798,075
AR R E (ii) 1,892 2,985 262 1,303
ERE (iii) 74,335 51,561 71,600 49,589
Ait 9,206,949 7,941,642 9,059,217 7,848,967
A REREESR (341,589) (272,291) (337,810) (270,203)
Hr BIRE (45,506) (29,299) (43,590) (28,425)

HETH (296,083) (242,992) (294,220) (241,778)

R RFR BT EE 8,865,360 7,669,351 8,721,407 7,578,764
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() BERBEhAR R EREN KRR
BABHLRZERENREERNERNERARET NBESEREARTHA ™ RED KBITITME.

A& 4T
_ 2014412H310 20144128310

E#® 8,167,478 7,210,728 8,024,658 7,123,261
RiE 963,244 676,368 962,697 674,814
&it 9,130,722 7,887,096 8,987,355 7,798,075

(i) EHAAR BB A9 R R FR A R

— s, BREFAEMEIILE, BHHO0ORMANERIRMAERALT—EWINEAE R ERE. T2015E12831H, A&EH
BRI A BERFIARENEZ M ERMARESHMAART10.47(25T (2014128310 . ARM25.46127T) , Zid BUEE TG
Wi, MALZABE ARAGHIORMNEBERBENRRTFETENNZRR, €T AHART.6812T (20145128318 ART
2.83127t) . RIBERE XEERME , KK T UKL IMESRIRIMEZIR K, BIZT O EHRRTIAEAE L ERE.
KRB EERTRT .

A EEH] T
94 930

BHIIOK XA 1,047 2,546
BEIOOR M £ 845 439 168 373
&it 1,892 2,985 262 1,303
BRYARNE 1,434 2,885 = -

(i) 2R IE AR BTN ER

ERENERERMERERT AT

&R 1T

[SRERERNP- 3 G EE TS 74,335 51,561 71,600 49,589
W BRI R E AR (45,506) (29,299) (43,590) (28,425)
] 28,829 22,262 28,010 21,164
BRYAANE 17,650 18,863 16,896 17,981

FrA ERENE BRI R RIS BT ERENR, FENITHE T BEEE.

(iv) EARKIER

BARBREBIEEERARAMSRABUUBRE LA RBERRERTEROELT, REASERAEFHEERERNORR. T4
EREENUEERHMERARITREAELR VTRMEN. XEEETHEERFEMER. fFEEARRIAKLT HHANAH
Me2 ANEBHEABARRKBIANTHFARER. WRPLERE WEARZREAINTHEEIE, 2%, RAETBRIAEATRE
K, F2015FE12A31H, AEAEZEERFEMAARTS9.11427T (20144128310 . ARM79.26{27T),

(6) fRIUERE

FINER TGS REBE RS RMT .

A EEH]

| meERANE | wowseRna
RS R R £ RE (i) 685,059 211,994
ERE (i) 2,506 3,183
Ait 687,565 215,177
W B EAEE (343) (264)
R M IR R MK E ME 687,222 214,913
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T
A avesANA
i R TAR K 4B E (i) 650,393 184,941
ERE (i) 23 73
&it 650,416 185,014
B BEAEE (23) (73)

BB KENE 650,393 184,941

() ERBEAFIAR & AR EMGERERA

b S

BURF ZOEBUR LSR5 9,870 144,630 - 149,299 303,799
SRVEHESE 3,795 4,009 399 5,035 13,238
NERE 65,153 89,397 1,999 59 156,608
HAth s 200 169 - 2,831 3,200
ERIZcR:] 446 103,248 - = 103,694
BEEET 93,670 - - - 93,670
B 7= & R HAth 5,156 = = 5,694 10,850
&it 178,290 341,453 2,398 162,918 685,059

BUR RO BUR LA 6755 6,489 98,596 - - 105,085
SR G - 3,859 293 4,675 8,827
A F FFH 27,915 38,385 1,999 915 69,214
Hit i 296 102 - 7,212 7,610
ENZca::] 146 6,454 - - 6,600
REEETR 8,295 - - - 8,295
7 R A 3,016 - - 3,347 6,363
Ait 46,157 147,396 2,292 16,149 211,994

%
1

BURF B & BUR LA T35 9,622 144,324 - 149,299 303,245
SRV HRSE - 3,783 399 5,035 9,217
NE RS 53,421 80,869 1,999 = 136,289
HAith i = - - 5,837 5,837
ENZca::] 446 103,248 = = 103,694
REEETR 92,111 - - - 92,111

P 155,600 332,204 2,398 160,171 650,393
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T

BUS R ABUR SRS 6,489 98,590 - - 105,079
SRS - 3,839 293 4,675 8,807
NEFFH 18,772 29,461 1,999 860 51,092
Hfth s - - - 5214 5,214
B FE - 6,454 - - 6,454
HEEET 8,295 - - - 8,295
it 33,556 138,344 2,292 10,749 184,941

(i) ERENRERMERA

AER

NEfRE 215 215
= A R E M 2,291 2,291
&1t 2,506 2,506

NERE 282 282
I = A R E A 2,901 2,901
&It 3,183 3,183

%
1

NEfRE 23 23

NEMRE 73 73

THRITFT ARARATERMR B ZTHERINTOERITRIEHNERTRDEFER .

&M

BUFF REBURALI 635 6,051 - - - 297,748 - 303,799
SRV HRSE 1,874 381 1,650 1,801 - 7,532 13,238
ATRE 132,266 11,807 10,031 92 = 2,412 156,608
Hth i 1,991 341 326 = = 542 3,200
ENZ:2 91,200 7,573 4,921 = = = 103,694
HEEEITY = = - - - 93,670 93,670
R 7= R E A = - - - - 13,013 13,013

&it 233,382 20,102 16,928 1,893 297,748 117,169 687,222
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‘*
i
=

BUN ROEBUR A 625 = - - - 105,085 - 105,085
SRAEFHESE 2,673 - 1,724 - - 4,430 8,827
NERSFE 49,910 15,974 1,274 = = 2,091 69,249
Hith i 3,520 - - - - 4,090 7,610
Bl FE 5,132 1,168 300 = = = 6,600
H =g = = - - - 8,295 8,295
EY =R E M = = - - - 9,247 9,247
A1t 61,235 17,142 3,298 - 105,085 28,153 214,913
T

BUF ROEBUR S 655 5,966 - - - 297,279 - 308,245
SRAYE RS 1,854 381 1,262 1,316 - 4,404 9,217
NERE 124,948 759 9,901 92 = 589 136,289
Hith i 4,385 543 319 - - 590 5,837
ERZE: 91,200 7,573 4,921 = = = 103,694
HEEEITR = = - - - 92,111 92,111
&it 228,353 9,256 16,403 1,408 297,279 97,694 650,393

BUF ZOEBUR S 65R 255 - - - - 105,079 - 105,079
SRR 2,673 - 1,724 - - 4,410 8,807
NERE 45,456 3,466 1,075 - - 1,095 51,092
Hithfis 3,152 - - - - 2,062 5214
ERZEa: 5,132 1,022 300 - - - 6,454
g - - - - - 8,295 8,295
&it 56,413 4,488 3,099 - 105,079 15,862 184,941

(1) RFRBHEEBRNMMESHEATACETEBRNEEFREINY, MYEBE. FEARRT. LA S MBRMERTT.
2) RTFREMENMRABBEREADRAR. FAFERHRSHATLANF W RTRAEY 2%,

(7) EMBFERREEFNERE
() £RFFRBXDEIRMT:

A

L eEMIAR PROENE SEEERX A% &t
B RBITRI 255,702 2,485 5,712 - 263,899
FRUE b FRIR 445,229 28,191 1,955 121,349 596,724
RS 104,524 - 1,000 5,452 110,976
UARMETTEEETHITALHRENSHA™ 167,011 5,110 5,126 1,043 178,290
T SRE 6,685 1,355 - 6,140 14,180

INBRESRA > 1,139,953 115,728 76,629 2,607 1,334,917
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&M
L eEAERK PROEAK SEEERR  mh &t
R GEFR AR 3,465,825 1,754,114 2,387,355 1,258,066 8,865,360
JHEESRA~ 330,180 6,245 5,028 - 341,453
BEEIMRA 1,898 - 500 - 2,398
oAl €/ TE33 74 95,058 25,543 44,421 59 165,081
Ht &% ™ 52,520 7,659 9,408 2,737 72,324
20154E12H31H 6,064,585 1,946,430 2,537,134 1,397,453 11,945,602
20144E12831H 5,469,759 1,565,026 2,031,622 1,057,792 10,124,199
T
o eEAESR GEGERE GEESSE  wt a&

T REBITHRI 253,721 2,152 5,451 - 261,324
A L FRIN 413,174 27,122 1,107 115,216 556,619
HeE#EE 103,424 - 1,000 5,452 109,876
MARMETEERENITALBRANSRE 152,436 1,995 1,169 = 155,600
PTHE SRR 6,917 1,355 - 6,193 14,465
FTNIRE SRR = 1,133,658 115,728 76,629 2,607 1,328,622
R FERFEER 3,422,277 1,729,092 2,330,935 1,239,103 8,721,407
THEESRA” 322,667 5,204 4,353 - 332,224
SRR 1,898 - 500 - 2,398
oAl €/ RTE337 91,477 24,503 44,191 = 160,171
HAith & mh = 44,477 5,012 6,527 1,159 57,175
20154E12831H 5,946,126 1,912,163 2,471,862 1,369,730 11,699,881
20144E12831H 5,398,859 1,531,783 1,987,802 1,032,802 9,951,246

MERBBXEHE. AR . IF T RE WK, BB OIH I B2 TR OBE. KE R B, 7R HAMTET.
hERBBXEE. HR.CRRT. WA TR e, 28 B IIE,

TEEBBXEE B R BN, 58 TR ARG KA. @I EX. JM. ZE5A.
BHREPEREMMIEMBX, BETEEERAMBRX,

(i) ERAFZEFANTULI BT RET .

A EEH] 2015412H31H 2014412831H
B D D R
B Im 1,619,146 18 1,420,991 18
A X 250E 1,308,614 14 636,246 8
KF . BRBRIP AL H IR E IR 990,194 11 1,070,620 13
LA Sa W FN: L=t k2 938,005 10 879,700 11
FRE& I S 759,936 8 621,146 8
M. AkFLT 683,049 7 601,402 8
& 578,420 6 585,697 7
RE 418,992 5 386,399 5
W ARRZE 325,317 4 261,167 3
Hithiz 211,016 2 206,463 3
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AEH 20154128318 2014412831H
B D S
a0 154,899 2 149,832 2
HE 107,531 1 109,953 1
BEMEMERERHRS L 96,270 1 81,376 1
Hith 1,015,560 11 930,650 12
Ait 9,206,949 100 7,941,642 100

B BRREES (341,589) (272,291)
RN GER MRS 8,865,360 7,669,351
4T 2015412H31H 2014412H31H
| % FE %
I BB 1,599,813 18 1,391,069 18
P X BE 1,306,662 14 636,246 8
KF . BRBRIP QLRI E IR 976,429 11 1,066,886 14
B RS ROK I E = AR 924,364 10 873,479 11
PRIz L 756,924 8 621,146 8
Al ARfET 674,911 8 601,001 8
g 573,313 6 563,255 7
P32 409,566 5 384,321 5
WA B 296,288 3 249,338 3
Hitizk 202,166 2 201,442 3
a0 154,365 2 149,832 1
HE 107,161 1 109,947 1
BEMEMERERRS L 96,201 1 81,340 1
Hith 981,054 11 919,665 12
Ait 9,059,217 100 7,848,967 100
B BRREAEE (337,810) (270,203)
R GER MRS 8,721,407 7,578,764

RGBS H A RO TE

AR &M

2015412H31H

B RBITRI 263,899 - - 263,899
FRE LRI - 596,724 = 596,724
HERS - 110,976 - 110,976
uﬁﬁgggiiiig = 9,871 102,194 66,225 178,290
PTHESRE = 449 9,335 4,396 14,180
EINBESRA > - 1,328,622 6,295 1,334,917
T ESmA~ 144,630 107,258 89,565 341,453
FEER R E - 399 1,999 2,398
NI R R 149,299 7,280 8,502 165,081
Hith &R ™ 3,651 6,363 62,310 72,324

571,799 2,269,151 239,292 3,080,242
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&M

2014%£12H31H

T REBITRI 57,346 - - 57,346
FE LRI - 1,005,026 - 1,005,026
HE#ES - 19,495 - 19,495
uﬁﬁgggiiiigﬁ 6,489 11,311 28,357 46,157
TTESMA~ 6,991 7,721 4,253 18,965
EINBESRA > - 1,080,560 3,758 1,084,318
THEESRmA~ 98,596 10,343 38,457 147,396
RSN - 293 1,999 2,292
NI R R - 11,785 7,283 19,068
Hith & ma ™ - 9,879 44,906 54,785

169,422 2,156,413 129,013 2,454,848
T

2015%£12H31H

B RBITRI 261,324 - - 261,324
FE LRI - 556,619 - 556,619
He#EE - 109,876 - 109,876
u;ﬁ‘;ﬁgggiii;g s 9,623 92,557 53,420 155,600
PTHESRE > 449 9,620 4,396 14,465
INEESRA - 1,328,622 - 1,328,622
R ESmE 144,323 107,032 80,869 332,224
SRR - 399 1,999 2,398
AR R 149,299 5,035 5,837 160,171
HAeth & BhEE = 3,643 6,219 47,313 57,175
568,661 2,215,979 193,834 2,978,474
2014412H31H
B RBITRI 55,978 - - 55,978
R b FRIN - 982,645 - 982,645
bt bk - 18,995 - 18,995
u:ﬁ:fﬁggiiiiz s 6,489 8,295 18,772 33,556
PTHESRE ™ 6,991 8,068 4,253 19,312
ENEESRE ™ - 1,079,845 - 1,079,845
HHESRA~ 98,590 10,293 29,461 138,344
BHHEEIRA - 293 1,999 2,292
oAl €/ RTE 3374 - 4,675 6,074 10,749
Hith & ra ™ - 9,531 21,235 30,766
168,048 2,122,640 81,794 2,372,482




126 / MSREME

3. WiAKEE

TR R IR TN (FIR LR RENEIHRNE)
AN ZNTMERTEATRMLSRERKONG ., 25
AEENmHREETERERTKASZZKRAMFIE L

AEATHNEEEN B RERTHNEEEMEHE—D
TEZHEER, MBUSEENNEER. HENERRAE
HAgE— P RENTHNRKF TeeREMIZE FAEK
BEREHATHNEEEENMBARZENELENTH

FEARREZLRAMBZERASENRRER IR EED
R, REERTKAASRAFSNREEZRSEER
FrHipARE, BEEMETRUEENR EERE BRS
T i R 9B BB IR

O ZHMFSRITH AR5
AEARBNTHNETBFETRSWA SRTHKAF,

WP RIEAZ S B AR 5 M - H AT B B R T
FEMNTNEAXZNERIAME LT, RITKARE
AEXZGENTHE, RAMIAERUAZZIKANRAR
aRUEFHEA,

ZHKATBRITRAHCRRAENERRAREERME S
BESEMRTCEEzAETERMEE. £ RREER
nReERREEE HEPRNEERTKOAASRELTH
REgtRE: REREATHESNHEEREFORT. Hha
FECRREARTKANEREEER, EHEA~ A HERE
ZRSRICENEMRITKAT RN EERRE,

O AR ERAMERTE

W ip N B R M EgUR M SRt TITE, RSN
PRENF T .

© XHKF

HEZZWF AEAETEXZKAHRRNEREM L KB
PR PRAFE ) SUR M AT AN E D IR B TF R R BR IR A & 26
RBEARSL

RENMERTFHEESERFHANECENRTHHAFE
M SBHRABERE.

AERA SR TH NG ITEREBHTIRENE, Mk XE
TERBEAERENT RN, RERREREHMEEER.

ARG R A E W 3 32 5 KRB A0 18 93 A 33 7 B 2Ab
Z EANRESRNEAZZUSHELR LR, X EERKER
i O] BEAE AR BB AR R R HEAT AR AU AN (T IRBI R AT AIIB AL
HNERTHEN AEARHIFERNZTEIZKAENN
HESTITETE BRTINETNEDENZANZ ST
E®NE, EeTaMEIRGIES.

NS B % PR M ZR XU B AL R RS 78 A Y & T X b B IR A8 1 F0
RARZENFRAFTREMBRRE. BN HTENREEER.
THERREEENNERT. NEEERMIZAKAE
K REEH ORGSR,

© H®iFHKA
SRS AT T BB AT RN KR O E T ERE,
MESHCERE . FIRRGOHBM S, 2 ERETHRER
WR, 2, KNG EERBITNCAR AR A EGTTERRE
BRFKNALBERRITRIER, ASBEARERD . &
Rt . 72 025 (EaR) s 70 UK 1 18 (VaR) 3% 2 75 3% 5 R R
BACERR#TABRS B, FREERAS NS
ERSBTAT RENTIRE.

B R R RS AT KBS 89 GRS ATIBR, RS F X
REERIC)CERRE (BREBITKATZZKS).

(1) FMERE
REOMPMER G RIEFRKE HREVERRTRETH
RHSBBRTKABEREEMNEFNEER R LN .

B FEARMERNERREATRBPEARRBITHE.
AEAEPERMEHBXAZTLESHFERTHTEARRTH
MNEME, —KBTE. B—m HEARNESHE~TTE
MR T RE @ ZE), 2016F, FEARBTLZRIAEESR
MMARDERMEREENE, A —FHRRTNFRE
AMEETEI2NEDR. BN, FEARBITEAHEET
EWHURE, WFLRTHRNSESRNBERTRE
FRMEZN LR, T TERINMRRFE, E B2013F7
A20HZEmMIAEH.,

AEARTKAFEXNEEETEMNREMEFNERDH
EIEMAMERRANEENEN, S5 ARODT. A
. BRMEDIT. 2FRRANERESE BEEREA ™
MHEEMES R GETA#TROMAFENGER. T
MK RFI RN 2B &M RRF RN NETTED
M. SUEME T . 0 BB KBS MO D AT BT T M A S O At
TER.

HHEHRIEDFTRBEERN, FESHFE = MOE T
EEMHERE MENERAE DS (FmEHREF
R NEFEERRETARE.
HEITENEENENETE. AEAEHITENREZNGR
A AHEER, MEERBMNRIESR (RIRE) TFH 8
WNFS T E X T R S AR

EEMBROSH

RERNXEENEMIPERREES X AEASTME
RRF T R R R R M A UK E MHES R T .
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R EEH]

SR

4 R AFH BB ITRIT 263,785 = = = = 147 263,932
TR LRI 438,893 100,536 148 36 = 57,111 506,724
HHES 89,976 21,000 = = = = 110,976
uﬁﬁgg%iiiigﬁ 17,210 44,924 111,752 4,405 = 502,869 681,160
LTHESRE > = = = - - 14,180 14,180
KINBESRA ™ 1,227,052 105,531 2,334 - - - 1,334,917
R GFR AR 4,777,309 2,875,230 425,106 386,073 401,642 - 8,865,360
T E SRR 78,669 174,051 58,149 26,831 3,753 22,347 363,800
BEZEIHER 398 1,500 500 = = = 2,398
oAl €/ TE233 74 2,780 820 73,347 88,118 16 - 165,081
Hit %™ 1,078 369 - - - 70,877 72,324
ERMA~ AT 6,897,150 3,323,961 671,336 505,463 405,411 667,531 12,470,852
SRS

[ b & H Ath & Rl LA 7GR 356,042 103,904 1,040,214 - - 4,846 1,505,006
EEUFAMH SR ER 147,657 182,574 18,166 1,753 5,125 = 355,275
HANHEE 29,186 39,779 = = = = 68,965
uﬁﬁgggiiiiﬁﬁ 19,171 69,940 3,000 - = 21 92,132
ETESRTER = = - - - 17,668 17,668
SE B & R 7 5K 12,634 10,024 6,826 - - - 29,484
R R 1,702,923 98,765 34,209 6,119 11,505 1,890 1,855,411
ISAREE 1,483,199 1,130,207 2,352,770 1,808,125 532,071 = 7,301,372
Hft£r 5 60,216 83 320 563 216 186,282 247,680
ERARETT 3,811,028 1,635,276 3,455,505 1,811,560 548,917 210,707 11,472,993
MEEHENHFA ST 3,086,122 1,688,685  (2,784,169)  (1,306,097) (143,506) 456,824 997,859
2014%12H31H

SRHE AT 6,207,860 3,215,602 325,361 177,028 133,424 139,194 10,198,469
SR ARETT 2,606,170 1,715,328 3,113,850 1,401,767 568,677 170,856 9,576,648
HMEEHFENRD AT 3,601,690 1,500,274  (2,788,489)  (1,224,739) (435,253) (31,662) 621,821
T

SR

N& RFHHRBITHRI 261,209 - - - - 116 261,325
FHE AL R 398,744 101,000 - - - 56,875 556,619
HHEE 88,876 21,000 - - - - 109,876
uﬁﬁgggiiiii = 11,059 42,159 101,647 735 = 424,350 579,950
PTEERVA - - - = = 14,465 14,465
ENEBREESRE ™ 1,226,163 102,459 - - - - 1,328,622
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AT
KRR 4,722,023 2,809,205 405,003 383,538 401,638 = 8,721,407
T E SR T~ 78,669 173,528 54,731 22,063 3,233 = 332,224
HEER R E 398 1,500 500 = = = 2,398
I TE N 5,273 - 67,052 87,846 - = 160,171
Hith & ma %™ = - - - - 57,175 57,175
ERA~AIT 6,792,414 3,250,851 628,933 494,182 404,871 552,981 12,124,232
SRR
Bk & B 4 5t A A 75 R IR 357,241 103,891 1,040,214 = = 4,846 1,506,192
BB RS EER 77,162 148,304 1,638 1,003 4,672 = 232,779
FARE 27,686 39,779 - - - - 67,465
uﬁﬁgggiiig’;?% 19,171 69,940 - 3,000 — = 92,111
TTE SR AR = = = - - 17,520 17,520
B el AT /N - - - - - - =
R I 77 5K 1,695,906 99,004 33,730 6,119 11,505 1,890 1,848,154
R RS 1,481,199 1,130,207 2,341,663 1,794,340 532,071 = 7,279,480
HAth & 5h R - - - - - 146,340 146,340
@A GRET 3,658,365 1,591,125 3,417,245 1,804,462 548,248 170,596 11,190,041
FIEEFHEMERO AT 3,134,049 1,659,726 (2,788,312)  (1,310,280) (143,377) 382,385 934,191
2014%12H31H
SRB~AT 6,110,137 3,194,620 285,319 167,582 134,161 59,428 9,951,247
SR RATT 2,541,130 1,667,942 3,074,985 1,393,162 568,769 158,829 9,404,817
MEEHEMRD AT 3,569,007 1,526,678  (2,789,666)  (1,225,580) (434,608) (99,401) 546,430

FIRERN R EMES KSR ST

TRITFTHEMBETHORARRNFETEAR TEICONERNBELT, BFAFAHRRENESR~SH R AKRNES, WF
BRBARHEMEEREMNTIE,

AEEH 20154 20144

s 20 | HBRRA ABSAKE  RERKN SRS
FFH100ME S 33,336 (4,307) 37,141 (3,113)
THE1004N 5 & (33,336) 4,565 (37,141) 3,267
1T 20154 20144

BEERAE | MBS RESAKE  RERKL  Xemek
EFHO00NE S 33,647 (3,921) 36,954 (2,605)
TE100MNE S (33,647) 4,179 (36,954) 2,759

iﬁlJ VRN E I EIE - EHNE TN RFENIT AR —FENFRTHEEENNSRE =R SR 0GR~ ENF 2%
SEAR

HHMGERGEMNZHREETE-ENX SN TRRFENEEN X THE ESMB~H#TELFTAANEZNFZ M

KEFANDZBRREHAFAREAEANASFEARF TG EEMNBR, Bt LR EWTEESLFERFEEES, B, LRFIXRE
MEHOINEE DG, ERESITIHR S BEREAERANNFZRERRTT, FlE2RANMEME SRS NG T, Bi%
FF R E R EIERE R KT 2 XS o) g8 RELAI RS B IR A S .

(2) ICERME

KERAFRBINTCEREFNZETRRE , ZAREEHMEMSRATASRE.

AEAPNABAIWEZSEARTLYS  IINEERT. BRT. B MEM/NGIINTL S, BEMIETELRES, KEANTEXEF
BEhEET, 2015FE, ARTXNETTCREE0.37467T/1E 5T (20144 E R {50.02217T/1%£7T),



AEATBBIINCHA SCRGUEME DT, R (EaR) AR NE(VaR) ESFHEL X T UNRITEE

HEAFARTMENRSARZETRETILE R ER,

AEAEHTHLRREHMASHE, NERBHASMAGTEARTKEMEI AT,

WMEIREME / 129

NI, HEid 5

A EEH]

20158123018 | ART RANART  RETHAARD &
SR

N& R FHHRBITHRI 263,816 114 2 263,932
R b FRIN 398,780 139,873 58,071 596,724
HFEEE 105,500 3,382 2,094 110,976
MArAMETEEEENTAS ARGV ST 660,614 16,103 4,443 681,160
TTHESmA 2,911 10,574 695 14,180
ENEBRESRE™ 1,334,917 - - 1,334,917
R 7,190,454 1,555,178 119,728 8,865,360
TR ESmE 356,371 2,080 5,349 363,800
I EXE RSN 2,398 - - 2,398
R R R 165,023 - 58 165,081
Hit &A™~ 63,242 8,136 946 72,324
ERE~ AT 10,544,026 1,735,440 191,386 12,470,852
SRR

Bk & E At & R AL FRGR I 1,264,369 226,165 14,472 1,505,006
1) BT A HL & BRANLAG A 5K 90,234 258,629 6,412 355,275
HANES 1,500 48,518 18,947 68,965
A RMETTE B TSI AL IR BN LR RAH 92,132 = o 92,132
PTES AR 12,421 4,856 391 17,668
SEHEIM SR A=K 29,484 = = 29,484
U EEE 1,602,949 171,284 81,178 1,855,411
JSAREIE 7,258,015 39,642 3,715 7,301,372
HAth & Bhf R 239,931 7,333 416 247,680
ERUAGRAETT 10,591,035 756,427 125,531 11,472,993
RATAE LT3 (47,009) 979,013 65,855 997,859
CELTETR (BR/BXEH) 471,794 (452,488) (54,459) (35,153)
EoE&iE 2,900,724 296,332 20,091 3,217,147
2014%12H31H

ERE~AIT 8,444,709 1,610,396 143,364 10,198,469
ERARET 8,798,252 697,918 80,478 9,576,648
FRATLE LT #E (353,543) 912,478 62,886 621,821
CEGETR (AR/E XS 641,744 (590,402) (48,440) 2,902
(B 2,778,843 287,759 22,759 3,089,361
T

20154127015 | ART RTAART  AeTMSART A%
ERUTE

& R AFHHRRITHRIM 261,209 114 2 261,325
U b FRIN 368,410 130,950 57,259 556,619
HEARE 104,400 3,382 2,094 109,876
MARMETEEERHITALSHRENEHE > 579,950 - - 579,950
TTESMA~ 2,911 10,859 695 14,465
ENBESRE ™ 1,328,622 - - 1,328,622




130 / MEREME

AT
201512301 | ARD RRAART  RETHEARE A&
R EER TR 7,038,251 1,563,535 119,621 8,721,407
JHEESRA~ 330,467 1,757 - 332,224
IS EXEE SN 2,398 - - 2,398
ISRl €/ RT3 374 160,171 - - 160,171
Hit A~ 50,441 5,973 761 57,175
SRR~ G 10,227,230 1,716,570 180,432 12,124,232
ERG R
Bk % H At £ R A TR 1,265,525 226,195 14,472 1,506,192
= BUS FH fth R fE 3K - 226,367 6,412 232,779
HANAE - 48,518 18,947 67,465
MrpmEtEEE T ALHRENSRAR 92,111 = = 92,111
g 4 Bl o 12,421 4,708 391 17,520
SEHEMERE R = = = =
UL EEE 1,592,639 173,235 82,280 1,848,154
IAREIAE 7,249,958 25,807 3,715 7,279,480
Hith&mh R 142,430 3,535 375 146,340
ERINBET 10,355,084 708,365 126,592 11,190,041
RN B L% (127,854) 1,008,205 53,840 934,191
CERLFETR (FR/BXEH) 470,555 (435,551) (54,459) (19,455)
BEHExRIE 2,916,078 296,332 20,091 3,232,501
2014%12H31H
ERASET 8,234,979 1,584,298 131,970 9,951,247
ERINBET 8,667,238 657,626 79,953 9,404,817
RMIAE k%5 (432,259) 926,672 52,017 546,430
CELTETR (AR/BAXEEH) 640,504 (589,178) (48,440) 2,886
{EEER 2,794,050 287,759 22,759 3,104,568

MRETHBARTICEEFN1%, WAEAFB A FENZIET RO T,

&R T

ETR|ARTICEE
FF1% 9,394 8,605 9,686 8,747
TH1% (9,394) (8,605) (9,686) (8,747)

DACEREHHNRAFEO T 0, ARAZBELHORENES FREEUATEE.
s AFNRERBEARAKEAETLTHANEZL,

o CREHMXWEFITANTE,

c BUBENERXINARAXRTATHARITHETELY.

o LEEFHMHHNIKHF

4. FANHEREE

RAMRERIEARAREEEERN, ERERNUEEBRARERERS U R IBKH A B RS HRE . Rt R
TRERTEBTREERNA. FRANXSURLEZRREAERERRASHER.



AEFARY—BEERNMERBERIER, BFENRREH
RN SR ERTNEE. END TR 2T,
B R X

20155, ATHEBET A TSRS HER T E K, RIBER
Exn#tExXH BEFGRMNREKHNEBRESRHENGR
5 AEREGEIHE EATHEEIETH ENERE
BRITHRN TR FERA,

@ /JlLKj] |§ﬂ|§l\ B b E,] B *T%D /;n.
AEHAARSEBEASRANER, HPaFEFHER. 3
HNESFER. BiE6GRF. TR, BITIEREIAMA S
EMPTEemTRENMREKX,
BRFEAREPAEEMISRELEHNESETTEZAZ
AEARSMERGEENEEZBR. ATLSEFTIHEN
HRMAEN XD, ARARBEMAFMNE N T LR
BAMEN, REEMLTURRREs NG, ERNBEE
EREONE  AEAS B ARLER I~ ARk TRH7E
AESEEZA,
AFERREEZERSERIMENRNEENY, X2/
REAMEREMEARAODEET]. ARANRIHEEER
EaE.

s FUNEZEETMIESR, FHERERR
s BEAFOGRSMRO

s BEEMGSEHBEMNEREMEHE,

c BFRHESRMAITL.

FEAREEGBLS AT LR THENT RHTHEREA M
HERRAE, TBFERHERAEFRBERER M. L5, R

R EKE
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BHEEE, BE-BOEHNNK MEHRER, HASE
IHARE MELBAKE. EXHRENFTMAAE S
BRAEARFT T EERENSRAME™.

BEBLT, REAFRNAE=ZFSRBERIFENER
PR EN SRS TRRAS RLRFERMARLEAIL
BN EE—RSMTRRENST. BN, B ERKET
BEESH. PILFETBAENRE M LHLREST, B
WERRENERSTMFTBARRRKMENEHRALTE

© eI ERNMEDT

AEFEHFE AR ERE, WRERAMRET. =R 5
R, A R B .

AEANRABRENEBIRFRSAATHNSERX
RERATHHEFTHEER, ARRARKNRAERE
KRR, A BARIE R E B R 7T RIKITH R
SMEN. AEABRSKTEENELEZEZFNHERFHE
FEEERMAT R, XEAETRHBENEFEN, WEAERARE
RHEHEALERSFIAZREE, B2, RAEERAFFHFR
SAEARGTHREFNRDES . F20155F128310, A&
KR (B E—FR—FEMU L) R RELTMETH
ARM63,288. 11127t Hith KRR S (BFERLEREME
R BMFERRI. BB FMEthSRNEER FARS. L
e e R =R AR EFR) £MEITHART12,801.99
27,

ZERAENHKYRD L AEAFETE SR T RS
DMEBHEENTESRTIARMERERAERDHII TN
T.ARANXESH T EFRHANASRES TRPHON
TRAEENER.

AEH 20154£12A31H

TR RAR ] . ]

R REBHRRBITRR 872 263,060 = - = - = - 263932
TR b TR - 213695 229,779 51,722 103,722 387 35 - 599,340
wHEE - - 59,670 35,687 32,634 - - - 127,991
uﬁﬁgggii‘iig - 502,869 6,715 12,538 18,742 117,460 27,313 6,134 - 691,771
ENBRESRE = - 950,048 279,709 109,064 2,782 = - 1,341,603
KGRI 18,408 - 45885 237,137 1,425576 4,622971 3,192,761 2,444,289 11,987,027
THEE SRR 22,347 - 17,327 62,252 180,098 65,833 32,607 4994 385458
HEEERE - - 4 - 1,668 927 - - 2,599
N BRI 118 - 580 544 7,597 97,221 100,890 21 206,971
HitbemR™ 41 1,999 6 589 27,168 4,895 4,160 748 39,606
FETESRA =B 544,655 485469 1,315837 686,382 2,004,987 4,822,329 3,336,587 2,450,052 15,646,298
FETEERAE

BB 4 B A AR TR - 123942 191,741 14,441 131,846 1,092,931 - - 1,554,901
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FER 20154:12831H

1) B A At @ B AG R - - 18,670 92,542 123,197 121,618 4,808 5371 366,206
wARE - - 15,746 13,580 40,100 - - - 69,426
u:ﬁ;ﬁﬁggiﬁi;g p 21 - 10,175 9,296 72,080 3,252 = - 94,824
SHEMSRE =K = - 11,352 1,964 10,097 7,333 = - 30,746
TeE - 1,591,420 32,728 44964 110,082 67,606 9,483 20,676 1,876,959
MRS - - 134,840 200,938 917,527 4252223 2,509,080 1,168,233 9,182,841
Hibem ik 19,763 7,520 2,603 58,171 4,189 7,317 5,667 616 105,846
LTSRN EAT 19,784 1,722,882 417,855 435896 1,409,118 5,552,280 2,529,038 1,194,896 13,281,749
THEEMIANER

RETERNITESRMIA

WEHRN - - 24 (42) 114 2,550 1,355 5,080 9,081
REMGENITESRMIA

HERN - - 296,633 172,960 691,927 54,598 247 774 1,217,139
e = - (296,417) (175602) (702,058)  (54,967) (185) (704) (1,229,933)
KR 2014412H31H

TS RE

RERFHFRRITRI 1,081 56,320 - - - - - - 57,401
BFRE LRI 276 760,328 28,680 1,315 214,334 1,142 16 - 1,006,091
HEAEE = - 17,269 2,268 = - = - 19,537
uﬁﬁgggigiig}t 49,638 3,015 1,069 9,870 17,161 13,482 7,100 - 101,335
INBESRA - - 1,000,901 84,170 2,584 616 - - 1,088,271
KGR 10,929 - 87,224 219,756 1,395,342 4,246,284 2,750,354 2,018,333 10,728,222
THEESMA” 24,578 - 6,705 13,493 32,595 74,647 22,413 3,447 177,878
HEZIHRA - - 1 153 1,088 2,958 89 - 4,289
MR H 122 22 278 513 4,005 12,439 4,803 - 22,182
Hh &mE= 40 1,411 67 418 4,761 9,317 5,599 2,585 24,198
FLTESRAT B 86,664 821,096 1,142,194 331,956 1,671,870 4,360,885 2,790,374 2,024,365 13,229,404
ETEERMAE

B W & H At & R BRI - 78,066 474,716 16,193 147,222 1,106,917 - - 1,823,114
fe) B L Ath & B4R £ 30 - 38 29,508 71,768 241,010 112,915 3,479 5899 464,617
HARE - - 48,993 14,570 13,227 - - - 76,790
uﬁﬁgggiiiﬁﬁ - - 1,067 5214 2147 - - - 848
SHEMEE AR R - - 16,225 4,060 5,216 3,141 = - 28,642
R 7FR - 853,394 22,321 46,431 108,649 46,338 9,775 22,225 1,109,133
N AHR% - - 102,598 210,697 753338 3937572 2,073,577 971,881 8,049,663
Hih&m i H 12 3,837 202 189 4,943 8,171 2,887 311 20,552

FTESRABREH 12 935,335 695,630 369,122 1,275,752 5215054 2,089,718 1,000,316 11,580,939
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FEH 2014412831H

TEERMIANSH

RENGENITESBIA

REBRN - - 26 - 125 935 1,358 5,280 7,724
BREBAENITEERIA

REHN - - 208641 184809 787,808 20,251 247 774 1,202,530
B o = - (207,791) (182,738)  (776,097) _ (19,791) (185) (704) (1,187,306)
T 20154128310

JEATESRA

A& RERHRRITHRIR - 261,325 - - - - - - 261,325
FME LRI - 198,283 208,518 49,735 102,578 - - - 559,114
HERS - - 58,569 35,687 32,634 - - - 126,890
uﬁﬁgggigi;g = 424,350 - 12,217 18,586 115,634 13,344 846 - 584,977
ENBE SRR = ~ 949,236 279,629 105,798 - = - 1,334,663
KM RHAEZR 16,448 - 42,957 223,841 1,375250 4,541,545 3,176,529 2,460,164 11,836,734
& SRR - - 17,327 62,254 179,534 60,881 25,803 4,109 349,908
BEZIMRE - - 4 - 1,668 927 - - 2,599
NIRRT - - 341 346 7,815 92,206 99,914 - 200,622
Hitt&mR ™ - 22 4 340 24,649 74 - - 25,089
JEETAE SBVA = B 440,798 459,630 1,289,173 670,418 1945560 4,708977 3,303,092 2,464,273 15281921
JHTES AR

B & H b & B F BRI - 125142 191,741 14,441 131,833 1,092,931 - - 1,556,088
51 BURF I E At 2 RAAN AR AR - - 809 72,399 66,215 93,191 2,334 4915 239,863
HANRE - - 14,245 13,580 40,100 - - - 67,925
u;’_‘;ﬁgggiiigg & = - 10,175 9,296 72,080 3,252 = - 94,803
S B0 G 4 B R = K - - - - - - - - -
TR 77 5% - 1585242 32,483 44,290 110,340 67,055 9,483 20,677 1,869,570
IvANEEC = - 132,824 200936 916,870 4,238,574 2,499,343 1,168,233 9,156,780
Hib & A6 - 94 2,460 93 573 356 5 3 3,584
E e kb - 1,710,478 384737 355035 1338011 5495359 2,511,165 1,193,828 12,988,613
TEERMIANSR

RETAENITEERTIA

REFRN - - 40 3 247 2,705 1,343 5,080 9,418
REGSENITESRIA

REHN - - 296633 172,960 689,524 54,598 247 774 1,214,736

b2/ = - (296.417)  (175,602)  (699,599) (54,967) (185) (704) (1,227,474)
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1T 2014412831H
FETEERE™
& RFNFRBITHI - 55,979 - - - - - - 55,979
TR LRI - 751,912 19,880 - 211,808 - - - 983,600
KLAE - - 16,769 2,268 - - - - 19,037
u:ﬁ;ﬁgggiﬁiég = - - 1,069 9,865 16,677 7,407 679 - 35,697
FENBRESRE - - - 999,537 83,960 = - = - 1,083,497
KGR AR 10,007 - 85,758 212,836 1,370,291 4,182,187 2,731,548 2,022,272 10,614,899
THEESRE” - - 6,401 13,493 32,545 70,718 14,953 2,654 140,764
FEEIPRE - - 1 153 1,088 2,958 89 - 4,289
NGRS T - - 276 303 3,785 3,691 4,764 - 12,819
Hib &mR™ - 34 11 173 135 553 - - 906
ETESRA~ B 10,007 807,925 1,129,702 323,051 1,636,329 4,267,514 2,752,033 2,024,926 12,951,487
FTEERMAE
B & H & R R - 79,527 474,716 16,213 147,222 1,106,917 = - 1,824,595
1) B R S At S R AT A R - - 18,889 50,689 193,936 76,812 1,644 5606 347,576
HARE = - 48,242 14,570 13,227 - = - 76,039
u:ﬁ;ﬁgggigiig & - - 1,067 5214 2,147 - - - 8,428
THEBERE N - - 10,026 - - - - - 10,026
UTiecE - 848,477 21,676 46,104 108,718 45,863 9,725 22,226 1,102,789
NS - - 102598 210,685 752,646 3,928,183 2,063,794 971881 8,029,787
Hih&m iz - 215 53 78 675 881 5 3 1,910
FLTE SR ARBE - 928219 677,267 343553 1,218,571 5,158,656 2,075,168 999,716 11,401,150
TESBTANER
RETERNITESRMIA
PSRN = - 28 40 298 1,107 1,332 5,280 8,085
RESARENITEERIA
WERN = - 208205 184,809 787,004 20,251 247 774 1,201,290
REFth = - (207,363) (182,738) (775,301)  (19,791) (185) (704) (1,186,082)
BrERRRIME

AEARFKE. FHRE. RORKALERFLEERIINGRESTIRKREEREMBEIBIRET.

P Sl

TEROR 4,550 2,934 71,411 252,498 422,684 2,343,130 3,097,207
FFH R ER 1,984 883 7,608 37,988 27,807 507 76,777
FITERFILCERE 4,629 6,922 19,860 = = = 31,411
FFHERIE 2,844 2,717 3,766 2,425 = = 11,752
ait 14,007 13,456 102,645 292,911 450,491 2,343,637 3,217,147
20145128310 1,508,837 87,581 462,802 966,019 63,486 636 3,089,361
T

TERROR 4,550 2,934 71,411 252,498 422,684 2,343,130 3,097,207

FFHRE 1,984 3,923 10,958 47,488 27,807 507 92,667
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7
1

RITREILE 4,548 6,857 19,470 - - - 30,875
FHAERIE 2,844 2,717 3,766 2,425 - - 11,752
&it 13,926 16,431 105,605 302,411 450,491 2,343,637 3,232,501
20144128 31H 1,508,835 87,558 465,534 978,519 63,486 636 3,104,568

5. EMEAFMEMARNA R NE

SR TEAAMNANMENSREITIREEREZ R AREFERT S ERLFENRN. BXENERTH LRBURMNME , AEFBEIT (G

EFARFHESHRIENAANE. FERAREEAREz AT WNE NHZEE, B R T DEREAERAR S E5E, fIA

SHMRANEERABGEEETHSEZEENIBTRSENMBER H5ENMANESRTIEENEFERERE K.

(1) UasMEITENEHRTIE

AEANAANMETEN SR T EZKEN,. 6MAN=1FEXFTAT:

AEH

SR

MARMETEEREF

S HIR 25 1 S B 12,168 167,228 501,764 681,160
TTESRA >~ - 14,180 = 14,180
THEESRE S~ 10,403 338,417 14,980 363,800
&it 22,571 519,825 516,744 1,059,140
ERHE

MARMETEERES

T H4R 26 10 2 B 4 - (92.132) - (92.132)
£T4 @Rl TR - (17,668) = (17,668)
&it - (109,800) = (109,800)
SRR

MARMETERRES

S HI 28 1 S B 11,867 37,140 46,788 95,795
LT ERA - 18,965 - 18,965
o &SR 13,312 142,125 16,537 171,974
&it 25,179 198,230 63,325 286,734
AR

MARMETERERES

A SHRB SRR - (8,295) - (8,295)
LTE SRR - (9,518) - (9,518)
At - (17,813) - (17,813)
AT
ot

MARMETERERES

AN HIRE SR - 155,600 424,350 579,950
TTESRA >~ - 14,465 = 14,465
i ESRA 1,757 330,467 = 332,224
&it 1,757 500,532 424,350 926,639
ot 378
MARMETERERES

TN 525 0 % B 01 - 2111 - (62,111)
T4 &R R = (17,520) = (17,520)

&it = (109,631) = (109,631)
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2014412H31H F—BR BBk F=ZBR &it
SR

NN AN AN = A5

TTHESRAS~ - 19,312 - 19,312
T SRR 1,224 137,120 - 198,344
P 1,224 189,988 - 191,212
SRR

NN AN B H = ARz

i e ) 299 ] o
£ SRR - (9.477) - ©.477)
& - (17,772) - (17,772)

2015 F EM204FE, AEAFE—ERAME_RREMTAZBALERED.
TEREARANTHESHASMEROURHAANMERBR T HXER (FHIZMXANGERARNANE).

REH
DRME- e Bx AANEAAE
SRAS /SRR 20144 o HEEAMEEHNE RAEE AR HE
128310 “ HEED PAEEE
DA R B B E A A
RS IAT — i oL 6151
BARGMEH B BTN L
HRAN SRR - RERE 1,767 3,802 ) .
Pt - ég;?imﬁm(ﬂmhtﬁﬂ# — —
A RAMEY B B R A A 4264 ois
BB SRAT - MBS TA ’ :
TTHEESRE - fiF 5,057 5,271
T ESRAT - NATE 5,346 8,041
A RAMEV B B R AN
BRARSRAT - 12691 26549
BARMEH BB R EHIA L
RSN SR E~ — BY~ R 231 120
Rt
BAROMEH B BTN L
RN SRAT - RERE - 30
Sl
o - FRASRE, ARALRBIRIBT
WARMETEERZATAS 446 146 AR (R BB S EIR A TR 3
BRANSRAS - ALHE ECER RHS) BENRARHEALE FEH TiE
BA RAME B BTN % i FREBRERSHHEARRL
RN ERAS - AF-ER 93,670 8,295 PRI,
i
BUA R B BTN %
BRSNS R A - A-ER ©@,132) (8,295)
]
T ESRE T - fiF 233,148 135,671
B ESRAT - B FE 103,248 6,454
T ESRAT - NETA 2,021 -
ASBAS - KT ER (B 068 10008 FONSHE. ARAERBRIEE
L TR ) ' ' BT SEHIFIR (RERE HIRA
oy  TUROEBTERMSESS), -~
S SRR - KT ER (61F BB G manBREET HERR o TER
= (9,971) (2,190) . e
X EHHEEL) : ’ EXSHEARB NIRRT
8.
FESBAS - KTFEHEY 58 172 FONERE, KRS BRIBT
HITR (RSB & B 0 ST BT 4
o L EoR% R RAREHTEELEL # FEH FiE
PrEemit - wRHEHaL (&) (172) BREMER SN ARK TR
BT
AL TR, KRAEFRIRBT
PaeRAS - HETHR 8,750 7814 SR e
ETEX Réig) RAAHEERET #E FER FiE
PSRN - WEER (7,270) (6,735) St 32 3 3875 5 P KB O T %

HTH.
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FEH

PPEEERAT -~ KRR o 260 BRI — BRI
HRE — HRVREF S E SRR
P C oy BEMRE CREBEMENTRR i
STESBAT — FRE 370 21 BIRR i pamenmisms TER FEM
XEHFERRG ORADEREGHE
7 SRR — TR (370) (421) i
HEAKME BRERRELOR RAUE NFT%— 0
176 190 HEER  MEEBKEBMEN0EALE % ey 0
R HFEME, 9.81%)
IIRTESRRREA,  IRTERARE
NTF42% —19%z 8 Ak, ARt
(AR FH59.36%)  {akN
RIS AT
10% — 20% ( ANIRE j’@ﬁgg%k'
- . . 19%13.49%) “ILh
FORNETHE. KRN HRT R e
MARNMET R EEERAY —ny  THESWEE FRERRETY KGEKE A A
BRAHEHAS - RAETR s BB RBERR mimmkwesmetiaen 200 %28 0 0
FIRRRANFA, 492.35%)
DEBAITANR20% BRI
(DAREIGH20%) A, ARHHERN
EAEE 0% (MR ERESA
F#40%) ARPERK
T SETHLAMTLOTE RBFN AT
55,101 9900 H=EKR  ATEEEH, ZEAUKDEIIN 9.4% — 36.31% (NN gﬁﬁﬁﬁd\ '
EERAT RN A RN, F929.35%) ’
DA R BT B EEERHITAY W SETHERNGUOTL RAIIAT
RS AERA — BU & 4,925 289 BIRR  ATEXER EERGUABMFM 04% - 3631% (LT
REA EHERATE AR NE. F49:4129.36%) ’
Tk, BENH LENF YT N
HEESRAT - NE TR 14,980 16,537  HZER  AEHERIEER. BRTRSMEIN RS, 35% gﬁﬁﬁﬂ&

EIERRTME N AANE,

(1) FRFARRE. ARAENE=ZRAN SR TAEAAMERTITEN, EB T A INEHNE ERESETEERKRRN
E—AHENFTURRANE, BASWXLELBRTAENAARNETEEERZM.

AEFALRE=ZEXREMTARHMT .

EREE

&M

20151811 46,788 = 16,537 63,325
zs/ (H]K) &1t 4,130 = (1,672) 2,458
— g/ (4RKR) 3,751 - (445) 3,306
- vz ala 379 - (1,227) (848)
S (15,885) = = (15,885)
i 467,794 = 115 467,909

G - . - -
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&M

SR~

MNEZRREEH (1,063) - - (1,063)
20154128318 501,764 = 14,980 516,744
201561231 BHAN T/ i+
— It E R PR E/RE 4,155 - (445) 3,710
—ItAEMGEERE 379 - (1,227) (848)
ERE
2014F181H 32,412 16 13,530 45,958
g/ (45%) &1t 2,136 8 4,286 6,430
— s/ (HK) 2,114 8 - 2,122
- Atz ek 22 - 4,286 4,308
] (2,308) (24) (1,611) (3,943)
#hn 20,153 - 9 20,162
2 1,395 - 323 1,718
ME=ZERE (7,000) - - (7,000)
20144128318 46,788 - 16,537 63,325
201451231 BHANE~/f HEH
—IFARER PR E/RE 2,114 8 - 2,122
- ITAHE MG AR R 22 - 4,449 4,471
AT EREZEREMIEEHNWT.
T SR

20151818

W/ (%) &It

— g/ (k)

- Hfpmala

St

&

424,350

424,350

“H

ME=ZREREH

2015%12831H

424,350

424,350

2015512 A31 HIFFHHE /A HRP

- IPANRE R A ER/AR K

- ITARMEEKE
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(2) EUARMETEHNERIE
FEAFEURXANETBHERATMAR, EXANEGTET T TTHTTENRE .

() A RFHRPRBITHRD. FRELZIA. FHES IARELMAS . BLERERRN. FAEHFER FARS ZHE
T i U 7 R EL A 7 A EL A 9 455 o — £ A B A Y R At S LSO R A SR

BTFNELERAFRSMARNIHERABAIE—FENR, BSATTHNERSEREN . AKENMEREE A ANE.
(i) FrAEZRHRA R T BRI LR A

LHEIEFRANAARNEUTHRENTHRN AR, I TELTHIESRR, WERRNERZIESFRARKRKAASRE
TR MIEFR B BN A ERARTE.

(ill) R GERRANETRK

BT FIMERROFERTRRETFEARETEANRFEH B2 BFERLE AKANEREAANENSEEIL. BEF
RERNAANMENASRENIUERE WWIERE A SIZRROR KHRIE MO ERTIR, S TRERR, HARNENTR
T ETHAMEAA S RFAE.

(v) EIEFIRERRAMAER
B EMRERMERNAANENR SR EMNIERE , MIEIL B S ZFREEROR KHRIE ORI E,
V) RTRFRRBHRSE

BRHENARNEUTHRNAEMBSELUSHRIANTHRNFE, W TLEZRETHRN AL ULRIATHRN AR
%, HARNEMNSIZEH ORI KR LM KRR S R A RIS RENIEHE.

BT RERAGMSN, HTUAANETENSRE~MNAGRNKENMERLEARNE,

ZER 2015412H31H 2014412831H

NAHRSE 7,301,372 7,554,679 6,353,559 6,397,268
AT 2015412H31H 2014412H31H

R AR 7,279,480 7,532,803 6,338,149 6,381,921

FRFMHERD, AEAN A HEOAANETENSHEEHLPRTROLFRAT D ERORLRBMIARE, ARNE
BREUPHEZRR.
6. RAER
AEFAHFTAREENORAMALA = RPN N TEEH 2 HENTER.
s BREAEAZEMEHRTEENNEEHAKRER,
o RIEARARBEEE ) BB R FIREETR.
s REBEENAREMNZHUSERE.

AEFAEERETEERZERSMARIES] MEBRESHNEENE, INERARXNEERNEEARAARNEHER, ATE8EFH
EMRES ERAERNALER.

T=. MSRRZHAE
ARG RAHM S RET01648F20AEAAFEREHA,
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HARME IR RS E R

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES & SUBSIDIARIES

BEXS

General Meetings of Shareholders

b

Board of Directors

BRAEEER BELHAE
Executive Management Board of Directors Office
\ \ \ \
AT TSR (SRmA LR ) R MR (FRIE)
Executive Office Regg:g;r ;?rD';C;ggr?:ent Policy Research Department Planning Department
V. V. y,
\ \ \ \
Treasury & Financial Market Risk Management O e it — Project Appraisal
Department Department P Department |
W, V. V,
\ \ \ \
ERrEtEL B A F FEERES ST
Global Cooperation Large Corporate Client Information Technology =
Operations Department
Department Department Department
W, V. y,
\ \
THFSEER ERATHS
Administrative Affairs : "
D Retired Staff Department
epartment y
\ \ \ \
N EEAVER . EEERD
N \ 'ﬁE'T:—;J'\'I:I =T ElER
'fI—'&%ﬂ?_ﬂ{%ﬂg Housing Finance Planning . 1.£%1$$)EJ . Housing Finance Portfolio
CDB Housing Finance & Admi Housing Finance Project Appraisal
min Management
V. y, y,
\ \ \ \
R REDT AL 1T WA 17
Beijing Branch Tianjin Branch Hebei Branch Shanxi Branch
v, v, v,
\ \ \ \
BRIDTT Beyi= o) SIHAT TN 1T
Heilongjiang Branch Shanghai Branch Jiangsu Branch Suzhou Branch
v, v, v,
\ \ \ \
B934T TP 4T WED 1T EB01T
Xiamen Branch Jiangxi Branch Shandong Branch Qingdao Branch
v v A
\ \ \ \
w47 IR BRI 1T ERDTT
Shenzhen Branch Guangxi Branch Hainan Branch Chongging Branch
. . W,
\ \ \ \
HRD1T R 1T B0 TENT
Gansu Branch Xinjiang Branch Qinghai Branch Ningxia Branch
V. V. V.
\ \ \ \
BB FERFL EHTRMARL BARAAREL
Hong Kong Branch Cairo Representative Office Moscow Representative Office Rio de Janeiro Representative Office
V.
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I

Board of Supervisors

BEESDAE

Board of Supervisors Office

VERRR THESRAR SEEER MR
q n /. =l . 3
Business Development Market Development & Equity Leoel BEserimeEm Finance & Accounting
Department ) Investment Department 9 P y Department y
\ \ \ |
HEHEZH WH=RB EREER Efrert/a
Project Appraisal Project Appraisal Loan Management International Finance
Department Il Department Ill Department Department
V. V. V. J
\ \ \ \
HiE AEF -3 #HEEIB
Audit Department HUFBZEE:;Z%CGS Compliance Department EducDaélggrtﬁqggtlmng
V. V. V. J
\ \ \ \
NEEY LT 17 KEDFT "R 1T
Inner Mongolia Branch Liaoning Branch Dalian Branch Jilin Branch
A v, v, A
\ \ \ \
AL T TRIFT BRI TT BEDTT
Zhejiang Branch Ningbo Branch Anhui Branch Fujian Branch
A v, A A
\ \ \ \
BT HIER 1T BT R T
Henan Branch Hubei Branch Hunan Branch Guangdong Branch
A v, A v,
\ \ \ \
w1447 w17 ZEDTT B 217
Sichuan Branch Guizhou Branch Yunnan Branch Shaanxi Branch
. v, v, v,
|
mR 1T FEEREN T EFEEEREELT CDB Capital Co., Ltd.
Tibet Branch - 3FS =Y WA iti
) Group Subsidiaries EI}F]E_#%BER{EEA Bl CcDB Secu-rltles Co., Ltd.
EREMAERIMPAEFRLT  CDB Leasing Co., Ltd.
\ | A RESHRAT China-Africa Development Fund
Ik ndr AR R FEL EFXREEERAT CDB Development Fund
Caracas Representative Office London Representative Office 13 RHFHARIT 13 Village Banks
Y,
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BEIJING BRANCH

it EERTEHKEXTAAE158STFAESE

Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, 158 Fuxingmennei Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing

BiE(Tel) : (010) 63223100

fEE (Fax) : (010) 66412282

i 4R (Zip) : 100031

KRBT
TIANJIN BRANCH
Mok REW X RKIERISHEBLRTOAE6R
Add: 26/F, Huanbohai Development Centre A, 9
Binshui Road, Hexi District, Tianjin
#iE(Tel) : (022) 85681234
£ E (Fax) : (022) 88355858
#3 4% (Zip) : 300061

WS T
HEBEI BRANCH
it AR E LTSI E 5B

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Road, Shijiazhuang

Bi%(Tel) : (0311) 85288100
f£E (Fax) : (0311) 85288112
1R 48 (Zip) : 050051

LA S 1T

SHANXI BRANCH

k. KERT/NVEXAKIRE83275

Add: 327 Changzhi Road, Xiaodian District, Taiyuan
BiE(Tel) : (0351) 4937222

LB (Fax) : (0351) 4937224

#E 4% (Zip) : 030006

HNEREHIT

INNER MONGOLIA BRANCH

it AREFHERFTREXRH)IAE16S
Add: 16 Chilechuan Street, Hohhot

B (Tel) : (0471) 3310013

fEH& (Fax) : (0471) 3310021

#B %R (Zip) : 010098

TFa1T

LIAONING BRANCH

ik LT LT X EE A #1095

Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang
BiE (Tel) : (024) 22959955

£ E (Fax) : (024) 22953371

R %% (Zip) : 110014
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KEST

DALIAN BRANCH

ik KETHPUXAREIS-17SERSRAE25E

Add: 25/F, International Finance Plaza, 15-17
Renmin Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian

BiE(Tel) : (0411) 82810918

fZHE (Fax) : (0411) 82633839

HR 4% (Zip) : 116001

BT

JILIN BRANCH

ik KE TR AER3995

Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changchun
BiE(Tel) : (0431) 85279600

fZHE (Fax) : (0431) 85279700

R 48 (Zip) : 130022

BRiINT

HEILONGJIANG BRANCH

ik MG /RIRT AL X BT Z 882775

Add: 277 Chuangxin 2 Road, Songbei District, Harbin
BiE(Tel) : (0451) 53907900

f£H (Fax) : (0451) 53907808

B4 (Zip) : 150028

LiBa1T

SHANGHAI BRANCH

k. EiETIR K68 S

Add: 68 Puming Road, Shanghai
BiE(Tel) © (021) 58883655

f£H (Fax) : (021) 58883659

B4R (Zip) : 200120

IIHDAT

JIANGSU BRANCH

il ERAIRTE&2325

Add: 232 Jiangdongzhong Road, Nanjing
BiE(Tel) : (025) 83276222

fEH (Fax) : (025) 83276204

R 4R (Zip) : 210019

FINAT
SUZHOU BRANCH
ik AT T X B’ 158 S B Ui 55 511-12/%
Add: 11/F-12/F, Zhiye Business Plaza, 158
Wangdun Road, Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou
BiE(Tel) : (0512) 67887142
fEE (Fax) : (0512) 67887114
HR 4% (Zip) : 215028
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LT RS 1T

ZHEJIANG BRANCH SHANDONG BRANCH

ik FMTI T XH 2695 X EFF A E321% ik ™ L& LK1 SIURAEI12E

Add: 32/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District, Hangzhou Add: 9/F-12/F, Shandong Hotel, 2-1 Ma’anshan Road, Jinan

BiE(Tel) : (0571) 89778000 #iE(Tel) : (0531) 85198100

f£H (Fax) : (0571) 89778068 f£ & (Fax) : (0531) 85198282

i3 4% (Zip) : 310020 B4R (Zip) : 250002

TRT FHoT

NINGBO BRANCH QINGDAO BRANCH

ik FIRTIIRKERILRS77TS it HERMREAEKISSHREKBRETR

Add: 577 Haiyan Road, Jiangdong District, Ningbo Add: 17/F, Liantong Building, 15A Donghaixi Road, Qingdao

3% (Tel) : (0574) 83872888 #3%(Tel) : (0532) 81978277

£ & (Fax) : (0574) 83872100 f£H (Fax) : (0532) 81978288

1B 4% (Zip) : 315040 B %% (Zip) : 266071

T AR T

ANHUI BRANCH HENAN BRANCH

il &RET K 2465 ik KB T 2K 2665

Add: 246 Wuhu Road, Hefei Add: 266 JinShui Road, Zhengzhou

BiE(Tel) : (0551) 62867889 8iE(Tel) : (0371) 66000888

f£H (Fax) : (0551) 62875868 £ H (Fax) ; (0371) 66000777

1B % (Zip) : 230061 #B 45 (Zip) : 450008

BEST #ALsT

FUJIAN BRANCH HUBEI BRANCH

ik @M T RIS E R KE29-33F ik RXTHRERFRFEI81 SERLZEKRE

Add: 29/F-33/F, Yifa Mansion, 111 Wusi Road, Fuzhou Add: Chutian Media Plaza, 181 Donghu Road, Wuchang District, Wuhan

g (Tel) : (0591) 87856844 BiE(Tel) : (027) 86759555

1 E (Fax) : (0591) 87856408 f£E (Fax) : (027) 86759666

HR4R(Zip) : 350003 R4 (Zip) : 430077

Er&a1T R AT

XIAMEN BRANCH HUNAN BRANCH

it BT RBRAXETE100S5 AW E LA (EITME Fil) 35-39/F ik KD T REFE —RI06SHARAE

Add: 35/F-39/F, Forture Centre, 100 Lujiang Road, Add: Xianghao Plaza, 106 Block 2, Furongzhong Road, Changsha
Siming District, Xiamen BiE(Tel) : (0731) 84906658

BiE(Tel) : (0592) 2978912 f£H (Fax) : (0731) 84906699

fZHE (Fax) : (0592) 2393111 HR 4% (Zip) : 410005

#R 4% (Zip) : 361001

TEST I"HR3T

JIANGXI BRANCH GUANGDONG BRANCH

it B9 E T LT ERE8S ik MR X BRI AEE100-15 8 N BE HAKR23A
Add: 68 Zhongshanxi Road, Nanchang Add: 23A, Building A Winner Plaza, 100-1 Huangpu

B iE(Tel) : (0791) 86592323 Road West, Tianhe District, Guangzhou

f£E (Fax) : (0791) 86592333 1% (Tel) : (020) 38633017

il 4% (Zip) : 330009 f£E (Fax) : (020) 38633000

R %5 (Zip) : 510627



w17
SHENZHEN BRANCH
it SR TR REE1093 S HIEKE10-15/F

Add: 10/F-15/F, Citic Building, 1093 Shennanzhong Road, Shenzhen

B3 (Tel) : (0755) 25985666
f£E (Fax) : (0755) 25987800
B %R (Zip) : 518031

I EST

GUANGXI BRANCH

it BTmREKE495
Add: 149 Minzu Street, Nanning
BiE(Tel) : (0771) 8018114

£ HE (Fax) : (0771) 8018510

tB 4% (Zip) : 530028

BEST

HAINAN BRANCH

ik BOWEREXKIARF1S

Add: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Haikou
8iE(Tel) : (0898) 68510780

f£E (Fax) : (0898) 68551933

B4 (Zip) : 570311

BERNT

CHONGQING BRANCH

it ERTTIER FE1S

Add: 1 Financial Street, Jiangbei District, Chongging
B iE(Tel) : (023) 67858000

fZH (Fax) : (023) 67858114

fE 45 (Zip) : 400023

51T

SICHUAN BRANCH

it RE T EHTXREHRI205ERALXRTAE

Add: CDB Plaza, 120 Tiantai Road, High-tech Zone, Chengdu
BiE(Tel) : (028) 86029998

fEH& (Fax) : (028) 86029617

HR 4R (Zip) : 610041

BT

GUIZHOU BRANCH

ik ST ER KOS IL@EIR HEE1E10-212

Add: 10/F-21/F, Huijin International Plaza, 66 Yan'an West
Road, Guiyang

BiE(Tel) : (0851) 88651588

f£ & (Fax) : (0851) 88651605

B % (Zip) : 550003

144 /| BEEWENERIMIEESR / ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES & SUBSIDIARIES

=EST

YUNNAN BRANCH

ik BT 1EEK1765

Add: 176 Guangfu Road, Kunming
BiE(Tel) : (0871) 63634094

f£H (Fax) : (0871) 63634001
HR4R(Zip) : 650228

BRF 1T

SHAANXI BRANCH

it BRmE R —ESERARRITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 2 Hi-Tec Road, Xi'an
#iE(Tel) : (029) 87660578

&£ H (Fax) : (029) 87660581

#R 4R (Zip) : 710075

HRMT

GANSU BRANCH

il Z MR EEK17285

Add: 1728 Nanchang Road, Lanzhou
BiE(Tel) : (0931) 8866628

f£H (Fax) : (0931) 8866237

B4 (Zip) : 730030

HEDT

XINJIANG BRANCH

it BEAFHHLKEIBBBSERFRBITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Urumgi
B (Tel) : (0991) 2335001

f£HE (Fax) : (0991) 2335002

"B 4% (Zip) : 830002

BT

QINGHAI BRANCH
it AW RECEK2S
Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining
B iE(Tel) : (0971) 6161900
f£H (Fax) : (0971) 6161900
HR 4% (Zip) : 810001

TEMT
NINGXIA BRANCH
it RITEREXARRIEHTS

Add: 1 Yinjiaqu North Street, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan

3% (Tel) : (0951) 5695900
fEH (Fax) : (0951) 5695813
HR 4% (Zip) : 750004
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BT

TIBET BRANCH

it hrgET/\—EE528A

Add: 28A Bayi South Road, Lhasa
BiE(Tel) : (0891) 6623818

f£E (Fax) : (0891) 6623818
HR4%(Zip) : 850000

EEST

HONG KONG BRANCH

it FEEPRESH I SERSH PO —HA334%

Add: 33/F One International Finance Centre, 1 Harbour View
Street, Central, Hong Kong

BiE(Tel) : (00852) 28016218

1 E (Fax) : (00852) 25304083

FEFRFL

CAIRO REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

ik BRI D EREFER T8 R4S, 28T

Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Building 41 (A), St. 18, Maadi,
Sarayat, Cairo, Egypt

B3 (Tel) : (002-02) 23802799

1ZE (Fax) : (002-02) 23787475

BRI RS

MOSCOW REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

ik BTSRRI R TR RS RREHS

Add: Novatorov str.1, Moscow 119421, Russian Federation
H1E (Tel) : (007-495) 9894612

fZHE (Fax) : (007-495) 9894611

BABRAAREL

RIO DE JANEIRO REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

it BEEEAKRK AT HOR M S SEA#H9I55510F

Add: 10/F, Presidente Vargas St., No.955, Central District,
Rio de Janeiro City, Brazil

B 1E (Tel) : (0055-21) 982839080

pilETIIE: TR AL 1S
CARACAS REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE
Motk - R IRAELINGL AT 4 B XU F A RO IR 5 1551

Add: Piso 5. Edif. Centro Profesional Eurobuilding, Calle Guairita,

Chuao, Caracas, Venezuela
#i%(Tel) : (0058-212) 9914989

ERFRL

LONDON REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE
ik HER BT RE RAH1S5230=E

Add: Room 230, 1 Cornhill, London, EC3V 3ND
B1E(Tel) : (0044) 2076488400-230

EFEmARREAR

CDB CAPITAL CO., LTD.

it R AKX SR AEH7SHEERSFO10E

Add: 10/F, Winland International Finance Centre, 7
Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

BiE(Tel) : (010) 88308477

f£E (Fax) : (010) 66553276

R %5 (Zip) : 100033

EFESARRELH

CDB SECURITIES CO., LTD

ik LRI EHX ERHITIMNREH29S

Add: 29 Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
BiE(Tel) : (010) 51789000

f£E (Fax) : (010) 51789110

B} %% (Zip) : 100037

EsR& B ERMERAT

CDB LEASING CO., LTD.

Motk SR T ¥E H X 25 B B§6009-5 # it 7 #i(,49-52 )2

Add: 49/F-52/F, New World Centre, 6009 Yitian Road,
Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong

BiE(Tel) : (0755) 23980999

f£E (Fax) : (0755) 23980900

B4 (Zip) : 518026

hIELXRECHRLE

CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

it R EHKEXTAAEH28 SR B FOREI-11E

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade Centre, 28
Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

8iE(Tel) : (010) 59566800

fZE (Fax) : (010) 59566969

R 4R (Zip) : 100031

R E FF R RARITRR D B R F

DALATE CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

ik . MERE SRR & H A R A B AR B T R R EE2 SRR

Add: Ground Floor, 2 Dongdajiayuan, Xiyuan Road, Shulinzhao
Town, Dalate County, Ordos, Inner Mongolia

#iE(Tel) : (0477) 3969785

f£E (Fax) : (0477) 3969786

#R 4% (Zip) : 014300



HEEFHERITRB AR E

ZHENLAI CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it ERE AT AR EH4805

Add: 480 Xinxing South Street, Zhenlai, Baicheng, Jilin
#iE(Tel) : (0436) 5077105

fEH& (Fax) : (0436) 5077105

HB 4% (Zip) : 137300

ZOEFELAERITRABARAF

LONGKOU CDB NANSHAN VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it WRERZ AT T ER LA

Add: Nanshanzhong Road, Nanshan Industrial Park,
Longkou, Shandong

BiE(Tel) : (0535) 8808508

& H (Fax) : (0535) 8808508

HR 4R (Zip) : 265706

KGEFHERITRABRAA

DAYE CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.
ik IR KA RAKRIEI045

Add: 104 Daye Road, Daye, Hubei
BiE(Tel) : (0714) 8725699

f£E (Fax) : (0714) 8725699

#R 4R (Zip) : 435100

HEEFAERITERSELR

YICHENG CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.
b: b i ol = N= b i e R R

Add: Yiyang Gallery Street, Yicheng, Hubei
#iE (Tel) : (0710) 4221000

fEH (Fax) : (0710) 4225752

HR 4% (Zip) : 441400

S EFHERITRGARAR

MILUO CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it BEEAT T ARERIS

Add: 1 Dazhong South Road, Miluo, Yueyang City, Hunan
8iE(Tel) : (0730) 5559999

£ H (Fax) : (0730) 5250180

R4 (Zip) : 414400

HAZEF A ERITIR A RN A

GANSU JINGCHUAN CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD

ik BRI ERUAEETS

Add: 1 Zhongshan North Road, Jingchuan County, Pingliang
City, Gansu

BiE(Tel) : (0933) 3321929

1 H (Fax) : (0933) 3321929

1B 4 (Zip) : 744300
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KiBEFHEBRITERRELH

DATONG CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

il FEEKXBEFLEARK70-45

Add: 70-4 Renmin Road, Qiaotou Town, Datong County,
Qinghai

B3 (Tel) : (0971) 7830961

fZHE (Fax) : (0971) 7830961

HR 4% (Zip) : 810100

e E FFATERRIT IR B PR A

BEIJING TONGZHOU CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.
ik e RTHBMN XA E 65

Add: Jia 66 Yangzhuang Nanli, Tongzhou District, Beijing

B iFE(Tel) : (010) 52998500

f£HE (Fax) : (010) 52998500

HR 45 (Zip) : 101121

KETAFEFHERITROBRAF

TIANJIN XIQING CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it RiEWAE X PILEFIERER NS EKIBEHES

Add: Ground floor, Jin Sha Shui Yu Hua Cheng, South of
Zhongbei Street, Zhongbei Town, Xiging District, Tianjin

BiE(Tel) : (022) 58967002

f£H (Fax) : (022) 58967008

R 4R (Zip) : 300112

TR CEFFHERITRBBIRA F

NINGBO BEILUN CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.
ik T T AL S X HTARK837-8475

Add: 837-847 Xinda Road, Beilun District, Ningbo
HiE(Tel) : (0574) 86856785

fZHE (Fax) : (0574) 86856783

#R 4% (Zip) : 315800

B EFERITARSEAT

BAZHONG CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

ik U)IE B mEMNX AEEF23S

Add: 23 Xihua Road, Bazhou District, Bazhong City, Sichuan
#iE(Tel) : (0827) 3333655

f£H (Fax) : (0827) 3333155

B4 (Zip) : 636000

BEEFAHERITERSELR

PIXIAN CDB VILLAGE BANK CO., LTD.

it . AR T 0 2 5B 5 A B8 ER699-5 1 B T 1 £ 185

Add: 1-1-18, 669 Dujuan Road, Pitong Town, Pixian County,
Chengdu

#iE(Tel) : (028) 61410770

fZH (Fax) : (028) 61773021

HB % (Zip) : 611730
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Deloitte.
=E)

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants LLP
30/F Bund Center

222 Yan An Road East
Shanghai 200002, PRC

DTT(A)(16)10025

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank Corporation (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 149 to 204 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management of the Bank is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghai, China

29 August 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(All'amounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Interest income 6 503,286 509,168
Interest expense 6 (344,929) (330,478)
Net interest income 6 158,357 178,690
Fee and commission income 7 14,072 14,730
Fee and commission expense 7 (1,119) (792)
Net fee and commission income 7 12,953 13,938
Net trading and foreign exchange gain 8 61,228 16,302
Net gain on financial instruments designated as at fair value through profit or loss 7,284 7,181
Dividend income 9 2,140 1,241
Net gain on investment securities 10 3,438 1,760
Other income, net 11 3,788 3,585
Operating income 249,188 222,697
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 198 76
Operating expenses 12 (39,800) (36,871)
Impairment losses on assets 13 (72,698) (56,365)
Profit before income tax 136,888 129,537
Income tax expense 14 (32,472) (31,333)
Net profit 104,416 98,204

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Bank 103,705 98,100
Non-controlling interests 711 104
104,416 98,204

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(All'lamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Profit for the year 104,416 98,204

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 876 (345)
Net gain/(losses) on available-for-sale financial assets (1,165) 12,952
Others = (22)

(289) 12,585

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation (25) (158)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, net of tax (314) 12,427
Total comprehensive income for the year 104,102 110,631

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Shareholders of the Bank 103,380 108,446
Non-controlling interests 722 2,185
104,102 110,631

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

(All'lamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

ASSETS
Cash and balances with the central bank 15 263,932 57,400
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 16 596,724 1,005,026
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 17 110,976 19,495
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18 681,160 95,795
Derivative financial assets 19 14,180 18,965
Financial assets held under resale agreements 20 1,334,917 1,084,318
Loans and advances to customers, net 21 8,865,360 7,669,351
Available-for-sale financial assets 22 363,793 171,967
Held-to-maturity investments 23 2,398 2,292
Debt securities classified as receivables 24 165,081 19,068
Interest in associates and joint ventures 25 1,680 1,650
Property and equipment 26 62,541 56,146
Deferred tax assets 27 65,719 48,318
Other assets 28 90,561 66,563

TOTAL ASSETS 12,619,022 10,316,354
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

(All'lamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Notes _ 31 December 2014

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 1,505,006 1,408,476
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 30 355,275 451,373
Placements from banks 31 68,965 76,099
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 92,132 8,295
Derivative financial liabilities 19 17,668 9,518
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 32 29,484 28,035
Due to customers 33 1,855,411 1,087,712
Debt securities issued 34 7,301,372 6,353,559
Current tax liabilities 42,642 28,859
Deferred tax liabilities 27 4,469 4,297
Other liabilities 35 276,994 179,967

Total liabilities 11,549,418 9,636,190

Equity

Capital and reserves

Share capital 36 421,248 306,711
Capital reserves 168,969 (9,847)
Investment revaluation reserve 37 15,427 16,587
Surplus reserve 38 80,404 54,434
General reserve 38 147,064 124,740
Currency translation reserve (10) (870)
Retained earnings 39 230,569 175,178
Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 1,063,671 666,933
Non-controlling interests 5,933 13,231
Total equity 1,069,604 680,164
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 12,619,022 10,316,354

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 149 to 204 are signed on its behalf by:

Hu Huaibang Zheng Zhijie Wang Yongsheng Yang Baohua
Chairman Vice Chairman, Executive Vice President, Head of Finance
President in charge of the finance function
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(All'lamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Attributable to shareholders of the Bank

Balance at 1 January 2015 306,711 (9,847) 16,587 54,434 124,740 (870) 175,178 13,231 680,164
Net profit - - - - - - 103,705 711 104,416
Other comprehensive income - (25) (1,160) - - 860 - 1 (314)
Total comprehensive income

for 2015 - (25) (1,160) - - 860 103,705 722 104,102
Issue of new shares/Disposal
of non-controlling interests 114,537 178,841 - - - - - (7,977) 285,401
Dividends 39 - - - - - - (20) (43) (63)
Appropriation to surplus reserve 39 - - - 25,970 - - (25,970) - -
Appropriation to general reserve 39 - - - - 22,324 - (22,324) - -
Balance at 31 December 2015 421,248 168,969 15,427 80,404 147,064 (10) 230,569 5933 1,069,604
Balance at 1 January 2014 306,711 (9,667) 5,720 45,590 97,621 (529) 113,145 2,744 561,235
Net profit - - - - - - 98,100 104 98,204
Other comprehensive income - (180) 10,867 - - (341) - 2,081 12,427
Total comprehensive income

for 2014 - (180) 10,867 - - (341) 98,100 2,185 110,631
Adigi:(r)ensg non-controlling ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 8,407 8,407
Dividends 39 - - - - - - (4) (105) (109)
Appropriation to surplus reserve 39 - - - 8,844 - - (8,844) - -
Appropriation to general reserve 39 - - - - 27,219 - (27,219) - -
Balance at 31 December 2014 306,711 (9,847) 16,587 54,434 124,740 (870) 175,178 13,231 680,164

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(All'lamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax 136,888 129,637

Adjustments:
Impairment losses on assets 72,698 56,365
Depreciation and amortisation 3,383 3,114
Interest expense for debt securities issued 278,728 267,905
Interest expense for borrowings from governments and financial institutions 11,948 12,373
Interest income for investment securities (10,277) (5,796)
Net gain on investment securities (3,438) (1,760)
Net losses/(gain) on disposal of property and equipment and other assets 12 (39)
Dividend income (2,140) (1,241)

Movements in working capital:

Net decrease in balances with the central bank and deposits with banks and

other financial institutions 61,627 43,379

Net increase in financial assets held under resale agreements (250,599) (738,023)

Net increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (580,580) (42,318)

Net increase in loans and advances to customers (1,264,620) (806,529)

Net (increase)/decrease in placements with banks and other financial institutions (23,527) 50,959

Net decrease in other assets 378,336 679,943

Niu;i[;?:|sﬁq;?iti:z;2 customers and deposits from banks and other 864315 1401086

Net increase in placements from banks 15,591 40,483

Net increase in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 1,449 2,945

Net increase in other liabilities 283,993 40,572

Income tax paid (36,135) (34,609)

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities (62,348) 1,098,346
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash paid for purchases of investment securities (1,137,077) (186,414)

Cash received from proceeds from disposal of investment securities 379,077 173,720

Cash received from returns on investment securities 10,540 8,449

Cash paid for purchases of property and equipment and other assets (11,138) (2,255)

Cash received from proceeds from disposal of property and equipment and other assets 3,288 824

Cash paid to other investing activities (3,098) (107)

Net cash outflows from investing activities (758,408) (5,783)
Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from proceeds from debt securities 1,725,757 1,231,372

Cash received from borrowed funds 323,048 36,568

Capital contribution 293,594 8,022

Cash paid for repayments of debt securities and borrowed funds (1,170,360) (754,873)

Cash payment for interest on debt securities and borrowed funds (243,009) (241,597)

Dividends paid to shareholders (20) (4)

Cash paid to other financing activities (296) -

Net cash inflows from financing activities 928,714 279,488

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 10,109 (1,179)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 118,067 1,370,872

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,916,901 546,029

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 40 2,034,968 1,916,901

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(All'lamounts expressed in millions of RMB unless otherwise specified)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank Corporation (the “Bank”) is a joint stock bank
established jointly by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF”) and Central
Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Huijin”). The Bank was formerly known as China
Development Bank, a wholly state-owned policy bank, established on
17 March 1994 in the People’s Republic of China. In accordance with
the Master Implementation Plan for the Joint Stock Reform (the ‘Joint
Stock Reform Plan”) approved by the State Council of the PRC, China
Development Bank was converted into a joint stock corporation on 11
December 2008.

The Bank is licensed (No. B0999H111000001) as a financial institution
by the China Banking Regulatory Commission (the “CBRC”) and is
registered with a business enterprise license (No. 100000000016686)
issued by the State Administration of Industry and Commerce of the

PRC. The Bank is registered and headquartered in Beijing.

The Bank and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) aligns their
business focus with the major medium- and long-term national
economic development strategies and allocates their financing
resources to: support the development and construction programs of
the state in infrastructure, basic industries, pillar industries, and strategic
emerging sectors; help promote economic structural adjustments, new
urbanization, coordinated regional development and industrial upgrade
and transformation; promote inclusive financing, and support projects
that improve the living conditions of the people, including urban renewal
and poverty alleviation; and facilitate international cooperation and
investments, support the implementation of China’s “One Belt, One
Road” and “Go Global” initiatives.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

The Group has adopted the following amendments to IFRSs for the first time effective for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

None of the above amendments to IFRSs, however, have had a material impact on the financial position or performance of the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2015.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 2
Amendments to IFRS 11
Amendments to IFRS 15
Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IFRSs

Financial Instruments®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Leases’

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions®
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations’
Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation'
Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception'

Disclosure Initiative®

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses?

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle'



Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

r

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

w

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

IS

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
with earlier application permitted.

o

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Management anticipate that the adoption of these new and revised
IFRSs but not yet effective will have no material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements, except for the IFRS
9 Financial Instruments, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, and IFRS 16 Leases as described below:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition,
and further amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
hedge accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued
in July 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

* all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are required
to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
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financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

* in relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

* the new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three
types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in IAS
39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

Application of IFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact
on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control” of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15,
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The Group anticipates that the application of IFRS 15 in the future
may impact the amounts reported and disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15
until a detailed review has been completed.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede IAS 17 Leases,
introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under IFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and
a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-
of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies
cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and
an interest portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to be made
in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, I1AS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a
lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently.

The Group anticipates that the application of IFRS 16 in the future
may have a material impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. The significant accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are at fair value. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would

-

take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realizable value in IAS 2 or value in
use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The preparation of financial statements under IFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Bank and entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Bank and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Bank:

* has power over the investee;

* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Bank has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally.

The Bank considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Bank’s voting rights in an investee
are sufficient to give it power, including:

* the size of the Bank’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

* potential voting rights held by the Bank, other vote holders or
other parties;

* rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
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* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Bank has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Bank gains control until
the date when the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Bank.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
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consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS
5. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment
is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint
venture, or when the investment is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with IAS 39. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate or joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate
or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
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or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement of the
previously held interest or the retained interest to fair value upon
such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or
joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business, net of sales
related taxes. Specific recognition criteria for different nature of
revenue are disclosed below.

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial
instruments, except for those classified as held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised
within “Interest income” and “Interest expense” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss using the effective
interest method.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual
basis when the related service has been provided.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of domestic operation is Renminbi
(“RMB”). Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s overseas operations are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The presentation currency of the
Group is RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
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currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gain and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary items denominated in
foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical
cost in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies
are translated using the exchange rates at the date that fair value
is determined. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets classified as available-for-sale are included in other
comprehensive income. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL') are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of

which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from RMB are translated as follows:

* assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position, except the retained earnings,
other items in shareholders’ equity are translated at the rate
prevailing at the date when they occurred:;

* income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are
translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date when
the items occurred; and

 all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before income tax as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that



-

taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they related to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Employee benefits

During the accounting period of employees providing services
to the Group, the Group shall recognise the employee benefits
payable as liabilities, and the employee benefits shall be
recorded into profits and losses for the current period or as cost
of related assets. Payments of social welfare contributions for
employees incurred are recorded into profits and losses for the
current period or recognised as cost of the related assets in
accordance with the actual expenditure. The non-monetary social
welfare expenses are recorded on a fair value basis.

(a) Social welfare

Social welfare expenditure refers to payments for employees’
social welfare system established by the Government, including
social insurance, housing funds and other social welfare
contributions. During the accounting period of employees
providing services to the Group, the Group recognises the
amount shall be deposited as liability and records it into profits
and losses for the current period.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS / 159

(b) Annuity scheme

In addition to the government-sponsored pension plan, the
employees of domestic institutions participate in annuity scheme
set up by the Bank with the approval of the MOF and the record
of the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security. The
Bank made annuity contributions with reference to employees’
salaries, and the contributions are expensed in profit or loss
when incurred.

(c) Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits refer to the expenses on benefits
paid to those employees who have not reached retirement
age but accepted an early retirement arrangement approved
by management of the Bank. Early retirement benefits are
made from the date of early retirement through the normal
retirement date.

The liability related to the early retirement obligations
existing at the end of each reporting period, is calculated by
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method
and is recorded as a liability in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Actuarial gain and losses arising from
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profits
and losses for the current period.

(d) Supplemental retirement benefits

The Group has paid supplemental retirement benefits to retired
employees as of 31 December 2011 whom are out of the annuity
scheme. Supplemental retirement benefits include supplemental
pension income payments and medical expense coverage.

The liability related to the above supplemental benefit obligations
existing at the end of each reporting period, is calculated by
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method and
is recorded as a liability in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Actuarial gain and losses arising from changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position when an entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
including financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale financial assets and loans and receivables.
Investment securities comprise held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale financial assets and debt securities classified as
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at FVTPL

(i)

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
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* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in
the near future; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

* such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from re-measurement recognised directly
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividends or
interest earned on financial assets.

(i) Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
traded in active markets, with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
periods. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated as such or are not
classified in any of the other categories.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends on available-for-
sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established.

(iv) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets excluding those fair valued through profit or
loss is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about the following loss
events:

* significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

* a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

* the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

* the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

* observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the



individual financial assets in the group, including adverse
changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group, a
decrease in property price for the mortgages in the relevant
area or national or local economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on the assets in the group;

* any significant change with an adverse effect that has
taken place in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment in which the issuer operates and indicates that
the cost of investments in equity instruments may not be
recovered;

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of equity
instrument investments; or

other objective evidence indicating impairment of the financial
asset.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

The impairment loss for financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If a loan or held to
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in property prices, payment status, or other factors
indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group
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and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the
Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’'s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account and recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The reversal shall not result in the carrying
amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed.

(i) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If objective evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and is measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. With respect to equity
instruments, such reversals are made through the investment
revaluation reserve within other comprehensive income. If there
is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity investment that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
impairment loss should not be reversed.

(c) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in the Group, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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(1)

(d) Securitisation

As part of its operational activities, the Group makes the financial
asset securitisation through the sale of some financial assets
to a special purpose trust which issue securities to investors.
The Group holds part of the priority and subprime asset-backed
securities ("ABS”), subprime ABS cannot be transferred before
the priority ABS’s principal and interest payment is completed.
As asset servicing provider, the Group provides recovery of the
loan in the asset pool, saving accounts and records relating to
the asset pool, providing service reports and other services.
After payment of tax and related costs, the trust asset should
be used for principal and interest payment of priority ABS first,
the remaining trust asset will settle subprime ABS owned by the
Group and other investors. The Group derecognised or partially
derecognised the financial assets according to extent of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred financial assets
retained in the Group.

Financial liabilities and equity instrument

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into
financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

(a) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

The criteria for a financial liability to be classified as held for
trading and designated as at FVTPL are the same as those for a
financial asset to be classified as held for trading and designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on re-measurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest paid on the
financial liabilities.

(b) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

(c) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(d) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

(12) Derivative financial instruments and embedded derivatives

(13

(14

)

)

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when their characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Determination of fair value

The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. For financial
instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair
values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For financial
instruments traded in inactive markets, fair value is determined
using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted cash
flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of
obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policy.

(15) Offsetting financial instruments

(16

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Repurchase agreements and agreements to resale

Financial assets sold subject to repurchase agreements
continue to be recognised, and are recorded as financial
assets as appropriate. The corresponding liability is included in
“financial assets sold under repurchase agreements”. Financial
assets held under agreements to resell are not recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
corresponding cash paid is recorded as “financial assets held
under resale agreements” as appropriate.



(17)

(18)

(19)

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised
as interest expense or income in profit or loss over the life of the
agreements using the effective interest method.

Property and equipment

The Group’s property and equipment comprise buildings,
office equipment, motor vehicles, aircraft and communication
equipment and construction in progress.

All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write
down the cost of such assets to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Useful lives Residual value Annual depreciation rates
Buildings 20-35 years 0%-5% 2.71%-5%
Office equipment 3-10 years 0%-5% 9.5%-33%
Motor vehicles 4-6 years 0%-5% 16%-25%
Aircraft 156-20 years 3%-15% 4.25%-6.33%

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
category of property and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and losses on disposal of property and equipment are
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents refer to short term highly liquid
assets, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Leases
(a) Lease classification
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the

lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

(b) Finance lease

When the Group is the lessor under a finance lease, the
present value of the aggregation of the minimum lease payment
receivable from the lessee, unguaranteed residual value and
initial direct costs is recognised as a receivable in “Loans and
advances”. The difference between the gross receivable and
the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned
finance income. Unearned finance income is recognised over the
term of the lease using an interest rate which reflects a constant
rate of return. Contingent rentals are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

(c) Operating lease

When the Group is the lessee under an operating lease,
rental expenses are charged in “Operating expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

(20

When the Group is the lessor under operating leases, the assets
subject to the operating leases are still accounted for as the
Group'’s assets. Rental income is recognised as “Other income,
net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss, including computer software and
other intangible assets.

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment. These costs are amortised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives with the
amortisation recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful
lives and amortisation method of intangible assets with finite
useful lives.

(21) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
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unit, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

(22) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

(23)

(24)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount (cash-generating unit), the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when (i) the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation, as a result of past events, (i) it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and (iii) a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where
the effect is material).

Provisions related with financial guarantee contracts are
measured at similar transaction, historical loss experience and
management adjustment.

Hedge accounting

In order to avoid some of the risk, the Group has designated
certain financial instruments as hedging instruments. The Group
uses hedge accounting to process these hedging instruments
which comply with specified conditions. The Group’s hedging
instruments include fair value hedges and cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group

documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk.

(a) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in profit or loss
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged
risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and
the change in the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk
are recognised in profit or loss in the line item relating to the
hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting.

(b) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised
in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the
periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same
line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged
forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial
liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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The following are the critical judgements and key estimation
uncertainty that the management has made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements and/or in the next twelve months.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
periodically, unless circumstances indicate possible impairment
at an interim date. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the Group makes judgements as to whether there is any
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan
in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data
indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment
status of borrowers in a group, or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.
Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence
of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling
its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group determines the impairment of investment securities
according to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The determination of impairment requires a high
degree of judgment on the part of the management. In making
this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost, underlying asset quality of the investee (for
example, delinquency ratio and loss coverage ratio), and the
financial health and near-term business outlook (for example,
industry performance and credit ratings). In determining whether
the previously recognised impairment loss was recovered and
should be reversed, the Group makes judgements as to whether
the decrease of the impairment loss can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating).
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@)

(5)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets is determined by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
discounted cash flow analysis, and other valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants. To the extent practical,
the Group uses only observable market data, however, areas
such as credit risk of the Group and the counterparty, volatilities
and correlations require management to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
estimated fair value of financial instruments.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group’s
management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity as held-to-maturity investments. This classification
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments
to maturity. If the Group fails to hold these investments to
maturity other than for specific circumstances (such as selling
an insignificant amount close to maturity), it will be required to
reclassify the entire portfolio of held-to-maturity investments as
available-for-sale financial assets.

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
makes estimates for items of uncertainty taking into account
existing taxation laws and the responses from the government.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such a determination is made.
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5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank are as follows:

China Development Bank Capital Co., Ltd.  Mainland China RMB51,516 100% directly held Equity investment
China Development Bank Development Fund ~ Mainland China RMB50,000 100% directly held . Non-securiies mvestmeﬁt &

. . . . investment management and advisory
gglnaugevelopment Bank Financial Leasing  \-io1ang China RMB9,500  88.95% directly held Leasing
China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China RMB20,335  100% indirectly held Fund investment & management
China Development Bank Securities Co., Ltd ~ Mainland China RMB7,370 100% directly held Securities brokerage and underwriting
Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kong, China GBP1,584 100% directly held Investment holding

At 31 December 2015, the Bank directly invested in 13 village banks as subsidiaries (31 December 2014: 13 village banks).

6. NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income

Loans and advances to customers 448,153 443,131
Placements with banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under
resale agreements 22,059 28,601
Balances with the central bank and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 22,687 36,551
Investment securities* 10,277 5,796
Others 110 29
Total 503,286 509,168
Interest expense
Debt securities issued (278,728) (267,905)
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions (11,948) (12,373)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (39,680) (38,598)
Due to customers (10,363) (9,963)
Others (4,210) (1,639)
Total (344,929) (330,478)
Net interest income 158,357 178,690
Interest income included:
Identified impaired financial assets 546 339

* Interest income of investment securities includes interest income of available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity investments and
debt securities classified as receivables.

7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income

Fiduciary service fee 4,286 3,803
Guarantee and credit commitment fee 4,211 4,338
Loan arrangement fee 3,601 3,198
Consultancy and advisory fee 359 1,062
Brokerage fee 250 111
Others 1,365 2,218
Total 14,072 14,730
Fee and commission expense
Banking charges (940) (691)
Commission expense (179) (101)
Total (1,119) (792)

Net fee and commission income 12,953 13,938
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8. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN/(LOSSES)

Foreign exchange gain/(losses) 56,335 (4,837)
Net gain on financial assets held-for-trading 2,899 1,258
Net gain on foreign exchange derivatives 1,280 19,125
Net gain on interest rate derivatives 714 747
Net gain on other derivatives = 9
Total 61,228 16,302

9. DIVIDEND INCOME

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss 1,946 981
Available-for-sale equity investments 194 260
Total 2,140 1,241

10. NET GAIN ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 3,438 1,760

Total 3,438 1,760

11.0THER INCOME, NET

Rental income, net 4,652 4,312
Others (864) (727)
Total 3,788 3,585

12.OPERATING EXPENSES

Business tax and surcharges 27,971 25,964
Staff costs 5,499 5,190
Depreciation and amortisation 1,375 1,282
Administration expenses 1,358 1,312
Rental expenses 754 748
Stamp duty and other taxes 666 352
Supervision fee 456 443
Travel expenses 381 378
Service fees 322 430
Others 1,018 772

Total 39,800 36,871
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13.IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON ASSET

Loans and advances to customers 72,569 55,525
Debt securities classified as receivables 134 57
Available-for-sale financial assets 445 42
Other assets (478) 741
Financial assets held under resale agreements 28 -
Total 72,698 56,365

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax 49,918 37,814
Deferred tax (note 27) (17,446) (6,481)
Total 32,472 31,333

The income tax expense can be reconciled to profit per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

Profit before tax 136,888 129,637
Tax calculated at the statutory rate of 25% 34,222 32,384
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries (230) (556)
Non-taxable income (1,948) (1,087)
Deductible temporary differences not recognised 157 51
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purpose and others 271 541
Total 32,472 31,333

15.CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

Cash in hand 33 54
Statutory reserve with the central bank 872 1,081
Balances with the central bank, other than statutory reserve and others 263,027 56,265
Total 263,932 57,400

16.DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Deposits with:

Domestic banks 414,923 892,976
Other domestic financial institutions 1,078 454
Overseas banks 180,718 111,596
Other overseas financial institutions ® -
Total 596,724 1,005,026

At 31 December 2015, the restricted deposits with banks and other financial institutions of the Group was amounting to RMB1,980 million (31
December 2014: RMB1,490 million), mainly guarantee deposits.
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17.PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Placements with:

Domestic banks 91,524 14,922
Other domestic financial institutions 14,000 1,528
Overseas banks 5,452 3,045
Total 110,976 19,495

18.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets held-for-trading

Government and quasi-government bonds 9,870 6,489
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 3,795 -
Corporate bonds 65,153 27,915
Stock and fund 1,767 3,832
Other bonds 200 296
Interbank certificate of deposit 446 146
Subtotal 81,231 38,678

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Equity investments 501,103 45,806
Asset management plans 93,670 8,295
Bank wealth management products and others 5,156 3,016
Subtotal 599,929 57,117
Total 681,160 95,795

19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The fair values of derivative instruments become
favorable (assets) or unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of market fluctuations and foreign exchange rate movements relative to their terms.
The aggregated contractual or notional amounts of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments are favorable
or unfavorable, and thus the aggregated fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate from time to time. The table
below provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amount and the fair values of the Group's derivative financial instruments
outstanding at the balance sheet date.

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 944,844 4,968 (9,971) 974,569 10,298 (2,190)
Other currency derivatives 183,444 92 (57) 201,046 432 (172)
Subtotal 1,128,288 5,060 (10,028) 1,175,615 10,730 (2,362)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 602,870 8,750 (7,270) 542,000 7,814 (6,735)
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31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Interest rate options 11,882 370 (370) 12,042 421 (421)

Subtotal 614,752 9,120 (7,640) 554,042 8,235 (7,156)

Other derivatives = - - _ - _

Total 1,743,040 14180 _ (17,668) 1729657 18,965 (9,518)

Hedge accounting

The Group’s hedging instruments included in above derivative financial instruments are set out below:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Fair value hedges instruments

Interest rate swaps 24,943 1,033 (87) 18,110 928 (151)

Cash flow hedges instruments

Interest rate swaps 5,401 1 (44) 6,476 10 (41)
Other currency derivatives 2,403 - (106) - - -
Total 32,747 1,034 (237) 24,586 938 (192)

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against changes in fair value arising from changes in interest rates of the negotiable
certificates of deposit issued by the Hong Kong branch.

The effectiveness of hedging accounting reflected through changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument and net gain and loss of the
hedged item due to hedging risk are set out below:

Net gain/(loss)

- Hedging instruments 113 1,085
- Hedged item 139 (983)
Total 252 102

At 31 December 2015, the gain and loss of the ineffective hedging portion recognised by the Group in fair value change was insignificant.

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability primarily from interest rate risk of the variable
rate borrowings of leasing business with other banks.

At 31 December 2015, the Group recognised a loss from fair value changes of cash flow hedging instrument of RMB149 million through other
comprehensive income, which was expected to be recognised in profit or loss from 2016 to 2024.

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

Analysed by type of collateral:

Securities 1,334,917 1,084,318




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS / 171

21.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS, NET

The composition of loans and advance to customers is as follows:

Loans and advances to customers

- Loans to customers 9,120,754 7,862,880
- Finance lease receivable 85,164 78,749
- Others 1,031 13
9,206,949 7,941,642

Less: Allowance for impairment losses
— Individually assessed (45,506) (29,299)
- Collectively assessed (296,083) (242,992)
(341,589) (272,291)
Loans and advances to customers, net 8,865,360 7,669,351

Included:

Finance lease receivable pledged as collateral 13,081 12,290

Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

2015 2014

At 1 January 29,299 242,992 272,291 14,475 203,838 218,313
Net charge for the year 22,775 49,794 72,569 16,127 39,398 55,625
Transfer-in 2 5 7 - 12 12
Write-off (6,719) (28) (6,747) (759) - (759)
Recovery of loans written off - - - - - -
Unwinding of discount on allowance (454) - (454) (280) - (280)
Foreign exchange differences 603 3,320 3,923 (264) (256) (520)
At 31 December 45,506 296,083 341,589 29,299 242,992 272,291

The past due loans and advance to customers by collateral types are set out below:

Past due

31 December 2015

Unsecured loans 566 653 668 152 2,039
Guaranteed loans 4,190 6,461 5,128 35 15,814
Loans secured by mortgage 2,095 10,688 7,982 64 20,829
Pledged loans 823 4,363 11,100 102 16,388
Total 7,674 22,165 24,878 353 55,070

31 December 2014

Unsecured loans 921 109 409 2 1,441
Guaranteed loans 1,008 2,142 1,632 909 5,691
Loans secured by mortgage 5,755 3,287 3,397 961 13,400
Pledged loans 983 9,834 3,825 1,015 15,657
Total 8,667 15,372 9,263 2,887 36,189

The loans and advances to customers are classified as past-due if the principal or the interest is past due. For the installment repayment loans
and advances to customers, if partial installment repayment is past due, the total balance of the loans and advances is classified as past-due.
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22.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 144,630 98,596
Financial institutions 4,009 3,859
Corporations 89,397 38,385
Others 169 102
Subtotal 238,205 140,942

Equity instruments

at fair value 22,340 24,571
Interbank certificate of deposit 103,248 6,454
Total 363,793 171,967

At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets included allowance for impairment losses of RMB18,014 million
(31 December 2014: RMB18,624 million).

23.HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Debt securities issued by:

Corporations 1,999 1,999
Financial institutions 399 293
Total 2,398 2,292

24.DEBT SECURITIES CLASSIFIED AS RECEIVABLES

The government and quasi-government agency bonds 149,299 -
Debt securities issued by financial institution 5,035 4,675
Corporate bonds 274 1,197
Other bonds 2,831 7,212
Wealth management products and others 7,985 6,248
Subtotal 165,424 19,332
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (343) (264)
Total 165,081 19,068

25.INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of interest in associates and joint ventures is as follows:

Investment cost 1,680 1,650

Less: Allowance for impairment losses = -

Interest in associates and joint ventures 1,680 1,650
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Movements of interest in associates and joint ventures are set out below:

At 1 January 1,650 1,597
Addition 43 53
Disposal (13) -
At 31 December 1,680 1,650

Particulars of the principal associates and joint ventures of the Group are as follows:

Land and infrastructure

Tianjin Eco-City Investment & Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB3,000 20% indirectly held 20%
development
CDB Jintai Capital Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB1 250 40% indirectly held 40% Investment managerment
and advisory
Manufacture of
Beijing Far East Instrument Company Ltd. Mainland China USD34 25% indirectly held 25% electronic and electrical
instruments
China-Africa Xinyin Investment Management Co., Lid. ~ Mainland China RMB200 35% indirectly held 35% imvestment in nopferrgus
metals in Africa
Longgang Guoan Rural Bank Co., Ltd. Shenzhen ~ Mainland China RMB200 35% directly held 35% Banking
Huaxin Investment Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB120 45% indirectly held 45% Investment management
and advisory
26.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The net book value of property and equipment consisted of the following:
Cost
At 1 January 2015 18,895 2,453 320 41,401 2,767 65,836
Additions 188 818 839 7,939 1,779 11,118
Transfer 116 - - - (116) -
Disposals (770) (130) (20) (555) (5) (1,480)
At 31 December 2015 18,429 2,696 1,139 48,785 4,425 75,474
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015 (2,307) (1,106) (227) (6,050) - (9,690)
Additions (785) (371) (71) (2,291) - (3,518)
Disposals 160 78 14 23 - 275
At 31 December 2015 (2,932) (1,399) (284) (8,318) - (12,933)
Net book value
At 31 December 2015 15,497 1,297 855 40,467 4,425 62,541

At 1 January 2015 16,588 1,347 93 35,351 2,767 56,146
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Cost

At 1 January 2014 16,870 1,510 329 36,391 2,653 57,753
Additions 525 1,012 5 5,745 1,642 8,929
Transfer 1,514 - - - (1,514) -
Disposals (14) (69) (14) (735) (14) (846)
At 31 December 2014 18,895 2,453 320 41,401 2,767 65,836

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2014 (1,716) (736) (176) (4,375) - (7,0083)
Additions (591) (391) (60) (1,821) - (2,863)
Disposals - 21 9 146 - 176
At 31 December 2014 (2,307) (1,106) (227) (6,050) - (9,690)

Net book value

At 31 December 2014 16,588 1,347 93 35,351 2,767 56,146

At 1 January 2014 15,154 774 153 32,016 2,653 50,750

27.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets 65,719 48,318
Deferred tax liabilities (4,469) (4,297)
Total 61,250 44,021

(1) The movements of the deferred income tax asset and liability are as follows:

At 1 January 44,021 40,613
Credit to profit or loss 17,446 6,481
Charge to other comprehensive income (217) (3,782)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 709
At 31 December 61,250 44,021

(2) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for impaired loans 241,699 60,425 181,474 45,368
Allowance for impaired available-for-sale financial assets 16,652 4,163 16,796 4,199
Fair value changes of financial assets at fair value through
) 3,913 978 (8,473) (2,118)
profit or loss
Provision for losses 3,064 766 2,954 738
Allowance for other impaired assets 1,810 452 1,443 361

Others 1,726 431 1,674 429
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31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (5,986) (1,496) (2,637) (659)
Total 262,878 65,719 193,231 48,318
Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (10,818) (2,704) (13,061) (3,265)

Fair value changes of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (6,585) (1,570) (5,745) (1,129)
Others (1,801) (195) (288) 97
Total (19,204) (4,469) (19,094) (4,297)

28.0THER ASSETS

Interest receivable 33,215 30,757
Prepayment for bond redemption 21,689 -
Prepayment for leasing equipment 13,112 14,183
Prepayment to vendors 7,392 5,650
Land use rights 1,938 2,106
Goodwill (1) 1,250 1,246
Security trading deposits 1,071 774
Other intangible assets 644 580
Investment property 514 108
Prepayment for equity investment 167 301
Deferred assets 152 104
Continuing involvement assets of loan-based securitisation 85 703
Others 9,840 11,001
Total 91,019 67,513
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (458) (950)
Other assets, net 90,561 66,563

(1) The goodwill is mainly attributable to China Development Bank Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. and China Development Bank Securities
Co., Ltd. At 31 December 2015, the goodwill attributable to China Development Bank Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. and China
Development Bank Securities Co., Ltd. was RMB560 million and RMB629 million respectively. At the end of 2015, the Group
performed goodwill impairment test based on cashflow forecast of subsidiaries. No impairment losses on goodwill were recognised.

29.DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Deposits from:

Domestic banks 1,298,330 1,227,447
Other domestic financial institutions 140,437 115,117
Overseas banks 66,239 65,912

Total 1,505,006 1,408,476
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30.BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Borrowings from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 327,548 427,260
Foreign banks and other financial institutions 19,436 14,108
Foreign banks — import credit 6,317 7,917
Foreign governments 1,974 2,088
Total 355,275 451,373

31.PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

Placements from:

Overseas banks 54,131 41,115
Domestic banks 14,834 34,984
Total 68,965 76,099

32.FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Analysed by type of collateral:

Securities 17,342 20,611
Finance lease receivable 5,922 5,512
Bond yield rights 6,220 1,912
Total 29,484 28,035

33.DUE TO CUSTOMERS

Demand deposits 1,586,188 841,501
Term deposits 118,279 125,510
Guarantee deposits 6,976 13,371
Certificates of deposit issued in Hong Kong 143,968 107,330
Total 1,855,411 1,087,712

34.DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

Debt securities issued (1) 7,212,700 6,245,014
Subordinated bonds issued (2) 76,710 96,587
Tier-two capital debt issued (3) 11,962 11,958

Total 7,301,372 6,353,559
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(1) Debt securities issued

31 December 2015

RMB bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2015 2016-2065 1.83~5.90 6,563,587
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2014 2017-2032 3.30~4.50 10,716
Foreign currency bonds issued in domestic market 2013-2015 2018 1.33~1.60 18,569
Foreign currency bonds issued in overseas market 2014-2015 2016-2020 0.88~2.50 10,953
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015 2020-2035 3.05~4.06 586,983
Debt securities issued by the Bank 7,190,808
Add: USD bills issued by subsidiary 2012-2014 2017-2024 2.15-4.25 13,835

RMB bonds issued by subsidiary 2014-2015 2016-2020 3.20-6.05 8,265
Less: Debt securities purchased by subsidiaries (208)
Debt securities issued by the Group 7,212,700

31 December 2014

RMB bonds issued in domestic market 2001-2014 2015-2063 2.62-5.90 6,201,462
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2014 2015-2032 2.95-4.50 14,975
Foreign currency bonds issued in domestic market 2013 2018 1.48 5277
Foreign currency bonds issued in overseas market 2005-2014 2015-2017 0.51-5.00 7,890
Debt securities issued by the Bank 6,229,604
Add: USD bills issued by subsidiary 2012-2014 2017-2024 2.50-4.25 13,017

RMB bonds issued by subsidiary 2014 2019 6.05 2,487
Less: Debt securities purchased by subsidiaries (94)
Debt securities issued by the Group 6,245,014

At 31 December 2015, RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market amounted to RMB39,200 million (31 December 2014: RMB61,200
million). The bond holders could convert part or all of securities at face value to the certain securities specified in the issuance documents

on the arranged date or within the valid term with the same effective date and maturity.

(2) Subordinated bonds issued

31 December 2015

RMB subordinated bonds issued in domestic market 2009-2012 2021-2062 3.15~6.05 76,710

31 December 2014

RMB subordinated bonds issued in domestic market 2005-2012 2020-2062 3.82-6.05 96,587

Subordinated debts have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its
redemption option on a specified date, it is obligated to pay higher interest rates on the debts.

(3) Tier-two capital debt issued

31 December 2015

RMB tier-two capital debt issued in domestic market 2014 2024 5.3 11,962

31 December 2014

RMB tier-two capital debt issued in domestic market 2014 2024 5.3 11,958

Tier-two capital debt have provision which allow the bank to redeem it prior to maturity and no interest rate reset is required.
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35.0THER LIABILITIES

Interest payable 143,571 133,665
Deferred government subsidies for education loans 11,850 9,594
Business tax and surcharges payable 6,244 7,194
Lease security deposit 5,166 4,722
Continuing involvement liabilities of loan-based securitisation & 703
Provision for losses on financial guarantees 2,619 2,578
Payable for security purchases on behalf of customers 2,054 1,471
Accrued staff cost 1,718 1,619
Purchase payable to leasing equipment vendor 1,070 1,478
Payable to fiduciary business customers 281 287
Advance received for fee and commission 2,723 891
Others 99,663 15,765
Total 276,994 179,967

36.SHARE CAPITAL

The MOF 153,908 153,908
Huijin 146,092 146,092
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. 114,537 -
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711 6,711
Total 421,248 306,711

On 15 July 2015, China Foreign Exchange Reserves injected capital USD48,000 million as capital to the Bank through its investment platform
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. and held 114,536,955,987 shares of the bank. The total number of shares of the Bank increased
from 306,711,409,395 to 421,248,365,382.

37.INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

At 1 January 16,587 5,720
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 1,378 11,562
Net gain reclassified to profit or loss on disposal (2,538) (695)
At 31 December 15,427 16,587

38.RESERVES
(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of net profit, as reported in its statutory financial
statements, to statutory surplus reserve. When statutory surplus reserve accounts for more than 50% of the Bank's capital, the Bank would
not be required to further appropriate statutory surplus reserve. Upon approval from Shareholders’ General Meeting, the statutory surplus
reserve appropriated by the Bank can be used to supplement any losses of the Bank or to contribute to the Bank's capital, with the
remaining balance being no less than 25% of share capital. In addition, the Bank appropriates general surplus reserve as approved in the
Shareholders’ General Meeting.

(2) General reserve

The Bank 144,256 122,119

Subsidiaries 2,808 2,621

Total 147,064 124,740
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Pursuant to circulars issued by the MOF in 2012, the Bank is required to maintain adequate reserves for unforeseeable risks and future
losses. Therefore, a general banking reserve has been established by the Bank through appropriation from retained earnings. In principle,
the general banking reserve balance should not be lower than 1.5% of the ending balance of gross risk-bearing assets at year end, and
should be set aside within a transitional period of five years.

Pursuant to the relevant regulatory requirements in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate certain amounts of its
net profit as general reserve.

39.RETAINED EARNINGS

At 1 January 175,178 113,145
Add: Net profit 103,705 98,100
Less: Appropriation to surplus reserve (25,970) (8,844)
Appropriation to general reserve (22,324) (27,219)
Dividends (20) (4)
At 31 December 230,569 175,178

40.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:

Cash 33 54

Disposable balances with the central bank 263,027 56,265

Balances with an original maturity of less than three months:

- Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,226,162 1,057,196
- Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 436,343 782,592
- Placements with banks and other financial institutions 89,976 18,995
- Government bonds 18,384 1,025
Security trading deposits 1,043 774
Total 2,034,968 1,916,901

41.INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

Unconsolidated structured entities of the Group include non-principal guaranteed wealth management products, ABS, asset management
plans and fund investment, which were issued or established for providing a wide range of wealth management services for investors. At the
same time, the Group holds interests in some structured entities, which are recognised as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale financial assets and debt securities classified as receivables. There was no plan of providing financial or other support by the
Group to these unconsolidated structured entities.

At the balance sheet date, unconsolidated structured entities set up by the Group and the interests of the Group in these structured entities are
as follows:

31 December 2015

Non-principal guaranteed wealth management 76,879 = = 742 Fee income

ABS 177,772 3,200 3,200 i eelieempart
Interest income

Asset management plans 144,075 1,559 1,559 150 Fee income

Fee income and

Fund investment 46,144 5,004 5,004 665 .
Interest income

Total 444,870 9,763 9,763 1,708
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31 December 2014

Non-principal guaranteed wealth management 91,502 - - 625 Fee income

ABS 111,475 7,581 7,581 115 Feeincomeand
Interest income

Asset management plans 36,997 - - 40 Fee income

Fund investment 10,144 1,130 1,130 g5 eeincome and
Interest income

Total 250,118 8,711 8,711 875

At the balance sheet date, interest held by the Group in structured entities issued by other institutions are as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 97,267 11,191
Debt securities classified as receivables 7,617 6,231
Total 104,884 17,422

42. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group derecognized, partially derecognized or did not derecognize the financial assets according to extent of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred financial assets retained in the Group in securitisation transactions. At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of
securitized credit assets before transfer was RMB177,772 million (31 December 2014: RMB111,475 million).

For the part of transferred assets which are derecognized, the Group continues to recognise the transferred assets to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. The net carrying amount of the transferred assets and associated liabilities
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

31 December 2015 2015

Interest in SPE 88 35 35 35 35 - 15

31 December 2014 2014

Interest in SPE 703 703 703 703 703 - 14

The Group invests in ABS with underlying credit assets of the Group, which are recognised as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, available-for-sale financial assets and debt securities classified as receivables according to the different nature of the investment.

31 December 2015 2015

ABS 3,201 3,180 3,201 = 151
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31 December 2014 2014
. Maximum Gain or loss Income
Carrying . . .
Fair value exposure  recognised at recognised
amount ;
to loss transfer date in year
ABS 7,581 7,572 7,581 - 115

43. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Segment information is presented on the
same basis as the Group’s management and internal reporting.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated
in head office. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating segment performance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating segments: banking, equity investment, leasing and securities.

The Group’s main operating segments are set out below:

(1) Banking operations
This segment consists of corporate banking, debt issuance and treasury operations. The corporate banking operations consist of lending,
deposits, agency services, consulting and advisory services, cash management, remittance and settlement, custody and guarantee
services. Debt issuance is the main source of funding to corporate banking operations. The treasury operations consist of money market
transactions, foreign exchange transactions, bond market transactions, customer-based interest rate and foreign exchange derivative
transactions and asset and liability management.

(2) Equity investment
This segment consists of equity investment activities.

(3) Leasing operations
This segment consists of finance lease and operating lease business.

(4) Securities operations
This segment consists of security brokerage, proprietary trading and underwriting operations.

Interest income 494,429 1,896 6,143 511 307 503,286
Interest expense (337,479) (1,136) (5,055) (1,0863) (196) (344,929)
Net interest income 156,950 760 1,088 (552) 111 158,357
Include: Net interest income from customers 156,497 1,009 1,403 (552) - 158,357
Int(eer;(s‘;ee%rsneesr;t net interest income/ 453 (249) (315) B 111 a
Net fee and commission income 12,118 215 (56) 723 (47) 12,953
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 12,046 216 (34) 725 - 12,953
Inter-segment net fee and commission 72 (1) (22) 2) (47) -
Other income/(expense), net 65,478 8,037 2,741 1,844 (24) 78,076
Op;esrsaéitr;g expenses and Impairment losses on (107,741) (1,474) (2,474) 717) 92) (112,498)
Profit before income tax 126,805 7,538 1,299 1,298 (52) 136,888
Other information:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,228 62 2,035 58 - 3,383
Capital expenditure 2,386 24 8,938 113 - 11,461
Impairment losses on assets 70,277 581 2,008 31 (199) 72,698
31 December 2015
Total assets 12,366,900 734,955 155,695 45,654 (684,182) 12,619,022
Total liabilities 11,337,426 61,999 140,702 35,146 (25,855) 11,549,418
2015
Total net income from external customers*
Mainland China 119,355 1,196 1,671 173 - 122,395
Hong Kong 51 37 407 - - 495
Other countries/jurisdictions 49,137 (8) (709) - - 48,420

Total 168,543 1,225 1,369 173 = 171,310
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31 December 2015

Non- current assets**

Mainland China 22,088 6,082 4,768 810 - 33,748
Hong Kong 46 62 - - - 108
Other countries/jurisdictions - - 38,897 - - 38,897
Total 22,134 6,144 43,665 810 - 72,753
Interest in associates and joint ventures
Mainland China 115 1,500 - 2 = 1,617
Hong Kong = 63 = = = 63
Other countries/jurisdictions - - - - - -
Total 115 1,563 - 2 - 1,680
Interest income 500,275 1,222 7,203 253 215 509,168
Interest expense (323,100) (806) (6,036) (479) (57) (330,478)
Net interest income 177,175 416 1,167 (226) 158 178,690
Include: Net interest income from customers 177,845 418 653 (226) - 178,690
Inter-segment net interest income/ (670) @ 514 B 158 B
(expenses)
Net fee and commission income 13,172 283 (78) 693 (132) 13,938
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 13,086 283 (130) 699 - 13,938
Inter-segment net fee and commission 86 - 52 (6) (132) -
Other income/(expense), net 17,113 9,460 2,547 1,061 (36) 30,145
Opaesrsaetitr;g expenses and Impairment losses on (89,694) (1758) (1.257) (572) 45 (93,236)
Profit before income tax 117,766 8,401 2,379 956 35 129,637
Other information:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,143 77 1,860 34 - 3,114
Capital expenditure 2,597 135 6,789 33 - 9,554
Impairment losses on assets 54,762 848 798 - (43) 56,365
31 December 2014
Total assets 10,103,950 114,019 140,366 28,577 (70,558) 10,316,354
Total liabilities 9,466,468 26,730 126,356 19,300 (2,664) 9,636,190
2014
Total net income from external customers*
Mainland China 147,271 590 793 473 - 149,127
Hong Kong 126 184 361 - - 671
Other countries/jurisdictions 43,534 (73) (631) - - 42,830
Total 190,931 701 523 473 - 192,628

31 December 2014

Non-current assets**

Mainland China 22,718 5,578 11,700 116 - 40,112
Hong Kong 47 59 - - - 106
Other countries/jurisdictions - - 25,397 - - 25,397
Total 22,765 5,637 37,097 116 - 65,615
Interest in associates and joint ventures

Mainland China 114 1,531 - - - 1,645
Other countries/jurisdictions - 5 - - - 5
Total 114 1,536 - - - 1,650

*  Total net income from customers is generated from outside the Group, including net interest income, net fee and commission income
from customers.
** Non-current assets include property and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and other assets.
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44. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial or operational decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.

(1) Ministry of Finance
At 31 December 2015, the MOF owned a 36.54% of the issued share capital of the Bank (31 December 2014: 50.18%).

The Group enters into transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury
bonds. Details of transactions with the MOF are as follows:

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 89,920 40,281

Interest rate range (%)

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 2.16-4.47 2.38-4.47

Interest income 1,535 988

Fee and commission income 52 18

Net trading gain 67 22
(2) Huijin

Huijin is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, with a registered capital of RMB828,209 million in Beijing. Its principal
activities are equity investments as authorised by the State Council without engaging in other commercial operations. Huijin exercises the
rights and fulfills the obligations as an investor of the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government.

At 31 December 2015, Huijin owned a 34.68% of the issued share capital of the Bank (31 December 2014: 47.63%).

Transaction between the Group and Huijin are carried out in ordinary course of business. Details of investment in bonds issued by Huijin
are as follows:

Available-for-sale financial assets 6,039 7,623

Interest rate range (%) 3.16-4.2 3.14-4.2

Interest income 249 268
Fee and commission income 11 -
Net Trading Gain 1 -

(3) Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd.
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. is a wholly owned subsidiary of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange. Its
principal activities are domestic and overseas investments in project, equity, debt, loan and fund, fiduciary management and investment
management.

At 31 December 2015, Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. owned a 27.19% of the issued share capital of the Bank (31
December 2014: 0%).



184 / NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(4) Transaction with subsidiaries

Included in the following captions of the Bank’s statement of financial position are balances with subsidiaries.

Loans and advances to customers, net 20,911 9,736
Due to customers 3,129 2,626
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 1,261 1,582
Derivative financial assets 287 356
Debt securities issued 208 94
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 31 -

Other assets

- Interest receivable 35 54

- Other receivables 3,013 29
Other liabilities

- Interest payable 15 12

Included in the following captions of the Bank’s statement of profit or loss are transactions with subsidiaries.

Interest income 611 511
Interest expense (53) (38)
Fee and commission income 45 121
Fee and commission expense (52) (28)

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are carried out on general commercial terms in ordinary course of business. All
transactions or balances with subsidiaries are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

—
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Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions between the Bank and its associates and joint ventures are carried out on general commercial terms in ordinary course of
business. The Group’s transactions and balances with associates and joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2015 were
insignificant.

o
(=2}
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Transactions with other government-related entities

Management considers that transactions with other government related entities are activities conducted in the ordinary course of business,
and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and those entities are
government related. The Group has also established pricing policies for products and services and such pricing policies do not depend on
whether or not the customers are government related entities.

45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(1) Legal proceedings

At 31 December 2015, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business operations. After consulting legal
professionals, management of the Group believes that the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material impact on the
financial position and operating result of the Group.

(2) Capital commitments

Capital commitment in respect of equity investments

— authorised but not contracted for 7,602 5,026

- contracted but not provided for 56,378 54,502

Capital commitment in respect of property and equipment

- authorised but not contracted for 8 6

- contracted but not provided for 40,939 44,979

Total 104,922 104,513




(3) Credit commitments
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Loan commitments 3,097,207 2,951,784
Letters of guarantee issued 76,777 78,991
Bank bill acceptance 31,411 36,816
Letters of credit issued 11,752 21,770
Total 3,217,147 3,089,361

(4) Operating lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group as lessee has the following non-cancelable operating lease commitments:

Within one year 518 505
After one year but within two years 243 289
After two years but within three years 124 146
After three years 305 296
Total 1,187 1,236

(5) Finance lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group as lessor has the following non-cancelable finance lease commitments:

Contractual amount

1,990 A7

(6) Collateral
(a) Assets pledged

The carrying amount of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreement at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

Securities 21,710 22,763
Finance lease receivable 10,487 8,633
Placement notes 5,449 2,205
Total 37,646 33,601

At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB29,484
million (2014: RMB28,035 million). All repurchase agreements are
due within 5 years from the effective date of these agreements.

(b) Collateral accepted

The Group has no cash and securities received as collateral can
be resold or repledged in connection with purchase of assets
under resale agreements and security lending business at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

2

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(1) Strategies adopted in managing financial risks
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, identification, monitoring
and reporting of some degree of risk or combination of risks.

Taking risk is core to the financial business of the Group,
and operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being
in business. The Group’s aim is, therefore, to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group raises funds primarily through the issuance of debts
with different maturities at both fixed and floating rates, and
seeks to earn interest margins by investing these funds in State
medium- to long-term lending projects in infrastructure sectors,
basic industries and pillar industries. With the basic saving
and lending interest rate regulated by the central bank, and
debt issuing rates fluctuating, the Group seeks to increase its
net interest margins by issuing different varieties of bonds and
reducing its cost of funding to the extent possible.

The Group carries out a range of vanilla derivative financial
instruments transactions, including currency forward, currency
and interest rate swaps, interest rate floor options to meet the
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needs of risk management as well as the needs of its customers.
The Group's risk management policies are designed to identify
and analyse risk, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable
and up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews
its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes
in markets, products and emerging best practice. The most
important types of financial risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk.

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which is the risk that a
customer or counterparty will cause a financial loss for the Group
by failing to discharge an obligation or falling in its credit rating.
Credit risk is the most important risk for the Group’s business,
management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit
risk. Credit exposures arise principally in lending activities that
lead to loans and advances, and investment activities that bring
debt securities and derivatives into the Group’s asset portfolio.
There is also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial instruments,
such as loan commitments and financial guarantees.

Following the internal credit rating directives and guidelines
issued by the CBRC, and considering its unique business
features, the Group establishes a credit rating framework
including credit rating methodologies, policies, procedures,
control management, data collection and IT supporting. This
is a two dimensional risk rating framework that assesses both
customer credit rating based on the probability of default and the
project credit rating based on the estimated loss given default.
To ensure the accuracy and completeness of rating results, the
Group also established internal guidelines for country rating,
sovereign rating, local government rating, district rating and
industry rating.

In 2015, there is no material change to the Group's risk
management strategy and approach.

(a) Credit risk measurement
(i) Loans and advances

The Group measures and manages the credit quality of loans and
advances based on the “Guiding Principles on the Classification
of Loan Risk Management” issued by the CBRC, which requires
banks to classify loans into the following five grades: “pass”,
“special-mention”, “substandard”, “doubtful” and “loss”, among
which loans classified in the “substandard”, “doubtful” and “loss”

grades are regarded as non-performing loans.

* “pass”: Borrowers can honour the terms of their loans. There
is no reason to doubt their ability to repay principal and
interest in full on a timely basis.

* “special-mention”: Borrowers are able to service their loans
currently, although repayment may be adversely affected by
specific factors.

“substandard”: Borrowers’ abilities to service their loans are
in question as they cannot rely entirely on normal business
revenue to repay principal and interest. Losses may occur
even when collateral or guarantees are invoked.

“doubtful”: Borrowers cannot repay principal and interest in
full and significant losses will need to be recognised even
when collateral or guarantees are invoked.

“loss”: Only a small portion or no principal and interest can be
recovered after taking all possible measures and exhausting
all legal remedies.

The Group uses risk based methodology to evaluate the quality
of loan assets. The classification methodology takes into
consideration of different factors including core definition, credit
rating and significant events. The classification is a leverage of
quantitative and qualitative factors, including various financial
factors, non-financial factors, industrial and regional differences,
as well as the Bank's management ability. The Group reviews
its credit assets on a timely basis, and such assets are
centrally monitored by the Loan Management Department and
International Financial Department, and reported to management
for approval.

(i) Debt securities and derivatives

For debt securities, the Group manages the credit risk exposure
by using its internal rating system, and also taking external
ratings such as Standard & Poor’s rating or their equivalents into
account. Investments in debt securities are viewed as a way to
gain a better credit quality mapping and, at the same time, to
maintain a readily available source of funding to meet funding
requirements. The derivative credit risk exposure is managed as
part of the overall lending limits set for customers.

(i) Loan commitments, letters of guarantee issued, letters of
credit issued and bank bill acceptance

For loan commitments, letters of guarantee issued, letters of
credit issued and bank bill acceptance, the Group generally
manages the credit risk using the five-grade system and its
internal credit rating system in the same way as it manages loans
and advances.

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages limits and controls concentrations of credit risk
wherever they are identifiable, in particular, to individual counterparties
and groups, and to industries and geographical regions.

The Group has processed in place the credit limit management
framework to assess the levels of credit risk it undertakes in relation
to single borrowers and group clients, to allocate the economic
capital for industries and branches, and also to set the appropriate
credit limit by country. Such risks are monitored periodically and are
subject to review at the Governors’ Meeting of Risk Management.

The exposure to any one customer is further restricted by sub-limits
covering on and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk
limits in relation to the trading and non-trading portfolio of treasury
business. Actual exposures are monitored against limits regularly.

To manage its credit risk, the Group applies rigorous underwriting
procedures to each loan application and has developed a disciplined
credit risk management process. Exposure to credit risk is managed
through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential
borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations.
Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral
and guarantees.

Other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.

(i) Collateral

The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate
credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of collateral
for advances, which is common practice. The Group has
implemented guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral or credit risk mitigation, and reviews the valuation of
collateral periodically.



The principal collateral types are charges over rights and
business assets such as toll collection rights, real estate, land
use rights, equity securities, cash deposits and machinery.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans
and advances is determined by the nature of the instrument.
Debt securities are generally unsecured with the exception
of asset backed securities and similar instruments, which are
secured by pools of financial assets.

(i) Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and letters
of credit, which represent irrevocable assurance that the Group
will make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its
obligations to third parties, carry the same credit risk as loans.
In some cases, guarantee deposits are received by the Group to
lessen the credit risks related to certain of these commitments
provided by the Group. The guarantee deposit which is a certain
percentage of the notional amount of the guarantee and letters
of credit and other credit related commitments is determined by
the creditworthiness of the customer.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, bank bill
acceptance, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit
risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is potentially
exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the
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total unused commitments since most commitments to extend
credit are contingent upon customers maintaining their level
of creditworthiness. The Group monitors the term to maturity
of credit commitments because longer-term commitments
generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term
commitments.

(c) Impairment and provisioning policies

The impairment allowance shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position at year end is derived from asset
quality grading mentioned in Note 46.(2)(a)(i), which assists
management to determine whether objective evidence of
impairment exists under IAS 39, based on the principles set out
in Note 3.(10)(b).

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial
assets that are above materiality thresholds at least quarterly
or more regularly when individual circumstances require.
Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are
determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance-
sheet date on a case-by-case basis and are applied to all
individually significant accounts. The assessment normally
encompasses collateral held and the anticipated receipts for that
individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for:
(i) portfolios of assets that are individually below materiality
thresholds; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not
yet been identified, by using the available historical experience,
experienced judgment and statistical techniques.

(d) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets are as follows:

Balances with the central bank 263,899 57,346
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 596,724 1,005,026
Placements with banks and other financial statements 110,976 19,495
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 178,290 46,157
Derivative financial assets 14,180 18,965
Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,334,917 1,084,318
Loans and advances to customers, net 8,865,360 7,669,351
Available-for-sale financial assets 341,453 147,396
Held-to-maturity investments 2,398 2,292
Debt securities classified as receivables 165,081 19,068
Other financial assets 72,324 54,785
Subtotal 11,945,602 10,124,199
Credit risk exposures relating to credit commitments are as follows:

Loan commitments 3,097,207 2,951,784
Letters of guarantee issued 76,777 78,991
Bank bill acceptance 31,411 36,816
Letters of credit issued 11,752 21,770
Subtotal 3,217,147 3,089,361
Total 15,162,749 13,213,560

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Group at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures set out
above are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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(e) Loans and advances to customers

The gross amount of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturity is as follows:

At 31 December 2015

Unsecured loans 193,853 406,155 1,569,020 2,169,028
Guaranteed loans 135,557 230,900 807,523 1,173,980
Loans secured by mortgage 38,686 212,590 992,528 1,243,804
Pledged loans 50,821 110,171 4,459,145 4,620,137
Total 418,917 959,816 7,828,216 9,206,949
At 31 December 2014

Unsecured loans 210,355 321,169 1,341,296 1,872,820
Guaranteed loans 141,486 224,607 720,702 1,086,795
Loans secured by mortgage 31,691 239,168 924,211 1,195,070
Pledged loans 43,329 111,702 3,631,926 3,786,957
Total 426,861 896,646 6,618,135 7,941,642

Distribution of loans and advances to customers in terms of credit quality is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired (i) 9,130,722 7,887,096
Past due but not impaired (ii) 1,892 2,985
Impaired (i) 74,335 51,561
Total 9,206,949 7,941,642
Less: allowance for impairment losses

- Individually assessed (45,506) (29,299)

- Collectively assessed (296,083) (242,992)
Total (341,589) (272,291)
Loans and advances to customers, net 8,865,360 7,669,351

(i) Loans and advances to customers neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances to customers that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed with

reference to the asset quality grading system adopted by the Group.

Pass grade 8,167,478 7,210,728
Special-mention grade 963,244 676,368
Total 9,130,722 7,887,096

(i) Loans and advances to customers past due but not impaired

In general, past due of less than 90 days for loans and advances to customers does not necessarily indicate impairment, unless other
information is available to indicate the contrary. Past due loans of less than 90 days amounting to RMB1,047 million (2014: RMB2,546
million) were individually assessed and no impairment was identified. Past-due loans over 90 days were mainly student loans totaling
RMB168 million (2014 RMB283 million), which were not identified as impaired. In accordance with relevant policy requirements, certain
losses from student loans could be compensated by government subsidies. Therefore, these past-due student loans were not identified as

impaired loans.

The gross amount of loans and advances to customers that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

Past due up to 90 days 1,047 2,546
Past due over 90 days 845 439
Total 1,892 2,985
Fair value of collaterals 1,434 2,885
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(iii) Loans and advances to customers impaired

Impaired loans and advances to customers are listed below:

Impaired loans and advances to customers 74,335 51,561
Less: individually assessed impairment allowance (45,506) (29,299)
Total 28,829 22,262
Fair value of collaterals 17,650 18,863

All impaired loans are individually assessed and the impairment allowance is provided accordingly.

(iv) Restructured loans and advances to customers renegotiated

Restructured loans and advances to customers are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s financial
position. Restructuring policies are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most
likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous review. All restructured loans are subject to a surveillance period of six months.
During the surveillance period, restructured loans remain as non-performing loans. After the surveillance period, restructured loans will not
be classified as non-performing loans upon review if certain criteria are met. At 31 December 2015, the total renegotiated loans amounted
to RMB5,911 million (31 December 2014: RMB7,926 million).

(f) Investment in debt securities
Distribution of debt securities in terms of credit quality is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired (i) 685,059 211,994
Impaired (i) 2,506 3,183
Total 687,565 216177
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (343) (264)
Carrying amount of debt securities 687,222 214,913

(i) Debt securities neither past due nor impaired

31 December 2015

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 9,870 144,630 - 149,299 303,799
Financial institutions 3,795 4,009 399 5,035 13,238
Corporations 65,153 89,397 1,999 59 156,608
Other securities 200 169 = 2,831 3,200
Interbank certificate of deposit 446 103,248 - - 103,694
Wealth management products and others 5,156 - - 5,694 10,850
Asset management plans 93,670 = = = 93,670

Total 178,290 341,453 2,398 162,918 685,059
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31 December 2014

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 6,489 98,596 - - 105,085
Financial institutions - 3,859 293 4,675 8,827
Corporations 27,915 38,385 1,999 915 69,214
Other securities 296 102 - 7,212 7,610
Interbank certificate of deposit 146 6,454 - - 6,600
Wealth management products and others 3,016 - - 3,347 6,363
Asset management plans 8,295 - - - 8,295
Total 46,157 147,396 2,292 16,149 211,994

(i) Debt securities impaired

Debt securities issued by:

Corporations 215 215
Wealth management products and others 2,291 2,291
Total 2,506 2,506

Debt securities issued by:

Corporations 282 282
Wealth management products and others 2,901 2,901
Total 3,183 3,183

Debt securities analysed by credit rating from independent rating agencies is as follows:

Unrated

At 31 December 2015

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 6,051 - - - 297,748 - 303,799
Financial institutions 1,874 381 1,650 1,801 - 7,532 13,238
Corporations 132,266 11,807 10,031 92 - 2,412 156,608
Other securities 1,991 341 326 - - 542 3,200
Interbank certificate of deposit 91,200 7,573 4,921 - - - 103,694
Wealth management products and others - - - - - 13,013 13,013
Asset management program and others = = = = = 93,670 93,670
Total 233,382 20,102 16,928 1,893 297,748 117,169 687,222

At 31 December 2014

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments - - - - 105,085 - 105,085
Financial institutions 2,673 - 1,724 - - 4,430 8,827
Corporations 49,910 15,974 1,274 - - 2,091 69,249
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Unrated
Other securities 3,520 - - - - 4,090 7,610
Interbank certificate of deposit 5132 1,168 300 - - - 6,600
Wealth management products and others - - - - - 9,247 9,247
Asset management program - - - - - 8,295 8,295
Total 61,235 17,142 3,298 - 105,085 28,1563 214,913

(1) The unrated debt securities issued by PRC Government and PRC government bodies are from issuers such as MOF, central
bank, PRC policy banks and Huijin.

(2) The other unrated debt securities mainly represent subordinated bonds issued by insurance companies, principal guaranteed
wealth management products issued by banks and private placement notes.

(g) Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(i) Financial assets by geographical distribution

Balances with the central bank 255,702 2,485 5712 - 263,899
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 445,229 28,191 1,955 121,349 596,724
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 104,524 - 1,000 5,452 110,976
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 167,011 5,110 5,126 1,043 178,290
Derivative financial assets 6,685 1,355 - 6,140 14,180
Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,139,953 115,728 76,629 2,607 1,334,917
Loans and advances to customers, net 3,465,825 1,754,114 2,387,355 1,258,066 8,865,360
Available-for-sale financial assets 330,180 6,245 5,028 - 341,453
Held-to-maturity investments 1,898 - 500 - 2,398
Debt securities classified as receivables 95,058 25,543 44 421 59 165,081
Other financial assets 52,520 7,659 9,408 2,737 72,324
At 31 December 2015 6,064,585 1,946,430 2,537,134 1,397,453 11,945,602
At 31 December 2014 5,469,759 1,565,026 2,031,622 1,057,792 10,124,199

Eastern China includes Beijing, Liaoning, Hebei, Tianjin, Shandong, Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Fujian, Guangdong, Hainan, Dalian,
Shenzhen, Qingdao, Ningbo, Suzhou and Xiamen.

Central China includes Jilin, Heilongjiang, Shanxi, Henan, Hubei, Anhui, Hunan and Jiangxi.

Western China includes Xinjiang, Tibet, Gansu, Qinghai, Ningxia, Inner Mongolia, Shaanxi, Sichuan, Chongging, Guizhou, Yunnan and
Guangxi.

Overseas refers to regions outside Mainland China, including Hong Kong and other countries and jurisdictions.

(i) Financial assets by customer’s industry distribution

Loans and advances to customers 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
o e T e s
Road transportation 1,619,146 18 1,420,991 18
Shantytown redevelopment 1,308,614 14 636,246 8
Water conservation, environmental protection and public utilities 990,194 1 1,070,620 13
Electric power, heating and water production and supply 938,005 10 879,700 11
Railway transportation 759,936 8 621,146 8
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical industry 683,049 7 601,402 8
Manufacturing industry 578,420 6 585,697 7
Mining industry 418,992 5 386,399 5
Urban public transportation 325,317 4 261,167 3
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Loans and advances to customers 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
o e ] e %
Other transportation 211,016 2 206,463 3
Finance 154,899 2 149,832 2
Education 107,531 1 109,953 1
Telecommunication and other information transmission service 96,270 1 81,376 1
Others 1,015,560 11 930,650 12
Total 9,206,949 100 7,941,642 100
Less: allowance for impairment losses (341,589) (272,291)
Loans and advances, net 8,865,360 7,669,351

At 31 December 2015

Balances with the central bank 263,899 = = 263,899
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 596,724 - 596,724
Placements with banks and other financial institutions = 110,976 = 110,976
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 9,871 102,194 66,225 178,290
Derivative financial assets 449 9,335 4,396 14,180
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 1,328,622 6,295 1,334,917
Available-for-sale financial assets 144,630 107,258 89,565 341,453
Held-to-maturity investments - 399 1,999 2,398
Debt securities classified as receivables 149,299 7,280 8,502 165,081
Other financial assets 3,651 6,363 62,310 72,324
Total 571,799 2,269,151 239,292 3,080,242

At 31 December 2014

Balances with the central bank 57,346 - - 57,346
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 1,005,026 - 1,005,026
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 19,495 - 19,495
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6,489 11,311 28,357 46,157
Derivative financial assets 6,991 7,721 4,253 18,965
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 1,080,560 3,758 1,084,318
Available-for-sale financial assets 98,596 10,343 38,457 147,396
Held-to-maturity investments - 293 1,999 2,292
Debt securities classified as receivables - 11,785 7,283 19,068
Other financial assets - 9,879 44,906 54,785
Total 169,422 2,156,413 129,013 2,454,848

(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss, in respect of the Group’s on and off-balance sheet activities, arising from movements in market rates
including interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and stock prices. Market risk arises from both the Group's proprietary and customer driven
business.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within an acceptable range to
optimise return on risk. The aim is to ensure the Group could operate safely and soundly under a reasonable market risk level and
undertake market risk consistent with the market risk management capabilities and capital capacity.



The management of market risk is principally undertaken in the
Group using risk limits approved by the Board of Management
and its affiliated committee. The Governors’ Meeting on Risk
Management and Asset & Liability Committee ("ALCQO”) will
supervise overall market risk by holding meetings and reviewing
risk management reports periodically to ensure that all market
risks are consolidated and considered.

Classification between trading portfolios and banking portfolios

The Group’s exposures to market risk mainly exist in its trading
portfolios and banking portfolios.

Trading portfolios consist of positions in financial instruments
held either with trading intent or in order to economically hedge
other elements of the trading portfolio. Banking portfolios consist
of financial instruments held not with trading intent which are not
recorded in trading portfolios.

The market risks arising from trading and non-trading activities
are managed by the Risk Management Department and the
Treasury Department within the scope of their respective roles
and responsibilities. The Risk Management Department assumes
the responsibility for the overall risk management and the
periodical submission of the market risk reports to the Governors’
Meeting of Risk Management. The Treasury Department assumes
the responsibility for the overall asset and liability management
and the periodical submission of the interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk reports to the Governors’ Meeting of ALCO.

Market risk measurement tools and management approaches

Market risk is measured using Value-at-Risk (“VaR”) and
sensitivity analysis indicators, and monitored through risk limits.

Trading portfolios

In addition to VaR calculated for trading portfolios, the Group
monitors and manages its various risk exposures using risk
limits, sensitivity analysis, and stress testing.

VaR is an estimate of potential maximum losses which might
arise from unfavourable market movements within certain holding
period and confidence level.

The Group performs daily back testing for its market risk
measurement model, to verify its accuracy and reliability. The
back testing result will be reported to senior management
periodically.

As a supplement to VaR, the Group adopts stress testing
approach. Stress testing scenarios are developed based on the
Group’s unique business features, and are designed to estimate
the potential maximum losses from extremely unfavourable
conditions. The Group also continues adjusting and refining its
trading portfolios stress testing scenarios and measurements to
capture impact of market price volatility on VaR, and to improve
its ability in identifying market risks.

The Group sets risk limits based on its risk management
capabilities over interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and
capital capacity. The Group also establishes appropriate
risk limits for each risk category, trading portfolio. The Risk
Management Department is responsible for the identification
and measurement of various risk exposures from all trading
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portfolios.

Banking portfolios

The Group monitors the market risk for banking portfolios mainly
through the use of VaR for foreign exchange risk and sensitivity
analysis for foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Risk
Management Department is responsible of foreign exchange
risks VaR calculation and reports the results to Governors’
Meeting of Risk Management regularly. The Treasury Department
is responsible for the accurate and timely identification and
measurement of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk using
gap analysis, sensitivity analysis, and Earning at Risk (“EaR”")/VaR,
and prepares the quarterly assets and liabilities analysis report to
the ALCO.

For sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk, please refer to (3)(a) interest rate risk and (3)(b) foreign
exchange risk (including trading portfolios and banking
portfolios).

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk of the banking portfolio is the risk of loss in the
overall gain and economic value of the banking portfolio arising
from adverse movements in interest rate and duration structure, etc.

Currently, benchmark interest rates for loans and deposits within
Mainland China are set by the central bank. The Group operates
its business predominantly in China under the interest rate scheme
regulated by the central bank. Generally speaking, the interest rates
of interest bearing assets and liabilities with the same currency
and maturity date will move in the same direction. In 2015, the
central bank adjusted the financial institution’s RMB benchmark
lending and deposit interest rates a number of times. One-year
benchmark lending and deposit rates were 1.25% lower than before
respectively. In addition, the central bank has cancelled commercial
banks and rural cooperative banks’ ceiling for floating interest rate
of deposit. As for the interest rates on loans denominated in RMB
among financial institutions, there has been no restriction since 20
July 2013.

The banking portfolios interest rate risk is principally managed
based on impact of interest rate change on operation of income
and economic value, by using gap analysis, duration analysis,
BP analysis and net interest income simulation model. The Group
implements asset & liability management and hedging instrument to
mitigate the interest rate exposure of banking portfolios. The trading
portfolios market risk is mainly managed and monitored by interest
rate limits, VaR measurement, sensitivity analysis, foreign currency
exposure analysis, mark-to-market and breakeven analysis.

Analysis of interest rate risk is complicated by assumptions made
regarding optionality in certain product areas, and behavioural
assumptions regarding the economic duration of liabilities which are
contractually repayable on demand, for example, current accounts.
The prospective change in future net interest income will be
reflected in the current realisable value of these positions, should
they be sold or closed prior to maturity.

In terms of measuring and managing the interest rate risk, the
Group regularly measures interest rate repricing gaps, portfolio
duration and monitors the sensitivity of projected net interest
income and fair value changes under varying interest rate scenarios
(simulation modeling).
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Repricing gap analysis

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk. It includes the Group’s financial instruments at carrying amounts,
categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

At 31 December 2015

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central bank 263,785 = = = = 147 263,932
Deposits with banks and other financial

institutions 438,893 100,536 148 36 - 57,111 596,724
Placements with banks and other

financial institutions 89,976 21,000 - - - - 110,976
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 17,210 44,924 111,752 4,405 - 502,869 681,160
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 14,180 14,180
Financial assets held under resale

agreements 1,227,052 105,531 2,334 - = = 1,334,917
Loans and advances to customers, net 4,777,309 2,875,230 425,106 386,073 401,642 - 8,865,360
Available-for-sale financial assets 78,669 174,051 58,149 26,831 3,753 22,340 363,793
Held-to-maturity investments 398 1,500 500 - - - 2,398
Debt securities classified as receivables 2,780 820 73,347 88,118 16 - 165,081
Other financial assets 1,078 369 - - - 70,877 72,324
Total financial assets 6,897,150 3,323,961 671,336 505,463 405,411 667,524 12,470,845
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial

institutions 356,042 103,904 1,040,214 - - 4,846 1,505,006
Borrowings from governments and

financial institutions 147,657 182,574 18,166 1,753 5,125 - 355,275
Placements from banks 29,186 39,779 - - - - 68,965
Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss 19,171 69,940 3,000 - - 21 92,132
Derivative financial liabilities = = = = = 17,668 17,668
Financial assets sold under repurchase

agreements 12,634 10,024 6,826 - - - 29,484
Due to customers 1,702,923 98,765 34,209 6,119 11,505 1,890 1,855,411
Debt securities issued 1,483,199 1,130,207 2,352,770 1,803,125 532,071 - 7,301,372
Other financial liabilities 60,216 83 320 563 216 186,282 247,680
Total financial liabilities 3,811,028 1,635,276 3,455,505 1,811,560 548,917 210,707 11,472,993

Total interest repricing gap 3,086,122 1,688,685 (2,784,169) (1,306,097) (143,506) 456,817 997,852
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At 31 December 2014

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central bank 57,293 - - - - 107 57,400
Deposits with banks and other financial

institutions 781,916 212,673 1,125 16 - 9,296 1,005,026
Placements with banks and other

financial institutions 19,495 B N B B B 19,495
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 13,472 17,355 11,221 4,109 - 49,638 95,795
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 18,965 18,965
Financial assets held under resale

agreements 1,081,406 2,412 500 - - _ 1,084,318
Loans and advances to customers, net 4,213,995 2,947,549 228,538 148,736 130,533 - 7,669,351
Available-for-sale financial assets 20,727 31,921 72,365 19,492 2,891 24,571 171,967
Held-to-maturity investments 293 - 1,999 - - - 2,292
Debt securities classified as receivables 4,331 449 9,613 4,675 - - 19,068
Other financial assets 14,932 3,243 - - - 36,610 54,785
Total financial assets 6,207,860 3,215,602 325,361 177,028 133,424 139,187 10,198,462

Financial liabilities:

Deposits from banks and other financial

institutions 286,415 108,248 1,001,055 - - 12,758 1,408,476
Borrowings from governments and

financial institutions 130,561 285,806 29,597 399 5,010 - 451,373
Placements from banks 63,037 13,062 - - - - 76,099
Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss 6225 2,070 - - - - 8,295
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 9,618 9,518
Financial assets sold under repurchase

agreements 20,161 4,862 3,012 - - - 28,035
Due to customers 943,214 93,776 29,313 6,185 13,113 2,11 1,087,712
Debt securities issued 1,155,017 1,205,930 2,046,875 1,395,183 550,554 - 6,353,559
Other financial liabilities 1,540 1,574 3,998 - - 146,469 153,581
Total financial liabilities 2,606,170 1,715,328 3,113,850 1,401,767 568,677 170,856 9,576,648
Total interest repricing gap 3,601,690 1,500,274 (2,788,489)  (1,224,739) (435,253) (31,669) 621,814

Sensitivity analysis of net interest income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential impact of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in all financial instruments’
yield curves on the Group’s net interest income and other comprehensive income, based on the Group’s positions of interest-bearing
assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period.

2015 2014

Rise 100 basis points 33,336 (4,307) 37,141 (3,113)

Fall 100 basis points (33,336) 4,565 (37,141) 3,267
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The sensitivity analysis on net interest income for a year is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates with the assumption
that the structure of financial assets and financial liabilities held at the period end remains unchanged.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income is the effect of certain changes in interest rates on fair value changes on fixed rate
available-for-sale financial assets held at the period end.

The assumption does not represent the Group’s capital and interest rate risk management policy. Therefore the above analysis may differ
from the actual situation. In addition, the impact of interest rate fluctuation is only for illustrating purpose, showing the potential impact on
net interest income and equity of the Group under different yield structures and current interest rate risk situation. The impact did not take
into account the risk management procedures that management may take to mitigate the interest rate risk.

(b) Foreign exchange risk

The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and
cash flows.

The Group conducts the majority of its businesses in RMB, with certain foreign currency transactions in USD, Euro (‘EUR”), Japanese Yen
(‘JPY”) and to a much lesser extent, other currencies. Through foreign currency swaps, the Group maintains its foreign currency risk mainly
in USD. The value of the RMB depreciated by 0.3746 RMB against 1 USD during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: depreciation
0.0221 RMB/1 USD).

The Group measured the impact of exchange rate risk on operation principally by using foreign currency exposure, sensitivity analysis, and
EaR/VaR. And the Group implements asset & liability management and hedging instrument to mitigate the foreign exchange risk.

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period. RMB
amounts are provided for comparative purposes. Included in the table are the Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts in RMB,

categorised by the original currency.

At 31 December 2015

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central bank 263,816 114 2 263,932
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 398,780 139,873 58,071 596,724
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 105,500 3,382 2,094 110,976
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 660,614 16,103 4,443 681,160
Derivative financial assets 2,911 10,5674 695 14,180
Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,334,917 - - 1,334,917
Loans and advances to customers, net 7,190,454 1,655,178 119,728 8,865,360
Available-for-sale financial assets 356,364 2,080 5,349 363,793
Held-to-maturity investments 2,398 - - 2,398
Debt securities classified as receivables 165,023 - 58 165,081
Other financial assets 63,242 8,136 946 72,324
Total financial assets 10,544,019 1,735,440 191,386 12,470,845

Financial liabilities:

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 1,264,369 226,165 14,472 1,505,006
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 90,234 258,629 6,412 355,275
Placements from banks 1,500 48,518 18,947 68,965
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 92,132 - - 92,132
Derivative financial liabilities 12,421 4,856 391 17,668
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 29,484 - - 29,484
Due to customers 1,602,949 171,284 81,178 1,855,411
Debt securities issued 7,258,015 39,642 3,715 7,301,372
Other financial liabilities 239,931 7,333 416 247,680
Total financial liabilities 10,591,035 756,427 125,531 11,472,993
Net on-balance sheet position (47,016) 979,013 65,855 997,852
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/nominal amount) 471,794 (452,488) (54,459) (35,153)

Credit commitments 2,900,724 296,332 20,091 3,217,147




At 31 December 2014
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Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central bank 57,345 52 3 57,400
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 866,093 116,943 21,990 1,005,026
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 12,700 6,795 - 19,495
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 79,326 12,517 3,952 95,795
Derivative financial assets 8,916 9,449 600 18,965
Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,084,318 - - 1,084,318
Loans and advances to customers, net 6,107,192 1,452,328 109,831 7,669,351
Available-for-sale financial assets 164,513 1,671 5,783 171,967
Held-to-maturity investments 2,292 - - 2,292
Debt securities classified as receivables 18,976 35 57 19,068
Other financial assets 43,031 10,606 1,148 54,785
Total financial assets 8,444,702 1,610,396 143,364 10,198,462
Financial liabilities:

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 1,184,375 211,343 12,758 1,408,476
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 117,073 314,775 19,525 451,373
Placements from banks 44,265 28,634 3,200 76,099
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 8,295 - - 8,295
Derivative financial liabilities 4,073 4,983 462 9,618
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 28,035 - - 28,035
Due to customers 938,353 107,523 41,836 1,087,712
Debt securities issued 6,327,376 25,243 940 6,353,559
Other financial liabilities 146,407 5417 1,757 153,581
Total financial liabilities 8,798,252 697,918 80,478 9,576,648
Net on-balance sheet position (353,550) 912,478 62,886 621,814
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/nominal amount) 641,744 (590,402) (48,440) 2,902
Credit commitments 2,778,843 287,759 22,759 3,089,361

The table below summarises the effect of exchange gain or losses given a 1% possible movement in exchange rate of USD against RMB:

2015 2014
Possible movement in exchange rate of USD against RMB _ Gain/(losses)
Rise 1% 9,394 8,605
Fall 1% (9,394) (8,605)

In determining the exchange gain or losses due to the possible exchange movements, simplified assumptions and scenarios are adopted

and do not take into account:

* changes in the Group’s open USD position at end of the subsequent reporting period;

* the impact on the customers’ behavior due to the movement of the exchange rate;

* the effect of economic hedge on the Group's open USD position through certain derivatives transactions; and

* the impact on market price as a result of the movement of exchange rate.

(4) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk when although the Group is able to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities, however
is unable to rise enough funds at a reasonable cost to meet the assets enhancement needs or to replace funds when they are withdrawn.
The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay debtors and depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies and models to mitigate the liquidity risk effectively. The policy and
models include the method of forecasting and monitoring of future cash flow, stress testing scenarios, plans for emergency, and etc.
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In 2015, the Bank issued debt securities to fulfill its funding
requirements. In accordance with the approval from the CBRC,
all RMB bonds issued by the Bank enjoy sovereign debt credit
rating.

Objective of liquidity risk management and process

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash
resources from current accounts, maturing deposits, debt
securities issued, loan drawdown, guarantees and other calls on
cash settled derivatives.

To ensure the mismatching of the cash flow and the maturities of
assets and liabilities within a reasonable scale is the fundamental
mission of the Group. It is impracticable for the Group to be
completely matched since business transactions are often of
uncertain terms and of different types. An unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability, but runs the risk of incurring
losses. The Group strives to manage its mismatched positions
within a reasonable range.

Liquidity risk management is performed by the ALCO. The
Treasury Department is the executive function department for
detailed daily operating. The Group’s liquidity and funding
management process includes:

*  Projecting cash flows by major currency and considering the
level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;

* Monitoring balance sheet liquidity gaps;

* Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities;
and

* Maintaining debt financing plans.

The Group does not maintain cash resources to meet all of
these liquidity needs as the Group has the ability to refinance by
issuing new debts in the market. In addition, experience shows
that a minimum level of re-investment of maturing funds such
as term deposit from customers can be predicted with a high
level of certainty. Management maintains an appropriate level of
highly liquid assets to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of
demand.

At 31 December 2015

Non-derivative financial assets

The Group does not generally expect third-party to draw all of its
fund under letters of guarantees issued and or letters of credit
issued. The total outstanding contractual amount of commitment
to extend to credit does not necessarily represent future cash
requirements, since some of these commitment will either expire
or terminate due to the customers’ inability to fulfill the conditions
of drawdown.

Financial instruments liquidity analysis

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group to
maintain a wide diversification by provider, product, term
currency and geography.

The Group’s policy is to seek a long-term healthy balance
between its funding requirements and demand from investors by
maintaining a presence in, and regularly returning to, the debt
capital markets for required funds under its different funding
programs. Each of the Group’s annual funding requirements are
met through the issuance of either fixed rate or floating rate plain
vanilla debt securities and debt securities with embedded options
that allow the Group or the bond holders to redeem them prior
to the bonds’ respective maturity. However, bonds with options
to redeem only comprise a small portion of all bonds issued. At
31 December 2015, the long-term (with a maturity of one year
or longer) debt securities issued of the Group was amounting
to RMB6,328,811 million, and other long-term debts (include
deposits from banks and other financial institutions, borrowings
from governments and financial institutions, placements from
banks, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements and
due to customers) was amounting to RMB1,280,199 million.

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the
Group under non-derivative financial instrument by remaining
contractual maturities at the end of each reporting period as
well as cash flows from derivatives, whether settled in net or
gross. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The cash flow of financial instruments
estimated by the Group may have significant difference with the
table as below:

Cash and balances with

A 872 263,060 - - - - - - 263,032

Deposits with banks and other S 23695 209779 51722 103,722 387 35 - 500,340
financial institutions

Placements with banks and ofher . - 59670 35687 32,63 - . - 127,991
financial institutions

Financial assefs af fair value 502,869 6,715 12,538 18,742 117,460 27,313 6,134 - 691,771
through profit or loss

Financial assets held under resale B B 950,048 279,709 109,064 2782 B B 1341603
agreements

Losgts and advances to customers, 18,408 - 45885 237137 1425576 4622971 3,192,761  2,444280 11,987,027

Available-for-sale financial assets 22,340 = 17,327 62,252 180,098 65,833 32,607 4,994 385,451

Held-to-maturity investments = = 4 = 1,668 927 = - 2,599

Debt seaurilies classified as 118 - 580 544 7507 97221 100890 21 206,971
receivables

Other financial assets 41 1,999 6 589 27,168 4,895 4,160 748 39,606
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Total non-derivative financial assets 544,648 485469 1,315,837 686,382  2,004987 4,822,329 3336587 2,450,052 15,646,291

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other

! T - 123,942 191,741 14,441 131,846 1,092,931 - - 1,554,901
financial institutions

Borrowings from governments and - - 18,670 92542 123197 121,618 4,808 5,371 366,206
financial institutions

Placements from banks - - 15,746 13,580 40,100 - - - 69,426

Financial Iiabililties at fair value o1 B 10175 9.296 72,080 3.052 B B 94,624
through profit or loss

Financial assets sold under B B 11.352 1964 10,097 7333 ~ B 30,746
repurchase agreements

Due to customers - 1,591,420 32,728 44,964 110,082 67,606 9,483 20,676 1,876,959

Debt securities issued - - 134,840 200,938 917,527 4252223 2,509,080 1,168,233 9,182,841

Other financial liabilities 19,763 7,520 2,603 58,171 4,189 7,317 5,667 616 105,846

Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 19,784 1,722,882 417,855 435896 1,409,118 5,552,280 2,529,038 1,194,806 13,281,749

Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis

Net inflow - - 24 (42) 114 2,550 1,355 5,080 9,081
Derivatives settled on a gross

basis:
Total inflow - - 296,633 172,960 691,927 54,598 247 774 1,217,139
Total outflow - - (296,417) (175,602)  (702,058) (54,967) (185) (704)  (1,229,933)

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with

the central bank 1081 56,320 B - N B - - 57,401

Deposits with banks and other 276 760,328 28,680 1315 214,334 1,142 16 ~ 1,006,091
financial institutions

Placemgnts wﬁh .bar?ksland B B 17.269 2,268 B B _ B 19,537
other financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value 49,638 3,015 1,069 9870 17,161 13482 7,100 - 101,335
through profit or loss

Financial assets held under - - 1000901 84170 2584 616 - - 1088271
resale agreements

Loans and advances (0 10,929 _ 87224 219756 1395342 4246284 2750354 2018333 10,728,222
customers, net

Available-for-sale financial

24,571 - 6,705 13,493 32505 74647 22,413 3,447 177,871

assets

Held-to-maturity investments - - 1 1563 1,088 2,958 89 - 4,289

Debt securites classiiied as 122 20 278 513 4005 12,439 4,803 - 22,182
receivables

Other financial assets 40 1,411 67 418 4,761 9,317 5,599 2,585 24,198

Total non-derivative financial

assets 86,657 821,096 1,142,194 331,956 1,671,870 4,360,885 2,790,374 2,024,365 13,229,397

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Deposits from banks and other

) o - 78,066 474,716 16,193 147,222 1,106,917 - - 1,823,114
financial institutions
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Borrowings from governments

X T - 38 29,508 71,768 241,010 112,915 3,479 5,899 464,617
and financial institutions
Placements from banks - - 48,993 14,570 13,227 - - - 76,790
Financial ||ab|I!t|es at fair value B B 1,067 5214 2147 B B B 8.428
through profit or loss
Financial assets sold under B B 16,225 4,060 5.216 3441 B B 28,642
repurchase agreements
Due to customers - 853,394 22,321 46,431 108,649 46,338 9,775 22,225 1,109,133
Debt securities issued - - 102,598 210,697 753,338 3,937,572 2,073,577 971,881 8,049,663
Other financial liabilities 12 3,837 202 189 4,943 8,171 2,887 311 20,552

Total non-derivative financial

12 935,335 695,630 369,122 1275752 5,215,054 2,089,718 1,000,316 11,580,939
liabilities

Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis

Net inflow - - 26 - 125 935 1,358 5,280 7,724
Derivatives settled on a gross

basis:
Total inflow - - 208,641 184,809 787,808 20,251 247 774 1,202,530
Total outflow - - (207,791) (182,738)  (776,097) (19,791) (185) (704)  (1,187,306)

Letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued, bank bill acceptance and loan commitments are included below based on the earliest
contractual maturity date.

Loan commitments 4,550 2,934 71,411 252,498 422,684 2,343,130 3,097,207
Letters of guarantee issued 1,984 883 7,608 37,988 27,807 507 76,777
Bank bill acceptance 4,629 6,922 19,860 - - - 31,411
Letters of credit issued 2,844 2,717 3,766 2,425 - - 11,752
Total 14,007 13,456 102,645 292,911 450,491 2,343,637 3,217,147
At 31 December 2014 1,508,837 87,581 462,802 966,019 63,486 636 3,089,361

(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The best evidence of fair value for a financial instrument is the bid price for the asset held or the offer price for the liability issued in an
active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. The valuation
technique makes maximum use of observable market data and relies as little as possible on the Group specific inputs. In other words,
the valuation techniques adopted by the Group incorporate all factors that market participants could consider in setting a price, and are
consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value

At 31 December 2015
Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 12,168 167,228 501,764 681,160
Derivative financial assets - 14,180 - 14,180
Available-for-sale financial assets 10,400 338,417 14,976 363,793

Total 22,568 519,825 516,740 1,059,133
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss = (92,132) = (92,132)
Derivative financial liabilities - (17,668) - (17,668)
Total - (109,800) - (109,800)

At 31 December 2014
Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11,867 37,140 46,788 95,795
Derivative financial assets - 18,965 - 18,965
Available-for-sale financial assets 13,309 142,125 16,633 171,967
Total 25,176 198,230 63,321 286,727
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - (8,295) - (8,295)
Derivative financial liabilities - (9,518) - (9,518)
Total - (17.813) - (17,813)

Transferring between level 1 and level 2 during 2015 and 2014 was insignificant.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and key inputs used).

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - Debt securities 6,137 6,151

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - Stock and fund 54 3802

Financial assets at fair value through 4,064 1914

Quoted bid prices in an active market (for
profit or loss - Equity investments N/A N/A

Level 1 example, Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Available-for-sale financial assets -
Debt securities 5,057 5,271

Available-for-sale financial assets —
Equity investments 5343 8,038

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - Debt securities TEG 28,549

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - Wealth management 231 120
products and others

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss - Stock and fund N 30
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - interbank certificate 446 146
of deposit Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
o ) estimated based on forward interest rate (from
Financial assets at fair value through Level o Observable yield curves at the end of the N/A N/A
profit or loss - asset management 93,670 8,295 reporting period), face amount and contract
program and others interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss - asset management (92,132) (8,295)
program
Available-for-sale financial assets -
Debt securities REELS 135,671
Available-for-sale financial assets - 103,248 6,454

interbank certificate of deposit

Available-for-sale financial assets - 2021
Equity Investment '

Derivative financial assets - Currency
swaps (including cross-currency 4,968 10,298
interest rate swaps)

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are

estimated based on forward interest rate (from

observable yield curves at the end of the N/A N/A
reporting period), face amount and contract

interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects

the credit risk of various counterparties.

Level 2
Derivative financial liabilities - Currency

swaps (including cross-currency (9,971) (2,190

interest rate swaps)
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Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are

Derivative financial assets - currency
58 172 estimated based on forward interest rate (from

forward contracts

bservable yield curves at the end of the
Level 2 2DS€M . N/A N/A
T IR reporting period), face amount and contract
De;'a’;}g’%f&ir;fa'ilté'ab”mes currency (57) 172) interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties.
Derivative financial assets - Interest rate 8.750 7814 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
swaps ’ ’ estimated based on forward interest rate (from
bservable yield curves at the end of the
Level 2 ODSEN . N/A N/A
atua finannial [aniltas reporting period), face amount and contract
De;g/teétl\slagmsanmal liabilties - Interest (7,270) (6,735) interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
P the credit risk of various counterparties.
Derivative financial assets - currency 34 260
options Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model is estimated based
Derivative financial assets - Interest rate on forward interest rates (from observable yield
options 370 421 Level 2 curves at the end of the reporting period) and N/A N/A
contract exercise price, volatility that reflects the
Derivative financial liabilities - Interest (370) (421) credit risk of various counterparties.

rate options

Rent capitalization method: the project value is
converted by the expected future annual rent

The capitalization rate, ranging

The higher the capital ratio,

176 140 Level 3 “ . : oo from 7% to 11% (weighted f
?;\t/éded by net project appropriate capitalization average of 9.81%) the lower the fair value
The weighted average cost of The higher the weighted
capital, between 4.2% to 19% average cost of capital, the
(weighted average of 9.36%)  lower the fair value
Liquidity discount, ranging The higher the liquidity
from 10% to 20% (weighted discount, the lower the fair
Discounted cash flow method: Future cash flow average of 13.49%) value
estimates based on the estimated recoverable
Financial assets at 441 562 33852 Level 3 amount, according to management based on Perpetual growth rate, ranging The higher the perpetual
fair value through ' ' the best estimate of the average cost of capital from 2% to 3% (weighted growth rate, the higher the fair
profit or loss - is expected to level of risk as determined by average of 2.35%) value
Equity investments discounting. S ) ) ,,,
Minority interest discount of The higher the minority interest
20% (weighted average of discount, the lower the fair
20%) value
Listed probability of 0% The higher the probability of
(weighted average of 0%) listing, the higher the fair value
Market Approach: Refer to inputs similar to
industry-related index comparable companies . . ) . -
s theymarket, e valuepof the projpect is L|qmd|tg/ d\scour;t, ranging The higher the liquidity
55,101 9,900 Level 3 calculated after considering the liquidity from 9.4% to 36.301/o(we\ghted discount, the lower the fair
discount sector average of 29.35%) value
The main input: Industry liquidity discount
Financial assets o ,
at fair value Market Approach:Similar to industry-related
through profit index comparable companies on the reference | iquidity discount, ranging The higher the liquidity
or loss - Wealth 4,925 2,896 Level 3 market, fair value is calculated after considering  from 9.4% to 36.31% (weighted discount, the lower the fair
management the liquidity discount sector investment projects - average of 29.35%) value
products and The main input value: Industry liquidity discount
others
Market Approach:Similar to industry-related
Available-for-sale index comparable companies on the reference The higher the liquidity
financial assets — 14,976 16,533 Level 3 market, fair value is calculated after considering  Liquidity discount, 35% discount, the lower the fair

Equity investments

the liquidity discount sector investment projects
The main input value: Industry liquidity discount

value

(1)At the balance sheet date, when the Group uses some unobservable inputs when assessing the fair value of third level financial
instruments. If the change happened to one or more unobservable inputs in a reasonably possible alternative assumption, these
will not be significant impact on assessing the fair value of financial instruments.
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Reconciliation of level 3 items is listed as follows:

Financial assets

At 1 January 2015 46,788 - 16,533 63,321
Total gain 4,130 - (1,672) 2,458

- gain 3,751 - (445) 3,306

- other comprehensive income 379 - (1,227) (848)
Sales (15,885) - - (15,885)
Addition 467,794 - 115 467,909
Settlements = = = =
Transfer out from level 3 (1,063) - - (1,063)
At 31 December 2015 501,764 - 14,976 516,740

Total gain for the year for assets/liabilities held
at 31 December 2015

- included in profit or loss 4,155 - (445) 3,710

- included in other comprehensive income 379 - (1,227) (848)

Financial assets

At 1 January 2014 31,140 16 1,517 32,673
Total gain 2,136 8 4,282 6,426

- gain 2,114 8 - 2,122

- other comprehensive income 22 - 4,282 4,304
Sales (2,308) (24) (1,611) (3,943)
Addition 21,425 - 12,022 33,447
Settlements 1,395 - 323 1,718
Transfer out from level 3 (7,000) - - (7,000)
At 31 December 2014 46,788 - 16,533 63,321

Total gain for the year for assets/liabilities held
at 31 December 2014

- included in profit or loss 2,114 8 - 2,122

- included in other comprehensive income 22 - 4,449 4,471

For some OTC structured derivatives, the Group has determined their fair value through valuation services provided by the third-party
instead of inquiry from counterparties, and the main inputs used are observable. Therefore, the Group has transferred them into Level 2.

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
In respect of assets and liabilities carried at other than fair value, the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable.

(i) Cash and balances with the central bank, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, financial assets purchased under resale
agreements, deposits from financial institutions, current account balances of customers, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements, current receivables or payables within other assets and other liabilities respectively.

Given that these financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature and reprice to current market rates frequently, the carrying
amount approximates the fair value.

(i) Investment securities classified as held to maturity and debt securities classified as receivables

The fair value of listed securities is estimated using bid market price. The fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation
techniques that take into consideration future cash flows and valuations of similar quoted securities.
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(iii) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amount of variable rate loans and advances to customers is a reasonable estimate of fair value because interest rates
are mainly tied to the market rates and are adjusted when applicable. The fair value of fixed rate loans to customers is estimated using
a discounted cash flow analysis utilising the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities. For impaired loans, fair
value is estimated by discounting the future cash flows over the time period, which they are expected to be recovered.

(iv) Fixed interest-bearing deposits and borrowings

The fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis utilising the rates
currently offered for deposits and borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

(v) Debt securities and subordinated debt issued

The fair value of debt securities is determined using quoted market prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices for
similar instruments. For those securities where quoted market prices or quoted market prices for similar instruments are not available,
a discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity. The type of the
fair value hierarchy is level 2.

The estimated fair values of financial instruments, of which the respective amortised cost are different, at the end of each reporting period
are summarised as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Debt securities issued 7,301,372 7,554,679 6,353,559 6,397,268

(6) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the “equity” presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of financial position, are:

* to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the entities within the Group operate;
* to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders; and
* to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by the management in accordance with the guidelines
developed by the Basel Committee and relevant regulations promulgated by the CBRC. Required information related to capital levels and
utilization is filed quarterly with the CBRC.
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